
 

AGENDA 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING 
MONDAY, AUGUST 02, 2021 

6:05 PM AT CITY HALL 

 

 
 
The City is providing in-person and electronic options for this meeting in accordance with the Governor's 
Proclamation of Disaster Emergency regarding meetings and hearings.  The City encourages in-person attendees 
to follow the latest CDC guidelines to reduce the risk of COVID-19 transmission. 

The meeting will be accessible via video conference and the public may access/participate in the meeting in the 
following ways: 
 
a) By dialing the phone number +13126266799 or +19292056099 or +12532158782 or +13017158592 or 
+13462487799 or +16699006833 and when prompted, enter the meeting ID (access code) 962 7287 1738. 
b) iPhone one-tap: +13126266799,,96272871738#  or +19292056099,,96272871738# 
c) Join via smartphone or computer using this link: https://zoom.us/j/96272871738.   
d) View the live stream on Channel 15 YouTube using this link: https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCCzeig5nIS-
dIEYisqah1uQ  (view only).  
e) Watch on Cedar Falls Cable Channel 15 (view only). 
 
To request to speak when allowed on the agenda, participants must click “Raise Hand” if connected by 
smartphone or computer, or press *9 if connected by telephone. All participants will be muted by the presiding 
officer when not actually speaking. 

Call to Order by the Mayor 

1. Downtown Zoning Code – Parking Requirements for Private Property. 
(45 Minutes, Planning & Community Services Manager Karen Howard) 

1



 
 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8606 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

 * 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 

 TO: Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Karen Howard, AICP, Planning & Community Services Manager 

 DATE: July 26, 2021 

 SUBJECT: Committee of the Whole – Downtown Character District parking requirements 
 

 
At your June 21 work session, Council requested additional discussion of the parking requirements within 
the proposed Downtown Zoning Code at a Committee of the Whole meeting to allow the public to 
participate and ask any questions about this important topic. The Council also had a number of questions 
about the requirement for “shared parking” within the new regulations along with a few general questions 
about the proposed parking requirements. It should be noted that this discussion of zoning requirements 
for private development is unrelated to the changes proposed for the management and regulation of the 
City’s public parking lots.   
 
In preparation for this discussion of parking requirements in the zoning code, consultants from Ferrell 
Madden and City staff prepared written answers to Council questions and prepared a PowerPoint 
presentation that provides additional information about how we arrived at the proposed requirements and 
why allowing flexibility in the code for more shared parking opportunities will help to achieve the 
Downtown envisioned by the community in the Imagine Downtown Plan adopted in November of 2019 
(see attached). A 2015 study of shared parking policies from different communities around the United 
States is also attached if you are interested in more information. There has been considerable research 
and much written in recent years about the history of including parking requirements for individual uses 
within zoning ordinances and the unintended consequences of these policies. Staff can provide 
additional citations and links to this research upon request.  
 
Finally, stepping back to answer a more basic question posed by a Council member regarding why we 
are proposing new zoning downtown, the seeds of this effort were planted during goal setting back in 
2012, subsequently funds were set aside in the CIP for a major overhaul of the City’s zoning code, and 
Council support was confirmed after several work sessions with the Council in the summer of 2018. An 
RFP was issued in late 2018 and Ferrell Madden and their team was hired in early 2019 to conduct a 
community visioning process for the Downtown study area and draft new zoning standards to help 
achieve that vision.  It was acknowledged that the current code, many parts of which were drafted 50 
years ago, is hindering development desired by the community and at the same time leaves other areas 
vulnerable to redevelopment that is out-of-scale with areas the community wishes to protect. A case in 
point, is the question posed by a long time neighborhood resident during public comment at the June 21 
Council meeting. She wondered if the new zoning would continue to allow commercial development to 
encroach into the residential neighborhood along 2nd Street or whether it would create a better transition 
as promised during the Downtown visioning. Staff reached out to this resident to answer her questions. 
After discussing the difference between the current C-2 Commercial zoning that exists along 1st Street 

2

Item 1.



 
 

and in several places extends all the way to 2nd Street and the new proposed zoning, which establishes 
the “Neighborhood Small” zoning designation along 2nd Street and new “neighborhood manners” rules 
that ensure a better transition between any higher intensity development that occurs along 1st Street and 
the residential areas to the south, she expressed cautious optimism about the new zoning.    
 
Similarly, the parking requirements proposed in the new code are intended to allow for new development 
consistent with the community’s desire for more of what is most valued in the Downtown, the walkable 
character of historic Main Street, and for more housing options near downtown that blend into the scale 
of the existing residential neighborhoods.  
 
Staff and consultants will be prepared to answer questions at the meeting about the parking 
requirements and the intent behind the proposed changes.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3

Item 1.



1. What exactly do you mean by shared parking?  
 
The Shared Parking definition can be found in Sec. 26-191.H. Definitions of the proposed Downtown Character 
District Code with additional information in Sec. 26-196.C.5. Achieving Parking Requirements:   
 

SHARED PARKING. Automobile parking that is visible and accessible to the public for a minimum portion of 
each day.    (page 8)   

__________________ 
 

c. Minimum SHARED PARKING requirements may be met either on-site or within a 600-foot walking distance of 
the development.  

 
d. Any time or hour of the day restrictions on shared parking shall be subject to approval by the Zoning 

Administrator in consultation with the ZRC. The Administrator may give approval based on a finding that:  
(i) the parking is visibly designated and accessible to the public;  
(ii) at least 12 hours of public parking are provided in any 24-hour period; and  
(iii) that at least 8 of those hours are provided during either business or nighttime hours depending 
on whether the Administrator determines that the primary use will be for commercial or residential 
uses.  
(page 78) 

 
Please also note that the shared parking requirements only apply to new development—existing businesses, offices, 
and residences would have no shared parking requirement, but could benefit from its creation.  
 
2. So is it privately owned property that anyone can park in? Can anyone use a McDonald’s parking lot for their 

own use?  
 
Shared parking is typically privately owned, but depending on the shared parking agreement and approach to 
management, it may only be accessible to the public at certain times.  
 
There is no reserved or shared parking requirement in the current or proposed code for ground floor (or one-story) 
commercial use (such as a McDonald’s). Even a new 2-story McDonald’s would have no parking requirement unless 
the upper story hit the 5,000 square foot gross floor area (GFA) threshold requiring shared parking. In such a case, a 
certain number of parking spaces would be required to be publicly available during at least certain times of day 
under the control and management of the property owner.   
 
3. If it is privately owned, who pays the property tax and liability insurance on it while it is used for public use?  

 
Similar to any other parking that is required by zoning, such as at Hy-Vee or Target, the property tax is paid by the 
property owner.  Property tax is paid based on use of the land. The parking on a private lot that is designated as 
shared parking is still privately owned – it is not City-owned or managed.  
 
Regarding liability,  City Attorney Rogers responds:  
If the City arranges with a private entity to provide public parking in an existing parking lot (eg, Viking Pump), the 
question of liability is determined by the terms of the arrangement (i.e., contract). 
 
In another example, the City has addressed required public parking for a new development previously with River 
Place.  In that case a license agreement was the format in which public parking was addressed as part of the 
development agreement.  I believe that the license agreement addressed liability. 
 

4

Item 1.



So the bottom line is that in the past the City has addressed liability for shared public parking by way of agreement 
with the owner.  
 
If I understand the question now posed, it is how is liability applied if there is no agreement with the owner of the 
property, but the owner is simply required to provide parking that is available to the public.  Under the common law 
the question of liability depends upon what type of liability you are asking about.  For example, if a driver causes 
personal injury or property damage, that driver is liable, not the owner or the City.  If someone vandalizes the 
property or a car parked on the property then the vandal is liable for property damage, not the owner or the City.  If 
someone falls down and is injured due to a dangerous condition on the premises then the premises owner or 
possessor is liable.  Who is the “possessor” of a parking lot that is shared by the owner and the public?  I would say 
that unless the City is responsible for maintaining the property, it is not the “possessor,” so the owner would be 
liable, just like any other property owned by the owner that someone could walk through.  In none of these 
scenarios is the City liable. 
 
You may note that many parking lots are posted with signs addressing their use and liability.  
 
4. How did you come up with the parking requirement numbers?   
 
The consultants reviewed the existing Downtown parking requirements and the Downtown Parking Study, and 
factored in the input gathered during the Imagine Downtown visioning process, including stakeholder interviews 
with local business operators, landlords, developers, Community Main Street, the Mayor and members of the City 
Council, and City staff (including parking enforcement).  In addition, as the code was being drafted, the city was 
moving forward with a new management strategy for all public parking in Downtown. Based on this Cedar Falls-
specific information, and knowledge of and experiences with other communities, the consultants proposed these 
incremental adjustments to the parking standards to help implement the adopted Imagine Downtown Vision Plan 
and create the park once environment that is a key component of the Downtown plan.  
 

5. Can you provide a list of examples of other cities that have adopted a shared parking ordinance?  
 
Common shared parking arrangements include private-private and public-private agreements and use a range of 
mechanisms including leases, sales, management agreements, zoning requirements and incentives, joint 
development, revenue sharing, and others.  According to the findings of a meeting convened in Burlington, Vermont 
in 2015, Maximizing Urban-Core Parking with Private-Public and Private-Private Parking Agreements, the 
approaches to shared parking are as diverse as the communities that have adopted them. In general, shared parking 
programs have the goal of increasing the supply of parking in a defined area by making spaces accessible to the 
public or certain other users rather than reserved for a specific group. The approach taken is typically determined as 
a matter of public policy based on the local context and market considerations, with any issues related to insurance 
or liability addressed directly in the shared parking agreement itself, if warranted. More specifically, from the 
meeting findings: 

Building owners use a variety of arrangements, including: 

 facilities are made available to the public at all times 

 facilities are usually available to the public at all times, but enough capacity is reserved to ensure space for 
monthly permit holders (resulting in "Garage Full: monthly permit holders only" signs seen outside garages) 

 spaces are rented to the public only when the businesses in the building are closed (reserving the facilities for 
employees and customers when the businesses are open) 

 spaces are rented to the public only on a long-term basis (e.g. month-to-month), in order to minimize security 
concerns about access to locked garages1 

                                                      
1 Maximizing Urban-Core Parking with Private-Public and Private-Private Parking Agreements: Convening Findings, 
Nelson\Nygaard, 2015, pp. 7-8 

5

Item 1.



 
The meeting report also includes sample parking agreements and case studies from:  Oak Park, IL; Cambridge, MA; 
Sacramento, CA; Manayunk (Special Services District), Philadelphia, PA; West Concord, MA; New Haven, CT; West 
Hartford, CT; Coconut Grove, Miami, FL; Walnut Creek, CA; Pasadena, CA; Arlington, VA; and Montgomery County, 
MD.  
 
In addition to the above case studies, some other communities of interest that have adopted shared parking 
programs include Cedar Rapids, Iowa; Lynchburg, a college town in southwestern Virginia; and the Columbia Pike 
Revitalization District in Arlington County, VA. The Lynchburg program is voluntary and enables private entities to 
reduce their required on-site parking by establishing a shared parking agreement with another nearby private entity. 
Along Columbia Pike in Arlington, there are parking maximums on reserved parking, with an emphasis on creating 
shared parking within defined parking zones. In Cedar Rapids, new development within the urban form districts 
(primarily those mixed-use areas immediately surrounding Downtown Cedar Rapids) have a minimum shared 
parking requirement, with the possibility of a reduction or waiver of the requirements for small developments.   
 
It is noteworthy that there are numerous American cities that gone much further in changing the way they are 
handling parking and are moving away from regulating private parking altogether, and letting the private market 
determine how much parking is needed for their intended users—whether tenants, employees, or customers. For 
example: Fayetteville, AR has removed all commercial parking requirements citywide; Buffalo, NY has removed all 
parking requirements; and Cedar Rapids has removed all parking requirements in the Downtown SSMID. 
 
Details on shared parking requirements within the sample cities mentioned above:  
 
Cedar Rapids, IA: 
The shared parking regulations within the Cedar Rapid Zoning Ordinance (from Section 32.04.02.D.2 Urban Parking 
Context Requirements):  
 
District Shared parking may be achieved by one or more of the following: 
(i) Public on-street parking spaces immediately adjacent to the development 
(ii) Parking spaces within an off-street parking lot that are available to the general public for at least 12 hours in any 

24-hour period and meet the following: 
a) Be subject to approval by Development the public parking spaces will contribute to the parking needs of the 

neighborhood at times of high demand; 
b) Clearly visible and accessible from the parking lot entrance; 
c) Not be marked for the exclusive use of visitors to any particular use or property; and 
d) Not be more restrictive than nearby public street parking spaces. 

(iii) District Shared parking may be reduced or waived by Minor Administrative Adjustment for projects requiring 5 
or fewer District Shared Parking Spaces where Development Services determines that there is no practical 
means to provide public access to shared parking spaces. 

 
Full ordinance: 
https://cms8.revize.com/revize/cedarrapids/Chapter%2032%20-%20Zoning%20Ordinance_3.14.2021.pdf 
 
Lynchburg, VA:  

 population 75,000; home to Liberty University (approx. 15,000 students on Lynchburg campus) 
https://www.lynchburgva.gov/lynchburg-parking-policy#Top%20of%20Policy%20Page 

Lynchburg Zoning Ordinance: Sec. 35.2-62.2. - Location of off-street parking facilities. 
Off-street parking facilities required by this article shall be provided on the same lot with the structure or land 
use served or on a lot connected by pedestrian facilities to the said lot provided that excess parking is 
available and a shared parking agreement is executed pursuant to section 35.2-62.4(d) [see below]. A shared 

6

Item 1.

https://cms8.revize.com/revize/cedarrapids/Chapter%2032%20-%20Zoning%20Ordinance_3.14.2021.pdf
https://www.lynchburgva.gov/lynchburg-parking-policy#Top%20of%20Policy%20Page
https://library.municode.com/va/lynchburg/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=CH35.2ZOOR_ARTVISIDEST_S35.2-62.4RENUPASP


parking agreement shall not be required for lots under common ownership. On-street parking located within 
1,000 feet and connected by pedestrian facilities may be used to satisfy off-street parking requirements. 
Except for one household and duplex residential parking facilities, no off-street parking facilities shall be 
located within 20 feet of any residential lot line, nor shall they be located in any required front setback. 

(d) Shared Parking. Shared parking may be approved by the technical review committee (TRC) during final site 
plan review. Uses sharing parking need not be located on the same lot, but shall be located within the same 
block or an adjacent block. In approving shared parking, the TRC shall require the following: 
1. Shared parking shall be connected to the uses it serves by pedestrian facilities. 
2. That the applicant shows through a study of peak parking needs for all proposed uses involved, that 

shared parking is feasible and that the number of spaces proposed is adequate to meet the projected 
parking demand at all hours; 

3. That the design and location of parking areas is convenient for sharing by customers, patrons, and 
residents of all properties involved; 

4. That a shared parking agreement that establishes ongoing access to the shared parking for all users, 
responsibilities for parking lot maintenance and limits on hours of operation has been executed 
between all property owners involved and is binding on all tenants; and 

5. That the agreement shall be recorded and shall not be terminated without approval of the Zoning 
Administrator. 

 
Arlington County, VA: 
In the Columbia Pike Special Revitalization District, (population approximately 36,000) projects below 20,000 square 
feet of land area and those reusing historic structures are exempt from minimum parking requirements. All other 
development projects within the mixed-use areas of the district (except for hotels) are required to provide shared 
parking at the ratio of 1/8 space per residential unit and one shared space per 1,000 square feet of non-residential 
gross floor area.  
 
In addition, the county has established parking zones for parking management and a fee-in-lieu system based on the 
local cost to build structured parking that may be chosen as a one-time payment rather than providing parking 
spaces on-site. Eligible projects may also be approved for the Tax Increment Public Infrastructure Fund (TIPIF) to 
meet shared parking requirements.  
 
See CP-FBC Section III. The Regulating Plans, B. 4. Parking 
 
Full Columbia Pike Commercial Centers Form-Based Code: 
https://arlingtonva.s3.dualstack.us-east-1.amazonaws.com/wp-content/uploads/sites/31/2016/12/2016-FBC-
Reprint-for-web.pdf 
 
6. Would owners of shared parking areas be required to pay to repave every 20 years as the paving wears out? 
 
Repaving of parking lots and other maintenance would be handled as it currently is (unless a specific parking 
management plan or contractual agreement is established).  Just as with other aspects of their properties, owners 
are required to maintain their parking areas.  
 
7. Asked for clarity on the obligation for developers to give up 1/4th of their parking.  
 
As explained in the definition, the shared parking requirement does not obligate owners to “give up” any percentage 
of their parking; the goal is to maximize the usage of any new parking by making a small percentage of it available to 
the public for some portion of the day, most typically when it is not needed by property owners, their tenants, or 
employees.  

7

Item 1.

https://arlingtonva.s3.dualstack.us-east-1.amazonaws.com/wp-content/uploads/sites/31/2016/12/2016-FBC-Reprint-for-web.pdf
https://arlingtonva.s3.dualstack.us-east-1.amazonaws.com/wp-content/uploads/sites/31/2016/12/2016-FBC-Reprint-for-web.pdf


 
For example, parking for an office might be fully occupied from 8 AM to 6 PM, Monday to Friday, but would sit 
empty on most evenings and weekends. The goal would be to make some portion of that parking available to other 
users during the night and weekend hours. Similarly, parking for a residential apartment or condominium building 
may be occupied by residents on evenings and weekends, but sit mostly empty during weekdays. A portion of that 
parking would be made available during the weekday hours. In either scenario, the owners would maintain a 
percentage of their parking as “reserved” at all times. 
 
8. How does this work for the stay-at-home worker who would be using parking 100% of the time and not only 

12 hours? 
 

As illustrated in the response to Question #7, above, there would not be an issue for a stay-at-home worker, as they 
would still have a reserved parking space, as the proposed standards require. The goal of shared parking is not to 
limit any parking that is needed by a primary/principal user, but to maximize the use of the parking supply rather 
than over-build parking and have spaces that sit empty for large portions of most days. 
 
In some locales, property owners actually decouple the cost of parking from the office or apartment rent, so only 
tenants who actually need or want parking pay for it, and any excess spaces are publicly available to lease on a 
monthly or annual basis, or for short term basis at an hourly or daily rate.  
 
The primary goal is to unlock potential redevelopment in Downtown Cedar Falls. Currently development is made 
more expensive/difficult by on-site parking requirements.  As you can see from current aerial photos and figure-
ground diagrams for Downtown, the current system has produced more car storage than revenue- and value-
generating uses. 
 
9. We are in need of more public feedback. We want to hear from business owners and Community Main Street. 
 
The concepts [established/adopted] in the Downtown Vision Plan, such as creation of a more walkable “park once” 
environment and improving the management of existing parking and increasing publicly accessible parking in 
Downtown came from both the general public and the stakeholder interviews that were held with business and 
property owners, local developers, and the Community Main Street Board and Executive Director. The drafts of the 
proposed parking requirements were presented to stakeholder groups and then reviewed and endorsed by the 
Planning & Zoning Commission. 
 
10. Where in Downtown could new developments happen where this parking policy would apply or make a 

difference? Do we have a map where developments may go?  
 

Yes, the Vision Plan includes an illustrative master plan (see p. 42 of the Downtown Vision Plan) that illustrates the 
potential for development on underutilized properties in the Downtown area to create more of the walkable, main 
street character that is desired by the community.  At any point in time, redevelopment may happen based on the 
market. When that occurs, the new zoning requirements would apply. Aerial photos and the illustrative plan map 
are included in the attached PowerPoint presentation.   
 
11. How can we ensure that residential being built will not occupy even more of the limited parking downtown? 

The parking provisions in the new zoning code are not intended to under-park residential development, they are 
intended to “right-size” the requirements.  There is considerable evidence from the parking study that the current 
parking requirement of one space per bedroom are set too high for the downtown residential market. With a wide 
variety of people choosing to live downtown – retirees, empty nesters, single professionals, couples without 
children, etc., many do not need a parking space for every bedroom.  As recommended by the parking study, there 

8

Item 1.



are ways to control and manage the public parking system (the public lots and the on-street parking), so that it is 
available to customers/patrons during peak times. On the other hand, keeping parking requirements in the zoning 
code high means that we will continue to have private parking lots with more spaces than are needed for the 
residents, but that cannot be shared with others because it is a requirement of the code. That is the reason that the 
new code proposes an incremental reduction in the amount of parking that is reserved solely for residents and adds 
a shared parking requirement to provide the flexibility for the parking to be available to other users when not 
needed for the residents. In addition, there is a new shared parking requirement for non-residential space on upper 
floors in new buildings.  As new development occurs, this will add parking to the downtown that can be used during 
the day for office workers, but then be made available during the evening hours to downtown customers and 
visitors.  

12. Can existing property owners get involved in a shared parking arrangement if they would like to?  
 
Yes, that is one of the recommendations of the parking study, to work with existing property owners to make their 
private parking lots available to the public when not needed for their businesses. This can be accomplished in any 
number of ways based on the desires of the property owner. In addition, developers of new projects downtown can 
also negotiate a parking arrangement with existing property owners that have parking beyond what is needed or 
required in order to satisfy the new development’s shared parking requirement.  For example, a developer of a new 
building could make an arrangement with the bank next door that does not use their parking during the evening.  It 
should be noted that like all goods and services, the owner of the parking gets to dictate the terms and/or price for 
use of their parking lot.    

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

9

Item 1.



City Council Committee of the 

Whole 

 

Downtown Code Update: Parking 

 
August 2, 2021 

 

10

Item 1.



Focus of Tonight’s Discussion 

• Parking requirements proposed in the 
Downtown Zoning Code.  

– Parking requirements when new development is 
proposed (does not affect existing development) 

– Parking located on private property 

• We are not talking about City-owned, public 
parking lots.  

11

Item 1.



 
Downtown is  

Special 
 

Why do people come 
downtown?  
• Destination 
• Unique shops and 

restaurants 
• Special events 
• New urban residences 
• Walkable 
• ‘Different’ than the rest 

of city  
Don’t regulate it the same 

12

Item 1.



How does Cedar Falls get more of this… 

13

Item 1.



How does Cedar Falls get more of this… 

14

Item 1.



How does Cedar Falls get more of this… 

15

Item 1.



How does Cedar Falls get more of this… 

16

Item 1.



…and less of this? 

Exposed empty surface parking 

17

Item 1.



. 

…and less of this? 

18

Item 1.



Downtown is Special 

Build on the Success 

19

Item 1.



Unlocking Economic Development Potential 

• Overview description – briefly what happened? 

 

• Intensify development with a mix of uses 

• Facilitate development (if it meets the Plan) 

• Maintain the retail concentration 

• Right-size parking 

• Zone for housing variety 

 
 

VISION PLAN RECOMMENDATIONS: 

20

Item 1.



21

Item 1.



. 

22

Item 1.



. 

The underutilization of private off-
street parking in the evenings after 
5:00pm has been documented in 
every data collection count that was 
conducted.  
 
This condition underscores the fact 
that parking exempt districts are 
good public policy for downtown 
urban centers, and that requiring 
individual land uses to create their 
own on-site parking is bad public 
policy.  
 

When individual land uses are required to create their own on-site 
parking based on antiquated parking ratios, the typical result is an 
oversupply of private parking that is not shared with other land 
uses. 

23

Item 1.



. 

24

Item 1.



Site Analysis 2019: Parking  

25

Item 1.



Site Analysis 2019: Parking 

26

Item 1.



Cedar Falls, Iowa

Public Kick-Off Meeting
April 2, 2019

Visual Preference Exercise

RESULTS

1 2 43 5

9 10 1187

151413 16 17

21 22 232019

6

12

18

24

BOARD C

Downtown ParkingStreet Space – Public Realm

Community Input 2019 

27

Item 1.



28

Item 1.



29

Item 1.



Stakeholder Interviews Spring 2019:  
 

• Business and property owners  
• Retail, restaurant, and bar owners 
• Local developers, architects, and real estate professionals  
• Community Main Street staff and board members 

 
Plus  
• City planning and community development staff  
• City department directors 
• the “Downtown parking study implementation staff”  
 
 

30

Item 1.



Consistent themes and concerns identified:  
• Maintain the “small town feel” of Main Street but allow for 

growth and change elsewhere in Downtown  
• Lack of significant office space in Downtown  
• Recognition that Downtown has thrived as a specialty 

destination, dependent on boutique shops and restaurants; 
but market dynamic is changing, with growing demand for 
residences, offices, and related daily services  

• Need to better manage existing parking  
• Need to increase the supply of publicly available parking 

to support growth  
• Desire for the City to support both small scale reinvestment 

and revitalization and medium scale redevelopment within 
the Downtown context 

 

Stakeholder Interviews Spring 2019:  

31

Item 1.



32

Item 1.



33

Item 1.



 
From Vision to Code Update 

 

34

Item 1.



Parking -- Think Differently  
INTENT  
 

• Reduce fragmented, uncoordinated, inefficient, reserved single-
purpose parking.  
 

• Provide flexibility for redevelopment of small sites and for the 
preservation or reuse of historic buildings.  
 

• Increase visibility and accessibility of publicly available parking.  
 

• Most effective model to increase the parking supply for 
customers is shared publicly available parking, not parking that 
is “locked up” on private lots. Many cities are lowering or 
eliminating private, off-street parking requirements from their 
zoning ordinances and focusing instead on publicly available 
shared parking.  

 

35

Item 1.



New zoning: encourage more of this… 

36

Item 1.



What is shared parking? 

• Automobile parking that is accessible to the 
public at least 12 hours/day and designated by 
appropriate signage and markings; on-site or 
within 600-ft walking distance  

 
See Sec. 26-191.H. Definitions (p. 8) & Sec. 26-196.C.5. Achieving Parking Requirements 
(p. 78 )  

 

 
37

Item 1.



What is shared parking? 

 
See Sec. 26-191.H. Definitions (p. 8) & Sec. 26-196.C.5. Achieving Parking Requirements 
(p. 78 )  
 

• The shared parking requirement would not obligate owners to 
“give up” any percentage of their parking; the goal is to 
maximize the usage of any new parking by making a small 
percentage of it available for some portion of the day, most 
typically when it is not needed by property owners, their 
tenants, or employees.  

 

 
38

Item 1.



What is shared parking? 

For example: 
• Parking for an office might be fully used from 8 AM to 6 

PM, on Monday to Friday, but would sit empty on most 
evenings and weekends.  

• The goal is to make some portion of that parking available 
to other users during those night and weekend hours.  
 

• Similarly, the parking for an apartment or condominium 
building may be occupied by residents most evenings and 
weekends, but sit primarily empty during weekdays.  

• A portion of that parking would be made available during 
those hours.  
 

• In either scenario, the owners could maintain a 
percentage of their parking as “reserved” at all times. 

39

Item 1.



Parking Requirements: Current (Section 26-220) 

CBD Overlay Parking:  
No parking required for principal commercial, professional office, or 
service business uses 
 
Parking for secondary, incidental or accessory residential uses in the C-3 Commercial District 
is subject to review and approval by the planning and zoning commission and city council. In 
practice in recent years, a requirement of 1 space per bedroom has been applied with on-
street parking counting toward visitor parking.  
 

Dwellings – Citywide: 
• Owner-occupied, single-unit – 2 spaces per unit. 
• Renter-occupied, single-unit – 2 per unit + 1 space for each 

bedroom in excess of 2 bedrooms. 
• 2 or more units – 2 spaces per unit + 1 space for each bedroom in 

each unit in excess of 2 bedrooms.  1 additional space for every 5 
units in excess of 5 units for visitor parking. 

 40

Item 1.



General Urban, General Urban 2, and Storefront Frontages –  
 
No Minimum Parking Requirement for the following:  
 
• Existing Parkade buildings (fronting Main Street between 1st Street 

and 6th Street) regardless of use.  
 

• Ground floor commercial space 
 

• The re-use or renovation of an existing structure with no expansion 
and for non-residential use 

Parking Requirements: Proposed (Section 26-196) 

41

Item 1.



General Urban, General Urban 2, and Storefront Frontages –   
 
Minimum Reserved Parking 

 
• No requirement for non-residential uses 

 
• Required for all residential uses excluding existing buildings along 

the Parkade  

Parking Requirements: Proposed (Section 26-196) 

• Key Concepts: Reserved vs. Shared Parking 

42

Item 1.



General Urban, General Urban 2, and Storefront Frontages –  
 
Minimum Shared Parking  
Accessible to the public at least 12 hours/day 
 
Required for: 
• Commercial upper stories above 5000 square feet 
 
• Residential in mixed-use or multi-unit buildings 

  

Parking Requirements: Proposed (Section 26-196) 

• Key Concepts: Reserved vs. Shared Parking 

43

Item 1.



Unintended 
Consequences of high 
parking requirements 

Donald Shoup, Parking and the City 
…Chapter 11 estimates that parking 
requirements increase the rent 
households pay for their apartments by 
13 percent 

• Stunts growth Downtown; shifts 
development to outlying areas where 
land is less costly 
 

• Cost of parking is passed down to 
businesses, customers, and residents 
= increased commercial lease rates 
and higher residential rents 

  
• Un-used parking generates no revenue 

and no tax base 

44

Item 1.



Parking Lots 
  

Walkability 
 

Tax Base 

45

Item 1.



Parking lots 
  

Walkability 
 

Tax Base 

Shared Parking = some spaces 
available during peak demands.  

46

Item 1.



The Cost of  Excessive Parking 

47

Item 1.



Downtown Vision: More of this… 

48

Item 1.



Reminder: Focus of Tonight’s Discussion 

• Parking requirements proposed in the 
Downtown Zoning Code.  

– Parking requirements when new development is 
proposed (does not affect existing development) 

– Parking located on private property 

• We are not talking about City-owned, public 
parking lots.  

49

Item 1.



[NAME OF DOCUMENT] | VOLUME 
 [Client Name] 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates Inc. | i 

 

 

 

 

Maximizing Urban-Core Parking with 
Private-Public and Private-Private Parking 
Agreements 
Convening Findings 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2015 
 

50

Item 1.



51

Item 1.



 

Table of Contents 
 Page 

1 Convening Agenda ............................................................................................................. 1 
Evening: Wednesday, 5/20, 6:00 pm. -8:00 p.m. ............................................................................. 1 
Day 1: Thursday, 5/21 ............................................................................................................................ 1 
Day 2: Friday ............................................................................................................................................. 3 

2 Convening Attendees ......................................................................................................... 4 
3 Convening Findings ............................................................................................................ 7 

What is Shared Parking? ......................................................................................................................... 7 
Why Shared Parking? .............................................................................................................................. 8 
Considerations ............................................................................................................................................ 8 
Shared Parking Agreement Types ....................................................................................................... 10 
Shared Parking Case Studies ................................................................................................................ 13 

4 Making Shared Parking a Reality ..................................................................................... 21 
5 Making the Case for Shared Parking: Resources............................................................... 24 
6 Convening Presentation Materials .................................................................................... 25 
7 Shared Parking Agreement Examples ............................................................................. 181 
 

 

 

52

Item 1.



URBAN SUSTAINABILITY DIRECTORS' NETWORK CONVENING 
Burlington, VT | May 21-22, 2015 

 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates, Inc. | 1 

1 CONVENING AGENDA 
EVENING: WEDNESDAY, 5/20, 6:00 PM. -8:00 P.M. 
Drinks and light fare at Burlington Flatbread, 115 St Paul St.,5 minute walk from 
Hotel Vermont 

 

DAY 1: THURSDAY, 5/21 
Conference Space: Hilton Garden Inn. 101 Main Street, 8 minute walk from Hotel 

Vermont  

 

8:00 am – 8:30 am Breakfast at Hilton Garden Inn 

  

8:30 am – 8:45 am Welcome and Introductions 

 

Jennifer Green and Nate Wildfire, City of 
Burlington 

Erik Hoekstra, Development Manager, 
Redstone Commercial Group 

Burlington  Mayor Miro Weinberger 

Lisa Jacobson and Jason Schrieber, 
Nelson\Nygaard 

 

8:45- 9:00 Convening Overview and Agenda Review 

 

9:00 – 9:30 Making the Case for Parking Agreements: 
Shared Parking in the Larger Context 

 

9:30-10:30 Best Practices from Around the Country:  

53

Item 1.

http://americanflatbread.com/
http://hiltongardeninn3.hilton.com/en/hotels/vermont/hilton-garden-inn-burlington-downtown-BTVDWGI/index.html


URBAN SUSTAINABILITY DIRECTORS' NETWORK CONVENING 
Burlington, VT | May 21-22, 2015 

 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates, Inc. | 2 

Jill Valen, Director, Parking and Mobility 
Services, Village of Oak Park – A Public Sector 
Success Story 

 

Ed Dondero, Director of Facilities, Biogen, 
Cambridge, MA 

Biogen and Private Sector Success  

 

10:30- 10:45 am  Break 

 

10:45 – 11:45  Participants Report-Out: What’s Worked?  
What Hasn’t? 

  

11:45 am – 12:00 pm Morning Wrap Up  

 

12:00-1:00 Lunch (on own) 

 

1:00 – 1:10 Afternoon Re-Group 

      

1:10-4:00 Three/Four Major Challenges (i.e. Liability, 
Enforcement, Capital Costs):  

 

Addressing Major Challenges: Specific 
Solutions and Strategies  

 

2:30-2:45    Break 

 

4:00     Teeing up Day 2 and Day 1 Wrap-Up 

 

5:00 – 6:00 Walking City Tour: Current Waterfront 
Projects 

 

7:00     Dinner @ Hotel Vermont 

 

54

Item 1.



URBAN SUSTAINABILITY DIRECTORS' NETWORK CONVENING 
Burlington, VT | May 21-22, 2015 

 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates, Inc. | 3 

DAY 2: FRIDAY 
Conference Space:  Hotel Vermont 

 

8:00 - 8:30    Breakfast and Short Recap of Day 1 

 

8:30 – 10:30 Using Various Draft Agreements as Tools to 
Create City Specific Workplans:  
Nelson\Nygaard Offers Slate of Different 
Agreements 

 

 Small Group Work:  Implementation Once 
Home – Creation of City Workplans 

 

10:30 – 11:00 Report Out:  Workplan Review  

 

11:30-12:00 Next Steps 

 

12:00 Adjourn 
  

55

Item 1.



URBAN SUSTAINABILITY DIRECTORS' NETWORK CONVENING 
Burlington, VT | May 21-22, 2015 

 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates, Inc. | 4 

2 CONVENING ATTENDEES 
Cambridge 

 
Ed Dondero 
Director of Facilities 
Biogen 
ed.dondero@biogen.com 
 
Stephanie Groll 
Parking and Transportation Demand 
Management Officer 
City of Cambridge 
344 Broadway 
Cambridge, MA 02140 
Phone (617) 349-4673     
sgroll@cambridgema.gov 
 
Joe Barr 
Director of Traffic, Parking, and 
Transportation 
City of Cambridge 
344 Broadway 
Cambridge, MA 02140 
Phone 617-349-4700 
jbarr@cambridgema.gov 
 
Mike O’Hearn                                           
90 Broadway, Suite 201                       
Cambridge, MA 
02142                                                              
617-491-0709                                              
mohearn@bostonproperties.com 
 

Fort Lauderdale 

 
Jeff Davis 
Parking Operations Supervisor 
City of Fort Lauderdale 
Transportation and Mobility Department 
Parking Services Division 
Phone:  954-828-3797 
JDavis@fortlauderdale.gov 
 
 

New Haven 

 
David Panagore 
New Haven Parking Authority 
Executive Director  
50 Union Avenue, 2nd Floor East 
New Haven, CT 06519-1752 
dbpanagore@nhparking.com 
(203) 946-8934 
 

Oak Park 

 
Jill Velan 
Director 
Parking and Mobility Services 
Village of Oak Park 
123 Madison Street 
Oak Park, Illinois 60302 
(708) 358-5752 
jvelan@oak-park.us 
 

Santa Monica 

 
Francie Stefan 
Strategic Planning & Transportation 
Manager 
Planning and Community Development 
1685 Main Street, Room 212 
Santa Monica, CA 90401 
Francie.Stefan@SMGOV.net 
 
Jason Kligier 
Parking Administrator 
Planning and Community Development 
1685 Main Street, Room 212 
Santa Monica, CA 90401 
Jason.Kligier@SMGOV.net 
 
Scott Schonfeld 
Linwood Ventures 
1640 5th Street, Suite 101 

56

Item 1.

mailto:ed.dondero@biogen.com
mailto:sgroll@cambridgema.gov
mailto:jbarr@cambridgema.gov
mailto:mohearn@bostonproperties.com
mailto:jvelan@oak-park.us
mailto:Francie.Stefan@SMGOV.net


URBAN SUSTAINABILITY DIRECTORS' NETWORK CONVENING 
Burlington, VT | May 21-22, 2015 

 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates, Inc. | 5 

Santa Monica, CA 90401 
(310) 422-9042 
scott@linwoodventures.com 
 

Tucson 

 
Jenn Toothaker  
City of Tucson Department of 
Transportation 
 201 North Stone Ave. 
 5th floor Tucson, AZ  85701 
Jennifer.toothaker@tucsonaz.gov 
 
James MacAdam 
Policy and Planning Specialist 
Office of Integrated Planning 
149 N. Stone, 2nd Floor 
Tucson, AZ 85701 
City of Tucson 
James.MacAdam@tucsonaz.gov 
(520) 837-4068 
 
Donovan Durband 
Parking Manager 
City of Tucson 
110 E. Pennington St., suite 150 
Tucson, AZ 85726-7210 
520-791-5071 
Donovan.Durband@tucsonaz.gov 
 

Burlington 

 
Nate Wildfire 
Assistant Director Economic Development 
Community and Economic Development 
Office 
149 Church Street 
Burlington, VT 05401 
nwildfire@burlingtonvt.gov 
802-865-7179 
 
Diana Colangelo 
Economic Development Specialist 
Community and Economic Development 
Office 

149 Church Street 
Burlington, VT 05401 
dcolangelo@burlingtonvt.gov  
802-865-7187 
 
Jennifer Green 
Sustainability Coordinator 
City of Burlington  
149 Church Street 
Burlington, VT 05401 
jgreen@burlingtonvt.gov 
802-865-7532 
 
Pat Buteau 
Assistant Director 
Department of Public Works 
645 Pine Street 
Burlington, VT 05401 
pbuteau@burlingtonvt.gov  
802-863-6450 
 
Chapin Spencer 
Director 
Department of Public Works 
City of Burlington 
Burlington, VT 05401 
cspencer@burlingtonvt.gov 
802-863-6450 
 
Richard Haesler 
Assistant City Attorney 
149 Church Street 
City Hall 
City of Burlington, VT 05401 
802-865-7121 
 
Kelly Devine 
Director 
Burlington Business Association 
29 Church St., Suite 305 
Burlington, VT 05401 
802-863-1175 
Directorbba@gmail.com 
 
Marian E. Fritz 
Grandview Farms, Inc.,  
P.O. Box 1304  
Burlington, VT 05402 

57

Item 1.

mailto:scott@linwoodventures.com
mailto:Donovan.Durband@tucsonaz.gov
mailto:nwildfire@burlingtonvt.gov
mailto:jgreen@burlingtonvt.gov
mailto:pbuteau@burlingtonvt.gov
mailto:Directorbba@gmail.com


URBAN SUSTAINABILITY DIRECTORS' NETWORK CONVENING 
Burlington, VT | May 21-22, 2015 

 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates, Inc. | 6 

802-862-1611 or 802-373-7952. 
Grandview.farms@yahoo.com 
 
Rev. Peter Cook 
First Congregational Church 
38 South Winooski Ave. 
Burlington, VT 05401 
802-862-5010 
pcook@firstchurchburlington.org 
 

Nelson\Nygaard: Consulting Team 

 
Lisa Jacobson 
77 Franklin St. 
10th Floor 
Boston, MA 02110 
ljohnson@nelsonnygaard.com 
617-521-9406 
 
Jason Schrieber 
77 Franklin St. 
10th Floor 
Boston, MA 02110 
jschrieber@nelsonnygaard.com 
617-521-9403 

58

Item 1.

mailto:Grandview.farms@yahoo.com
mailto:pcook@firstchurchburlington.org


URBAN SUSTAINABILITY DIRECTORS' NETWORK CONVENING 
Burlington, VT | May 21-22, 2015 

 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates, Inc. | 7 

3 CONVENING FINDINGS 
The findings in this section were developed in advance by the consulting team and by attendees at 
the convening. 

WHAT IS SHARED PARKING? 
What is shared parking? What types of shared parking agreements exist?  

Shared parking makes parking spaces accessible rather than reserved for a particular group. 
These opportunities typically occur between a public and private entity, or multiple private 
entities. However, shared parking can get complicated, quickly, as there are multiple types of 
arrangements: 

 Private leases to public 

 Public leases private 

 Private leases to private 

 Public allows other public  

 Private sells to public 

 Public sells to private 

 Public requires private 

 Public incentivizes private 

 Private funds public 

 Joint development 

 And more 

The most common shared public-private parking agreements allow owners of private parking lots, 
which often serve customers within a specific timeframe, to open their parking lots to the public 
during other times. This can benefit the community, because it provides additional parking 
without the city having to construct it; and can benefit the private lot owner, because if parking 
charges are collected, the owner can collect some or all of the revenue.  

Building owners use a variety of arrangements, including:  

 facilities are made available to the public at all times  

 facilities are made usually available to the public at all times, but enough capacity is  
reserved to ensure space for monthly permit holders (resulting in "Garage Full: monthly 
permit holders only" signs seen outside garages) 

 spaces are rented to the public only when the businesses in the building are closed 
(reserving the facilities for employees and customers) 

59

Item 1.



URBAN SUSTAINABILITY DIRECTORS' NETWORK CONVENING 
Burlington, VT | May 21-22, 2015 

 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates, Inc. | 8 

 spaces are rented to the public only on a long-term basis (e.g. month-to-month), in order 
to  minimize security concerns about access to locked garages 

WHY SHARED PARKING? 
Attendees discussed the importance of making the case for why shared parking is important and 
what the benefits are. Together, the group brainstormed a list of the most compelling reasons for 
the importance of shared parking in communities: 

 Efficiency of resources (more from less – supply, ops cost, etc.) 

 Revenue sharing 

 Better management 

− Through economy of scale (science and professionals can save us) 

− Improved customer experience 

− Providing availability to certain user groups in the right places 

 Available parking at all times 

 Enhanced parker experience (all users) in downtown 

 Increased economic activity & vitality 

 Reduced development costs & more land area (for buildings, open space, and other land 
uses) 

 Increased public/private trust and cooperation 

 Longer stays that boost merchant & restaurant business 

 Reduced congestion, pollution & driving/parking demand 

 More inviting public realm and vibrant street life 

 

CONSIDERATIONS 
Convening attendees discussed the issues and complexities involved in evaluating the 
opportunities for shared parking. Considerations ranged from the content included (or not 
included) in agreements, to short and long term considerations of entering into an agreement. 

Included in Agreements 

 Term and Extension 

 Use of Facilities (location, times, users, etc.) 

 Maintenance (responsible parties, categories, cost share) 

 Operations (responsible parties, revenue allocation, customer service, etc.) 

 Utilities and Taxes (responsible parties, cost share) 

 Signage 

 Enforcement/Security (type, responsible parties, etc.) 

 Cooperation/Communication 

 Improvements (rights, cost share, duration, etc.) 

 Insurance 

60

Item 1.



URBAN SUSTAINABILITY DIRECTORS' NETWORK CONVENING 
Burlington, VT | May 21-22, 2015 

 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates, Inc. | 9 

 Indemnification  (during times of control!; parties, litigation cost share) 

 Termination/Cancellation 

Other Considerations 

 The reputation/image of the City/Authority 

 Regulatory & minimum design standards (zoning, other regulatory structures, data 
reporting) 

− The need to tackle zoning first & have your data support 

 Leases (current tenant relationships/ retention, previous lease agreements, competition 
for leasing) 

− Private terms are dictated by the local market and particularly the local objectives 

 Specifics (history, personalities, ownership) 

 Taxes/financing (property valuation/ assessment, more taxes, bank financing) 

 Development (changing/growing development, land banking) 

− Private-private structures: to facilitate development, or to facilitate economic 
development. The City is the holder of an agreement for community benefit, but not 
involved for pure development facilitation. 

− Joint development: public fronting garage construction capital in return for public 
parking; private getting capital discount in return for doing private ops/maint  

 The story (making the case, information/knowledge/ education) 

− Have a kickoff with shared partner to determine needs, ala carte options, base 
standard of care  

 Parking WITH multimodal environment 

 Parking competition (free adjacent parking) 

 Apps and other technology 

 Staffing/capacity 

  

61

Item 1.



URBAN SUSTAINABILITY DIRECTORS' NETWORK CONVENING 
Burlington, VT | May 21-22, 2015 

 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates, Inc. | 10 

SHARED PARKING AGREEMENT TYPES 

Public Leases Private 
The municipality or public entity would directly lease parking from a private landowner or entity 
for use of public parking or a specific need (e.g. events). This may mean that the entire facility or 
part of the facility is open for public use, or that the facility is publicly available for certain hours 
or days of the week. These types of stipulations may vary by facility and need from both parties. 

Get started by: 

 Meeting with landowners to determine needs 

 Developing a base standard of care for maintenance and operations 

 Developing standard packages that can be adapted/refined 

 Creating a standard legal agreement with terms and conditions that can be 
adapted/refined 

Factors 

Leesor/ 
Leesee Terms & Extension Use of Facilities Maintenance Operations 

Enforcement & 
Security 

Public Evaluate return on 
investment (per 
individual facility or 
system as a whole) 
 

Need available 
hours (and number 
of spaces) to be 
ample enough for 
investment 

Evaluate added 
cost of 
maintenance and 
operations 

Revenue 
collection; 
posting signage; 
could include 
maintenance 

May assume 
enforcement role 
(if no gate) 
 

Private Long enough to 
ensure adequate 
return on investment 
May want to ensure 
terms that allow for 
potential 
redevelopment 
 

Need to ensure 
base user can get 
use at end of 
sharing period 
(need to provide 
flexibility in 
extenuating 
circumstances) 

If maintenance and 
operations already 
exists and is 
effective, it will 
likely want to be 
continued 

If maintenance 
and operations 
already exists 
and is effective, 
it will likely want 
to be continued 

Not necessary if 
gated (already 
can tow) 
 

 

  

62

Item 1.



URBAN SUSTAINABILITY DIRECTORS' NETWORK CONVENING 
Burlington, VT | May 21-22, 2015 

 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates, Inc. | 11 

Private Leases Private 
A private entity would work directly with another private entity to lease parking. The municipality 
or a third party may be involved for facilitation purposes. This arrangement works particularly 
well with land uses that have complementary uses/parking demand, or between facilities where 
one has an excess of parking supply. These arrangements may include the entire facility or part of 
the facility. These types of stipulations may vary by facility and need from both parties. 

Get started by: 

 Defining goals and objectives of municipality and shared parking purpose 

 Defining role for the municipality, if any 

 Understanding zoning impact 9mMay not include municipality, but may trigger zoning or 
other review) 

 Exploring real estate agents or property management companies as brokers, including 
identification of supply/demand sharing gaps 

 Identifying nature of the terms of agreement are primarily dictated by the market 

 Developing local case studies to serve as examples 

Factors 

Leesor/ 
Leesee Terms & Extension Use of Facilities Maintenance Operations 

Enforcement & 
Security 

Public May be approached 
for transition plan or 
facilitation if needed 
May be needed as a 
resource or due to 
parking 
requirements 

If zoning/waiver 
needed 
 

Could be 
contracted for 
maintenance 

Annual reporting If ticketing 
needed 

Private 3-year term, no out 
(typical) 
Up to 5 years with 
90-day cancel 
 

Entirely private Landlord Shared costs or 
landlord 

Shared costs or 
landlord (may 
be on as-
needed basis) 

 

  

63

Item 1.



URBAN SUSTAINABILITY DIRECTORS' NETWORK CONVENING 
Burlington, VT | May 21-22, 2015 

 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates, Inc. | 12 

"A La Carte" Shared Parking 
The "a la carte" approach lays out a range of options for each major shared parking consideration. 
This provides a menu of options that set boundaries to work within when determining various 
stipulations in shared parking agreements. These options can be used in public/private and 
private/private agreements. 

Get started by: 

 May not include municipality, but may trigger zoning or other review 

 Define goals and objectives of municipality and shared parking purpose 

 Define role for the municipality, if any 

 Explore real estate agents or property management companies as brokers, including 
identification of supply/demand sharing gaps 

 Nature of the terms of agreement are primarily dictated by the market 

 Develop local case studies to serve as examples 

Options 

 Permit parkers 

 Enforcement only 

 Maintenance 

 Utilities 

 Operations 

 On the map 

 Revenue equipment 

 Improvements 

 Revenue sharing  

 

Factors 

Leesor/ Leesee 
Terms & 

Extension Use of Facilities Maintenance Operations 
Enforcement & 

Security 

Public and/or 
private 

Initially 1-3 years 
with exit clause 
(longer term 
agreement 
should have 
more flexibility) 
Some form of 
revenue sharing 
 

Establish 
consistent use 
patterns 
Use technology 
to leverage 
flexibility 
Exceptions for 
special events 
 

Base standards 
of care 
Allow special 
clauses (i.e. 
plowing 
completed by a 
certain time) 
Standard 
assessment of 
each facility 
 

Overall system 
consistency, 
branding, etc. 
Taking on 
operations task; 
removing the 
nuisance for 
small operator 
Consistency of 
each offering 
Signing 
 

Various levels of 
service: 
 Tickets 
 Towing? 
 Consistency 

with overall 
system 

 Security 
 

64

Item 1.



URBAN SUSTAINABILITY DIRECTORS' NETWORK CONVENING 
Burlington, VT | May 21-22, 2015 

 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates, Inc. | 13 

SHARED PARKING CASE STUDIES 

Oak Park, IL 
The Village of Oak Park, adjacent to the west side of Chicago, has one of the most progressive 
parking management programs in the country. The Town offers several parking programs geared 
towards employees, downtown residents, customers, and commuters using a combination of 
publicly and privately owned parking facilities. The Village manages about 8,000 parking spaces, 
1,000 of which are privately owned but managed by the Village. 

Privately-owned but publicly-available parking is prevalent in the Village center. This shared 
parking method includes nearly 30 different parking lots and landowners. The shared parking is 
managed in an equal fashion to the Village owned facilities. The arrangements with each 
landowner are fairly standard: the Village maintains and snowplows the lots, manages the signs, 
installs payment technology, collects revenue when applicable, and enforces parking payment 
through the Police Department. The Village collects the revenue, subtracts the administrative, 
operations, and maintenance costs, and splits the remaining funds with the landowner 50/50. 
Lease lengths are typically no more than three years. 

Additionally, the Village is currently working with a private developer that is constructing a 
residential building with structured parking. The developer is looking to build 270 units and 
provide 270 residential parking spaces. The spaces would be leased separately ("unbundled") 
from the residential units. The parking garage is expected to have about 340 total spaces (which 
replaces the ~300 surface spaces that exist today). During the day, the garage is expected to be 
used for public parking, plus Zipcar. The Village is working towards a deal to jointly operate this 
garage as well as another upcoming private development project. The Village is also requiring 
other developers to include some public parking in their development projects. 

Complementary programs in Oak Park include: 

 On-street long-term permit parking, including resident and non-resident permit rates 

 Permit rates with higher than national norms to maximize curbside management 

 Discount employee parking program in garages 

 No time limits on-street (curbside managed by pricing) 

 Pay by cell payment technology 

 Bike share (2016), partially funded by parking revenues 

Resources:  

 Parking lot and zone guidelines: http://www.oak-park.us/village-
services/parking/parking-lot-zone-guidelines 

 Parking and vehicle services: http://www.oak-park.us/village-services/parking-vehicle-
services 

 Parking passes: http://www.oak-park.us/village-services/parking/parking-passes 

 Map: http://www.downtownoakpark.net/parking-map/ 

Biogen, Cambridge, MA 
Biogen is a global biotechnology company with its headquarters in Cambridge, MA. Biogen 
located in Cambridge's Kendall Square neighborhood in 1983, long before the district was 

65

Item 1.



URBAN SUSTAINABILITY DIRECTORS' NETWORK CONVENING 
Burlington, VT | May 21-22, 2015 

 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates, Inc. | 14 

inundated with biotech and other R&D companies. Today, of the company's 7,500 employees, 
3,200 work in Cambridge. Depending on Biogen's continued investment in research, it is possible 
that the employee base could triple in the next several years.  

In an urban, already-constrained environment, Biogen has made substantial investments in how 
its employees get to and from work. There are some hurdles: most of the Cambridge employees 
(about 90%) have typical 9-5 M-F schedules, with little flexibility in shifts. However, the company 
has reduced its parking ratio per employee since it moved to Cambridge in 1983. Biogen has 
responded to employees that have called for more choice and flexibility in getting to and from 
work. 

Biogen's core transportation demand management (TDM) programs include a combination of 
transit passes, park and rides with shuttles, and a "flex out" option. The company offers a transit 
subsidy of up to $245 per month per employee, which can be also used to pay for parking at 
transit stations. Park and ride shuttles are located in five convenient locations to pick up 
employees before they drive to Kendall Square. Shuttles include amenities such as wifi, coffee, 
and satellite TV. Shuttle riders have access to park three times per month in the Biogen facilities. 
The newest option, the "flex out" is a cash-out program that offers $150 per month to employees 
who do not drive or get a transit pass. The flex option is becoming more popular, as Biogen 
recently increased the cash out from $100 to $150 per month. 

Biogen also offers complementary programs such as Guaranteed Ride Home and the EZ Ride 
shuttle. There are on-site showers and lockers, a Hubway bikeshare station, and on-site daycare. 

The percentage of employees taking advantage of the core TDM programs has shifted over the 
past few years: parking pass participation dropped 10% to 62% of employees; transit pass 
participation fell 5% to 23%; recently added programs have increased (6% park and ride and 9% 
flex option). 

Cambridge's nationally recognized Parking and Transportation Demand Management (PTDM) 
Ordinance (http://www.cambridgema.gov/CDD/Transportation/fordevelopers/ptdm.aspx) has 
helped support companies like Biogen reduce the number of parking spaces needed as well as 
promote TDM programming. 

Sacramento, CA 
The City of Sacramento has actively and strategically sought shared parking agreements with 
private lot owners, with the support of the city managers and elected officials. As of spring 2015, 
the City has agreements with 21 privately owned parking facilities, with at least a dozen more 
potential agreements in the pipeline. Currently leased facilities include:  

 The East End garage: owned by the State of California, these 600 spaces, located in an 
area with active night life, are available to the public after 4:30 pm and on weekends. 

 The REA building: adjacent to the Sacramento Station, this facility controls a surface lot 
built for their tenants. The lot is contiguous with the station lot, with the property line 
dividing the parking lot. The City proposed that REA lease 50 spaces to the City, with 
their tenants then renting them back from the City.  The lot is divided into short-term 
parking for retail tenants, and long-term parking for the station. 

 Greyhound and Inland America private lots: these lots were originally built for tenants 
and patrons of these buildings that are now open to the public. 

66

Item 1.



URBAN SUSTAINABILITY DIRECTORS' NETWORK CONVENING 
Burlington, VT | May 21-22, 2015 

 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates, Inc. | 15 

 Two surface lots attached to County regional parks: these lots are now under 
management by the City, including all enforcement. 

The City sees several financial advantages to the public/private parking agreements. Although the 
agreements vary from one lot owner to another, they generally involve the City assuming all the 
enforcement and liability aspects of parking with the understanding that the majority or all of the 
spaces are then publicly available (some 24/7, others during non-peak).  

The City uses two typical models for shared parking agreements: 

 Enforcement only: City enforces the private lot only; no management fee and no 
revenue sharing. Private owners give right of entry to City. 

 Full management: City manages private facility as if it is its own, including revenue 
collection, insurance, citations, branding, and maintenance. 

Initially, the City may take on the cost of upgrading the facility to meet regulations, and also pays 
labor costs. As soon as the lot starts being profitable, the City starts paying  itself back; once the 
City has broken even, they may share the profits with the lot owner (depending on the 
agreement). Based on the system as a whole,  the City is currently breaking even on managing 
parking lots. 

The City already has the staff to enforce parking citations and registration violations, so taking on 
the enforcement in private garages provides a new revenue stream for the City.  

Parking fees offer a separate revenue stream. The City freely sets the pricing in several cases to a 
minimum break-even financial point. Parking rates are driven by demand; with  the exception of 
mid-town (demand at this time is not high enough to support higher fees) but as demand 
increases, fees will rise. 

Another financial advantage is the reduced need to build more expensive parking lots and 
structures. By creating public parking in existing private lots, the City is not pressured to build 
more expensive lots, and land which otherwise would go to parking lots can be used to further the 
smart growth goals of the City.   

Each shared parking agreement is designed for the specific situation, so the terms vary from lease 
to lease, though a standard template is used to cover revenue sharing, time restrictions, and 
spatial restrictions. Lease terms are generally month to month.  

Some privately built garages are initially designed to keep the public out, so physical 
improvements might be required to allow public access or separated public/private access. In 
these cases, the City can make the improvements for the owner, and then pay itself back though 
parking fees. This kind of agreement can make the shared parking arrangement more attractive 
for the lot owner.  

The biggest barrier to owners entering these agreements is concern about liability and property 
damage. Insurance can be assumed by the owner, the City, or a third party; because the City of 
Sacramento is self-insured, the City is happy to take on the liability. 

The City discourages (but does not prohibit) developers from building stand-alone parking. If the 
proposed parking is in a “hot spot” – an area with good current and future commercial activity – 
then the Parking Department is brought into the discussion early in the process. The City is 
willing to share in the cost of parking in exchange for public use, and is actively discussing this 
with projects that are in the early phases, particularly some new residential developments. 

67

Item 1.



URBAN SUSTAINABILITY DIRECTORS' NETWORK CONVENING 
Burlington, VT | May 21-22, 2015 

 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates, Inc. | 16 

The City estimates that with 10,000 spaces under shared parking agreements, and 7,000 spaces 
owned by the City, the municipality's savings are more than $40 million, and its revenue from the 
shared facilities is more than $1 million annually. 

Manayunk, Philadelphia, PA 
The Manayunk Special Services District (MSSD) was established in the mid 1990s to create a 
clean, attractive, safe, and well-managed business district. The MSSD functions similarly to a 
business improvement district (BID). MSSD leases and manages five parking lots, mostly from 
the City of Philadelphia. The organization uses these lots to support Manayunk's businesses and 
large visitor base. 

The BID's parking lot leases include five lots with varied stories: 

1. City gave a lot to MSSD (43 spaces); MSSD manages the lot, including operations and 
maintenance, signs, and lighting. 

2. Lease of one private property lot, where it is leased with help of a local bank. The lot was 
paved, connecting two property owners. The MSSD operates and maintains this lot, and 
has since paid back the initial paving costs (interest free). This lot has recently changed 
owners, but is still open to the public. 

3. MSSD leases another lot, which it has improved and continues to manage, maintain, and 
operate it for public parking. 

4. Leases SEPTA lot (190 spaces). MSSD improved the lot and has operated and maintained 
it for a decade. The lot has gone out to bid for other operators, but MSSD currently 
manages it. 

5. Leases a 60 space lot from the City; MSSD improved lot and manages ongoing operations 
and maintenance. 

The leases range from 1-2 year leases to month to month leases. The MSSD takes on the risk of 
improving and maintaining lots, even those with month to month leases. The ongoing operations 
and maintenance work also includes signage and lights. 

The MSSD contracts with a third-party for parking management; it is the same company that the 
City of Philadelphia uses. MSSD made this conscience choice to maximize flexibility for staff 
purposes. The MSSD also decided to not engage in the day-to-day operations of parking 
management, but hire out for a package of services. The MSSD pays the third-party operator an 
annual fee that covers insurance on all of the leased parking lots. 

The MSSD charges below market rates to support downtown businesses, though parking revenue 
is 30% of the total MSSD revenues. The organization would expand its parking net and lease 
additional parking lots if/when available. 

 

West Concord, MA 
In 1999, in an effort to better manage and use existing parking in West Concord Village, four 
neighboring retail landowners on Commonwealth Avenue approached the Town of Concord for a 
special permit to share their respective parking lots. Previously the various lots had been 
managed independently, with ad hoc regulation and access according to the needs of the various 
businesses.  The Town approved the permit, allowing the owners to operate their lots as one 

68

Item 1.



URBAN SUSTAINABILITY DIRECTORS' NETWORK CONVENING 
Burlington, VT | May 21-22, 2015 

 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates, Inc. | 17 

single parking area, rather than multiple lots with different rules and spaces. This shared parking 
lot was designed to share management costs, and to allow customers to use the lot for the 
associated businesses without needing to move their car. It was agreed that management costs 
would be split 45/45/5/5, in proportion to the size of the landowners’ holdings.  

The new parking lot has made considerable 
success lowering costs per square foot, providing 
an improved parking area, and offering 
enhanced parking choices for customers. The 
owners of the lot have shared the costs of 
snowplowing for the area according to the split 
described above. In addition they have improved 
signage for the lots, paved the area, and installed 
drainage systems in the process.  

By combining the multiple lots into one parking 
area, the owners were further able to remove one 
of the driveways and thus added a brick 
pedestrian pathway running from the sidewalk to 
the parking lot. In practice this shared parking 
lot has been a boon for the business environment 
in West Concord, allowing customers to use one 
parking space for what would be otherwise be 
multiple spaces. 

New Haven, CT 
The Parking Authority in New Haven, in an effort to avoid the expansion or construction of new 
parking facilities in the downtown area, decided to focus on demand management in lieu of new 
parking construction. Through a parking and mobility study, Park New Haven found that the 
downtown area already had an ample supply of parking with room to grow over the next 10 years. 
In lieu of building new parking facilities, Park New Haven, in partnership with the City, upped its 
efforts to improve mobility by making New Haven a better place to walk, cycle, and ride transit. 
The Parking Authority and City, in partnership with major employers, are working to reduce 
demand through mobility interventions, and coordinated, district-level demand reduction 
programs. The Parking Authority is also aiming to improve livability by encouraging focused 
investment in walkable urban environments that encourage people to move to New Haven, while 
further providing many of the services and amenities that existing residents requested. 

The shift away from the auto-dependency paradigm has meant an estimated demand reduction of 
1,000 to 3,000 parking spaces. At a conservative estimate of $30,000 per space, this demand 
reduction could result in the savings of tens of millions of dollars from deferred parking 
construction, which can be invested elsewhere in the New Haven community. The change in 
thinking of how parking should be considered in New Haven has allowed for an improved 
downtown environment and positioned the City and Authority to be more flexible in how it 
addresses transportation needs. This shift will allow for improved safety throughout the area, 
with an improved bicycle network and pedestrian amenities, in addition to better transit 
connections in the downtown area. 

West Concord Shared Parking Area 

69

Item 1.



URBAN SUSTAINABILITY DIRECTORS' NETWORK CONVENING 
Burlington, VT | May 21-22, 2015 

 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates, Inc. | 18 

West Hartford, CT 
In 1960 the Town of West Hartford led a consolidation effort to improve the parking that served 
businesses on Farmington Avenue. Under the Town’s encouragement and recommendation, the 
lots for several businesses were combined into one single parking lot. While these lots were 
privately owned, the Town successfully lobbied the owners to consolidate their various parking 
lots by agreeing to maintain lots, including the striping, snow removal, and other aspects. In 
exchange for the continued effort by the Town, these lots function as paid, public parking. The 
effort by the Town of West Hartford allows for expanded public parking through cooperation with 
local parking lot owners, and provides an improved lot for those businesses served by the shared 
lot. 

Coconut Grove, Miami, FL 
The City of Miami sought to mitigate parking and development pressures in the popular shopping 
and entertainment district of Coconut Grove through flexible parking requirements. The City 
demands that developers or property owners select one of following three options to fulfill their 
parking requirements: 

 Provide off-street parking 

 Contract off-street parking spaces elsewhere 

 Pay in-lieu fees 

Most chose the third option. Under this scenario, businesses pay $50 per space per month to the 
City. The City in turn uses the fees to provide shared, structured parking, to improve transit 
service to the area, and to enhance pedestrian amenities. Through such flexible requirements the 
City is able to encourage and maintain a more pedestrian friendly environment, and maintain the 
character of the neighborhood. 

Walnut Creek, CA 
The City of Walnut Creek enables shared public-private parking operations, but is not directly 
involved in the management or contracting of operations.   

Shared public-private parking has been driven by the private sector: 70% of the downtown 
parking supply across 25 city-certified downtown lots is private parking, all managed by one 
operator. The operator, Regional Parking, was the catalyst for opening up underutilized supply 
after hours to public use for a fee, identifying the potential for private owners and operators to 
capitalize on underutilized supply after business hours.     

The after-hours operations, enforcement, and collection of revenue are contracted to the private 
operator.  Many of the lots are metered to set time limits, and enforced by the operator.  The 
operator may issue invoices for overdue fees or parking without payment.  Mail-in invoices are 
limited by the ordinance to $20. One example is the Bank of America parking lot, which is 
available to customers only and free of charge during the day, and open to the public for a fee in 
the evenings.  

The City’s role in enabling the operation of this public-private supply is simply to establish and 
enforce codes to ensure the site has proper signage before it is used by the public for a fee.  The 
Private Parking Lots Ordinance requires all private lots to be certified by the City and defines 

70

Item 1.



URBAN SUSTAINABILITY DIRECTORS' NETWORK CONVENING 
Burlington, VT | May 21-22, 2015 

 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates, Inc. | 19 

signage requirements.  The City takes no part in management, enforcement, or collection, and as 
such has no liability and insurance responsibilities.   

The City does not actively approach private owners to increase the supply, although they do rely 
on the private sector to provide much of the downtown parking, both through this type of shared-
public parking and through in-lieu fees. The City has found more and more businesses are seeking 
to capitalize on their parking, adding a few certified public-private lots each year. 

The City had to establish a policy on who had the right to provide public-private shared parking 
for a fee, as well as to set the standard for adequate signage so customers could be clear on what 
service they were using, when they could use it, and how much it would cost, as well as set a limit 
to the maximum cost per day.  There have been complaints from the public, but according to the 
Public Services Parking Garages Manager, the shared public parking practice is working well. 

Pasadena, CA 
Old Pasadena has gained a reputation for being a pedestrian-friendly, vibrant downtown that 
combines a mix of uses with easy automobile access.  Much of the area’s success can be attributed 
to its parking management policies that have spawned a wide variety of streetscape improvements 
and new opportunities for increased transit ridership and development.  

Revenue collected through an in-lieu parking fee program has helped to fund two public parking 
structures, and provided a public contribution to a private structure that is open to the public. 
These in-lieu fees provide only a small portion (5%) of the funding needed to build and operate 
the structures, but they do create the link between the waiver in minimum parking requirements 
and the provision of public parking.  

A five-floor garage (one floor underground) on North Raymond Street is owned by the Marriott 
Corporation, which uses the at-grade and above-ground portions of the garage for hotel guests.  
The City leases the subterranean portion of the garage, which is open to the public 24/7.  The 
subterranean and above ground portions of the garage are on separate revenue control systems, 
have well-marked separate entrances, and are managed separately. As with all Pasadena-owned 
parking lots, the public parking structure provides 90 minutes of free parking, and then charges 
$2 per hour up to a maximum of $6 per day, and a $5 flat rate after 10 p.m. This provides short-
term spaces for visitors who are unwilling to pay the $1 per hour charge for metered spaces.  

By leasing these spaces, the City has converted private parking limited to one user type into public 
parking. This public parking supply is shared between different uses, fostering greater efficiency 
in the parking supply using, and reducing the demand for expanded capacity.  

In another public-private arrangement, the City has built a garage on land owned by the First 
Baptist Church, and leases public spaces back from the church. Prior to automating the parking 
payment system in 2007, the church received free parking at the garage. Since automating the 
system, there is a $5 flat daily rate from 4pm Friday to 5am Monday. In 2023, the lease on the 
garage expires, and the garage will have lived its useful life; at that point, ownership reverts to the 
church. 

Arlington, VA 
The private sector provides most of the public, off-street parking in Arlington County.  County 
planning staff is reluctant to develop stand-alone public parking facilities, in part as a response to 
decades of minimum parking requirements that have created a consistent surplus of parking in 

71

Item 1.



URBAN SUSTAINABILITY DIRECTORS' NETWORK CONVENING 
Burlington, VT | May 21-22, 2015 

 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates, Inc. | 20 

most of its transit and mixed-use, commercial corridors. In most cases, market opportunities 
have led the owners of over-parked developments to find ways to open up their parking to the 
public — either during off-peak hours, or even during peak-use hours when there has been 
capacity.  

County Planning staff has responded by encouraging, and when possible rewarding or even 
requiring, such practices as a means of generating well-distributed public parking across its key 
commercial corridors without having to invest in new facilities.  

Within Site Plan Agreements for new development amid its Metrorail corridors, the County will 
often require that some or most on-site parking be shared and open to general public parking 
during specified times. The County has also used Parking Development Agreements in 
conjunction with joint-development projects to ensure well-managed, public parking is included 
within facilities providing accessory parking to private development. Finally, the Columbia Pike 
District form-based zoning code outlines minimum requirements for shared-parking for all 
private development.  

In each case, the County’s Parking Manager must try to ensure that as many management issues 
(including pricing, physical, and operational issues) are addressed as early as possible to ensure 
that “shared public parking” actually functions as shared public parking. In some cases, the 
impact of spaces built as shared parking has been undermined by access issues such as facility 
operating hours, staffing, configuration, and access management. In the most common scenario, 
parking facilities that primarily serve buildings with regular weekday operating hours (Monday – 
Friday, 9:00 AM – 5:00 PM) resist the added cost and liability of keeping facilities open to public 
parking after hours. Nonetheless, the County continues to seek to provide public shared parking 
within large facilities as its primary strategy for generating public shared parking in its transit 
corridors.  

Montgomery County, MD 
Beginning in 1947, Montgomery County began to create parking lot districts, or PLDs, in 
Bethesda, Montgomery Hills, Silver Spring, and Wheaton. These four PLDs were created in high 
parking demand areas such as business and commercial areas, with the emphasis on controlling 
local parking requirements, and maximizing parking efficiency. Each PLD is created with its own 
enterprise fund with the various privileges. Each PLD: 

 Receives all parking revenue, including citations 

 Includes revenue from ad valorem tax/parking benefit charge 

 Funds can be used to finance mixed-use development projects, transit service, NMT, 
lighting, streetscape, etc. 

The PLDs function, in part, to lessen the need for parking expansion and to encourage the 
efficient use of existing parking. Businesses, in lieu of creating their own parking supply, can pay 
fees that are used to finance the construction and management of parking spaces in centrally 
located public garages that service various developments. These fees allow for the consolidation of 
parking spaces, and the maximization of parking use. Though Montgomery County policy does 
not encourage the building of publicly owned or managed garages, the County may use this 
revenue to finance publicly accessible spaces in appropriate private garages. 

  

72

Item 1.



URBAN SUSTAINABILITY DIRECTORS' NETWORK CONVENING 
Burlington, VT | May 21-22, 2015 

 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates, Inc. | 21 

4 MAKING SHARED PARKING A 
REALITY 

To introduce some shared parking into the system was met with the question "Where do I start?". 
Although every community and process is different, the team identified 10 key steps to making 
shared parking a part of the conversation and transportation system. 

10 Steps to Making Shared Parking a Reality Summary:  

1. Identify the need (do a pro forma, count cars, data data data) 

2. Basic educational materials 

3. Build a coalition (identify a champion, talk to all stakeholders) 

4. Identify the obstacles (zoning, prior arrangements, perception, etc.) 

5. Develop the regulatory framework (zoning, authority, partnership, etc.) 

6. Develop shared parking resource library 

7. Develop targeted marketing & educational materials 

8. Find a pilot project 

9. Establish quasi-independent sharing entity/responsibility  

10. Reporting & monitoring (make people happy – be transparent!)  

 

10 Steps to Making Shared Parking a Reality Details:  

1. Identify the need (do a pro forma, count cars, data data data) 
− Purpose 

o Facility expansion? 

o Cost-effectiveness? 

o Reducing parking demand? 

o Resolving user conflicts & complaints? 

− Identify the actual need/market 

o Parking utilization study 

o Citation data 

o On-going monitoring 

− Do a cost & revenue pro forma (will this pencil out?) 

o Sufficient reserve to cover under-performance? (factor this into the overall 
parking system) 

o Sufficient user base to fund arrangements + more? 

o Considerations include new assessed valuation, cost to terminate existing 
relationships, legal fees, improvement costs, maintenance/operations costs 

2. Basic educational materials 
− Parking economics 

− Land use trade-offs 

− Economic opportunity 

73

Item 1.



URBAN SUSTAINABILITY DIRECTORS' NETWORK CONVENING 
Burlington, VT | May 21-22, 2015 

 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates, Inc. | 22 

− Downtown livability 

− Customer convenience 

− Etc. 

3. Build a coalition (identify a champion, talk to all stakeholders) 
− A champion(s) (and replacements!) 

− Businesses 

− Land owners 

− Employees 

− Residents 

− Developers 

− Banks 

4. Identify the obstacles (zoning, prior arrangements, perception, etc.) 
− Base code or special permit? 

− Licensure? 

− Lease termination? 

− Improvement costs? 

− Operations/maintenance? 

− Opposition? (NIMBY, favoritism, privatization, land banking…) 

5. Develop the regulatory framework (zoning, authority, partnership, etc.) 
− Shared parking ordinance 

− Licensing, assessing, etc. 

− Design guidelines 

− Municipal department, BID, Authority, enterprise, private operator? 

− Funding streams, improvement fund, community benefits 

6. Develop shared parking resource library 
− Sample language 

− Indemnity information 

− Insurance information 

− Zoning/property rights retainage  

− Precedents 

− Reasonable comparables for the banks 

− Other tools 

7. Develop targeted marketing & educational materials 
− Branding 

− Economic development marketing 

− Business attraction marketing 

8. Find a pilot project 
− Proof of concept 

− Supportive stakeholders 

74

Item 1.



URBAN SUSTAINABILITY DIRECTORS' NETWORK CONVENING 
Burlington, VT | May 21-22, 2015 

 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates, Inc. | 23 

− Community acceptance  

9. Establish quasi-independent sharing entity/responsibility 
− Maintenance/Operations (including ala carte) 

− Signing/Information (include technology) 

10. Reporting & monitoring (make people happy – be transparent!)  
− Evaluate actual parking demand/parking utilization study for this facility and 

surrounding parking areas; compare to baseline 

− Evaluate citation data 

− Evaluate actual revenues and expenses 

− Create case study 
  

75

Item 1.



URBAN SUSTAINABILITY DIRECTORS' NETWORK CONVENING 
Burlington, VT | May 21-22, 2015 

 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates, Inc. | 24 

5 MAKING THE CASE FOR SHARED 
PARKING: RESOURCES 

Many great resources already exist to help make the case for sharing parking. Here are some of 
the favorites: 

Source Link 

ITDP: What is shared parking? https://www.itdp.org/wp-content/uploads/2014/12/Shared-
Parking_ITDP.pdf 

Shared Parking: TDM Encyclopedia http://www.vtpi.org/tdm/tdm89.htm 

Urban Land Institute Shared Parking (book) 

GA Shared Parking Toolkit http://www.dca.state.ga.us/intra_nonpub/Toolkit/Guides/SharePrkng.pdf 

Leasing Property primer http://www.referenceforbusiness.com/small/Inc-Mail/Leasing-
Property.html 

Shared Parking in Union Square https://unionsquaremain.org/wp-content/uploads/2013/08/Shared-
Parking-Report-Czerwienski-reduced.pdf 

Parking Management: Strategies, 
Evaluation and Planning 

http://www.vtpi.org/park_man.pdf 

 

  

76

Item 1.



URBAN SUSTAINABILITY DIRECTORS' NETWORK CONVENING 
Burlington, VT | May 21-22, 2015 

 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates, Inc. | 25 

6 CONVENING PRESENTATION 
MATERIALS 

  

77

Item 1.



 

USDN Parking Convening 2.0 
Making the Case for Parking Agreements: Shared 
Parking in the Larger Context 

Jason Schrieber and Lisa Jacobson, Nelson\Nygaard 
Burlington, VT | May 21, 2015 

78

Item 1.



 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates, Inc. 2 

79

Item 1.



3 

New York, NY 

Somerville, MA 
80

Item 1.



81

Item 1.



82

Item 1.



6 

Berkeley, CA 

Arlington, VA 

Washington, DC 
83

Item 1.



7 

Lexington 

84

Item 1.



 

8 

Unutilized Remote Parking is a Wasted Asset 

85

Item 1.



Brown, Hess and Shoup 2003 

86

Item 1.



■ Show pic of lot about to be redeveloped 

10 

$20,000 

$20,000 
$20,000 

$20,000 
$20,000 

$20,000 

$20,000 

$20,000 

$20,000 

$20,000 

$20,000 

$20,000 
$20,000 

$20,000 
$20,000 

$20,000 
$20,000 
$20,000 

$20,000 
$20,000 $20,000 $20,000 

$20,000 
$20,000 

$20,000 
$20,000 

$20,000 

87

Item 1.



What Land Value Are We Losing? 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

        Parking Space 
     10’ x 20’ = 200 ft2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Bedroom    9’ x 11’ = 99 ft2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Office Cubicle 
8’ x 9’ = 72 ft2 

Restaurant Table 
5’ x 5’ = 25 ft2 

88

Item 1.



89

Item 1.



Cars on a street 

Why Plan for other Modes? 

90

Item 1.



People in Cars 

Why Plan for Other Modes? 

91

Item 1.



People on a bus 

So You Can Drive 

92

Item 1.



People on bikes 

 

So You Can Drive 

93

Item 1.



Audi’s Autonomous Car 

94

Item 1.



 

18 

95

Item 1.



Institute of Transportation Engineers  
Parking Generation Manual 

 The parking generation 
rate is the peak parking 
occupancy observed 
at a site. 

 Data are derived from 
single-use suburban 
developments with free 
parking and little or no 
transit ridership. 

96

Item 1.



97

Item 1.



Minimum Parking Requirements - Source 

Example: Office Parks 
Peak Occupancy Rates, in 
spaces per 1000 sf of 
building area: 

Lowest:  0.94 spaces  
Average: 2.52 spaces 
Highest:  4.25 spaces 

Typical requirement: 
  4.0 spaces/1000 sf 
 

98

Item 1.



Real observed demand in downtowns around the US 

 

Source Locations  

Average Non-
Residential Peak-

Hour Demand 
Nelson\Nygaard California & Washington State 

(Chico, Palo Alto, Santa Monica) 
1.75 

Marshall and Garrick Rural New England 
(Brattleboro, Northampton, West Hartford, 
Avon, Glastonbury) 

1.84 

Bay Area MTC San Francisco Bay Area 1.73 
Average 1.77 

99

Item 1.



100

Item 1.



101

Item 1.



-

200 

400 

600 

800 

1,000 

1,200 

1,400 

1,600 

1,800 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Office (150k SF):       
 Real Demand Unshared Supply 

2pm 

102

Item 1.



-

200 

400 

600 

800 

1,000 

1,200 

1,400 

1,600 

1,800 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Restaurant (150k SF):        
 Real Demand     Unshared Supply 

12pm 

103

Item 1.



-

200 

400 

600 

800 

1,000 

1,200 

1,400 

1,600 

1,800 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Unshared Supply 
Residential (1000 units):        
 Real Demand     

2 am 

104

Item 1.



-

200 

400 

600 

800 

 

 

 

 

 

-

200 

400 

600 

800 

1,000 

1,200 

1,400 

1,600 

1,800 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Shared Uses: 
     Real Demand     

38% Less 

Office 

Restaurant 

Residential 

Restaurant 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Residential 

Unshared Supply 

Office 

105

Item 1.



Shared Parking Principles: 

■ Permit a developer to provide less than the minimum 
parking normally required if two or more uses have peak 
demand at different times of day or day of week 
– e.g. office peak demand M-F 9AM-5PM; housing 

peak demand 6PM-8PM. 

 

106

Item 1.



ULI Shared Parking Model 

 

107

Item 1.



Needham, MA: Shared Parking Pilot 

108

Item 1.



Needham, MA: Shared Parking Pilot 

109

Item 1.



 

      ? 
? 

? 

? 

? 

? 

Needham, MA: Shared Parking Pilot 

110

Item 1.



Sample Formula for Mixed-Use Parking Credit 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Multiply the normal requirement for each use by the 

percentage 
 Sum the values for each column 
 Highest column total is the effective requirement 
 

Weekday Weekend 
Night Day Evening Day Evening 

  Midnight-7AM 7AM-5PM 5PM-Midnight 6AM-6PM 6PM-Midnight 
Residential 100% 60% 90% 80% 90% 
Office/Industrial 5% 100% 10% 10% 5% 
Commercial retail 5% 80% 90% 100% 70% 
Hotel 70% 70% 100% 70% 100% 

111

Item 1.



Category 

 

 

 

Existing Requirements 

New Requirements 

Metric Type 

Mixed-Use 
Feet First 

Zone 1 

Transit-
Friendly 

Zone 2 

Other Districts 

Zone 3 
Residential Min Max Min Max Min Max 

Single 
Family 

3 plus 1 additional min. for 
3,000 SF+  DU 

Shared - - - - - - 

Reserved 1.00 2.00 2.00 3.00 2.00 4.00 

Multi-
Family 

1 per studio/ 1bedroom 
unit 
2 per 2/3 bedroom unit  
3 per 4+ bedroom unit 
Plus: 
Min. of 2 guest spaces for 
each 4 units, up to 12  
1 per each 4 units for 13th  
to 48th unit 
1 per each additional 6 
units above 48 

DU 

Shared 0.75 3.00 1.00 3.25 1.25 3.50 

Reserved 1.00 2.00 1.25 2.25 1.50 2.50 

Progressive Shared Parking Code – Montgomery County 

112

Item 1.



Category 

 

 

 

Existing Requirements 

New Requirements 

Metric Type 

Mixed-Use 
Feet First 

Zone 1 

Transit-
Friendly 

Zone 2 

Other Districts 

Zone 3 

Non-Residential Min Max Min Max Min Max 

Office 
Commercial 

4 per every 1,000 SF of floor 
area 

1,000 
GLA  

Shared 1.00 3.50 1.50 4.25 2.00 5.00 

Reserved 1.50 2.50 2.00 3.00 2.50 3.50 

Retail 
Commercial 

4 per every 1,000 SF of floor 
area 

1,000 
GLA  

Shared 1.00 3.50 1.50 4.25 2.00 5.00 

Reserved 1.50 2.50 2.00 3.00 2.50 3.50 

Restaurant 
4 per 1,000 SF or 1 per 3 
seats where seating 
numbers designated   

1,000 
GLA  

Shared 2.00 5.00 5.00 12.50 8.00 20.00 

Reserved 2.50 4.00 7.50 10.00 12.50 15.00 

Hotel/ 
Resort 

1 per guest room, plus 2 per 
resident manager, plus 1 per 
20 rooms 

Guest 
Room 

Shared 0.50 1.50 0.75 1.75 1.00 2.00 

Reserved 1.00 1.25 1.25 1.50 1.50 1.75 

All Other 
Uses See Zoning Code Shared Established by special review 

Progressive Shared Parking Code – Montgomery County 

113

Item 1.



Montgomery County, MD 
 Sets minimums and maximums 
 Mins: number of spaces needed to support on-site uses in 

shared-parking environment 
 Max: greatest number of spaces that should be needed as 

reserved spaces without burdening the shared supply 

114

Item 1.



 

115

Item 1.



 

116

Item 1.



Medford Garage | Chevalier Access: High/Forest Streetfront 
Source: Utile, Inc., 

Medford MA 

117

Item 1.



Medford Garage | Existing Site 
Source: Utile, Inc. 

73 spaces 
118

Item 1.



Medford Garage | Garage View: Full Site 
Source: Utile, Inc. 

238 spaces 
119

Item 1.



LOCATION 
BASED 
PARKING 
OCCUPANCY 

120

Item 1.



West Square 
570 Parking Spaces 

East Square 
750 Parking Spaces 

Medford MA 

121

Item 1.



Medford Garage | Chevalier Access: High/Forest Streetfront 
Source: Utile, Inc., 

Medford MA 

122

Item 1.



Barrier to 
Utilization 
of Eastern 

Spaces 
 

Medford MA 

123

Item 1.



PEDESTRIAN LEVEL-OF-SERVICE 
AVERAGE 
Pedestrian 

Delay 

A 
B 
C 
D 
E 
F 

Secs Likelihood of 
Noncompliance 

<10 Low 
10-20 
21-30 Moderate 
31-40 
41-60 High 
>60 Very High 124

Item 1.



PEDESTRIAN LEVEL-OF-SERVICE 
MAXIMUM 
Pedestrian 

Delay 

A 
B 
C 
D 
E 
F 

Secs Likelihood of 
Noncompliance 

<10 Low 
10-20 
21-30 Moderate 
31-40 
41-60 High 
>60 Very High 125

Item 1.



SQUARE REDESIGN 
Medford MA 

126

Item 1.



PROPOSED DESIGN 
NEW DELAY 
5-MINUTE WALKING AREA 

127

Item 1.



5 MINUTE WALKING WITH MAXIMUM DELAY 

198 

375 
410 393 387 

327 

280 

103 
68 85 91 

151 

0% 

10% 

20% 

30% 

40% 

50% 

60% 

70% 

80% 

90% 

100% 

700 900 1100 1300 1500 1700 

Available 

Occupied 

85% = 406 

Effectively Available = 0 

Reserve 15% = 72 

128

Item 1.



235 

505 

602 
559 

494 
457 

575 

305 

208 
251 

316 353 

0% 

10% 

20% 

30% 

40% 

50% 

60% 

70% 

80% 

90% 

100% 

700 900 1100 1300 1500 1700 

Available 

Occupied 

5 MINUTE WALKING WITH IMPROVED DELAY 

85% = 689 

Reserve 15% = 121 

Effectively Available = 87 

129

Item 1.



130

Item 1.



 

131

Item 1.



Arlington VA – Rosslyn-Ballston corridor 

 

132

Item 1.



Single family homes 
 
 
 

Single family homes 

Arlington VA – Rosslyn-Ballston corridor 

ROSSLYN 

COURTHOUSE 

CLARENDON 

VA. SQUARE 

Single family homes 

BALLSTON 

D.C. 

133

Item 1.



 

Arlington VA – Rosslyn-Ballston corridor 

134

Item 1.



• All parking charged at 
market-rate 

• Prepaid ParkSmart 
debit cards can be 
used to pay for 
metered parking 

• Parking brochure  
o Locations of all 

public on- and off-
street parking in the 
5 villages 

o Information on 
alternative 
transportation 
options 

No Park-and-Ride 

135

Item 1.



ARLINGTON COUNTY 

 

Credit: MobilityLab.org 

136

Item 1.



Arlington  Corridor  vs.   Fairfax County 

Source:  WMATA May 2002 weekday Metrorail ridership and access data 

39,500 daily MetroRail 
boardings 

12.9% 
Auto (incl. Drop- off) 

73.0% 

2.0% 

7.5% 

3.6% 

1.0% 

Walk 

Metrobus 

Bus/Vanpool 

Other 

14.6%

9.3%

4.8%

57.6%

12.0%

1.7% Walk

Metrobus

Other Bus/VanpAuto (incl. drop-off)

Other

No Response/Unknown

29,250 daily MetroRail boardings 

Auto 

137

Item 1.



 

61 

138

Item 1.



The Parking 
Authority… 

 

Nelson\Nygaard | Tighe & Bond | Newman Architects | Ninigret 

139

Item 1.



 

Nelson\Nygaard | Tighe & Bond | Newman Architects | Ninigret 

140

Item 1.



 

141

Item 1.



 

142

Item 1.



 

143

Item 1.



GetDowntown Program 

Ann Arbor, MI Source: http://www.getdowntown.org/ 
144

Item 1.



Go!Pass – Employee Benefit 

Ann Arbor, MI 

 $10  

 $696  

 $1,740  

 $-    

 $200  

 $400  

 $600  

 $800  

 $1,000  

 $1,200  

 $1,400  

 $1,600  

 $1,800  

 $2,000  

145

Item 1.



AAATA - Ann Arbor Area Transit Agency 
DDA – Ann Arbor Downtown Development Authority 
 

How it is worked 

AAATA estimates the cost 
per ride 

AAATA and DDA negotiate 
a discounted price   

Employers purchase the 
passes at $10/employee 

DDA pays for the rest to 
AAATA 

Provide monthly 
ridership report 

Provide monthly 
newsletter 

Parking 
Revenue 

Ann Arbor, MI 
146

Item 1.



Go!Pass ridership doubled in past decade 

Source: 2013 DDA Impact Report Ann Arbor, MI 
147

Item 1.



Go!Pass  changed commuting modes 

Source: 2013 DDA Impact Report Ann Arbor, MI 
148

Item 1.



Go!Pass freed up road space and parking demand 

Source: 2013 DDA Impact Report Ann Arbor, MI 
149

Item 1.



Go!Pass benefits the environment 

Source: 2013 DDA Impact Report Ann Arbor, MI 
150

Item 1.



Mobility Study 
 

 

 

151

Item 1.



Project Study Area 

 

Nelson\Nygaard | Tighe & Bond | Newman Architects | Ninigret 

152

Item 1.



Key Issue: Off-Street Parking (Supply) 

Off-Street Parking Spaces: 

~19,000 
153

Item 1.



Key Issue: Off-Street Parking (Area) 

154

Item 1.



 Supply & Demand 

78 

155

Item 1.



Major Roads 

Route 34 

Columbus & Church 

Key Issue: High Traffic Volumes 

156

Item 1.



 

Calm Traffic Speeds Key Issue: Speeding Traffic 

157

Item 1.



 

Enhance Pedestrian Crossings Key Issue: Pedestrian Crossings 

158

Item 1.



 

Nelson\Nygaard | Tighe & Bond | Newman Architects | Ninigret 

Bike Lane 
Sharrow 
Unmarked Bike Route 

Gaps in Bicycle Network 

High Volume 
of Cyclists 

Key Issue: Gaps in Bicycle Network 

159

Item 1.



 

Key Issue: Safety 

160

Item 1.



Nelson\Nygaard | Tighe & Bond | Newman Architects | Ninigret 

Bicycle Network Enhancements Transit Network 

161

Item 1.



Nelson\Nygaard | Tighe & Bond | Newman Architects | Ninigret 

Bicycle Network Enhancements 
New Haven Green 

Start 

End 

Existing Route Pattern 

Desired Route 

Transit Network: Need to go downtown to go anywhere 

162

Item 1.



Shuttle Network 

163

Item 1.



Institutions’ TDM Programs: Major Progress 

TDM Strategy Provided By 
Pre-tax transit benefit YNHH, YSM 
Ridesharing Program YNHH, TSM 
Ridesharing Incentives YSM 
Mass Transit Subsidies YNHH 
Vanpool Program YNHH 
Telecommuting YNHH, YSM 
Commuter Buses YNHH 
Discounted Motorcycle 
Parking 

YNHH 

Bike Commute Program YNHH, YU 
Walk to Work Program CMHC 
Car-Share Program YU, Park New Haven 
Bike-Share Program YU 

164

Item 1.



 Outreach 

88 

165

Item 1.



Make Change Possible – Realizing City Vision will be  
cheaper, better design more viable, with less parking. 

Purpose 

89 

166

Item 1.



BID Leases from Public: Manayunk, Philadelphia, PA 

 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates, Inc. 90 

167

Item 1.



Manayunk, Philadelphia, PA 

■ Special Services District (BID) leases parking from City 
■ Leases and manages 5 lots 

– Pays to improve lots 
– 1-2 year leases and month-to-month 
–  O&M, including signs and lights 

■ Uses a third-party 
– Flexibility, large company 
– ~$30,000/yr for lot insurance 
– Takes SSD out of parking operations day-to-day 

■ Parking revenue is 30% of total SSD revenues 
■ Would expand parking lots if/when available 
■ Rates need to be approved by City Council 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates, Inc. 91 

168

Item 1.



City leases from Private: Sacramento, CA 

 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates, Inc. 92 

169

Item 1.



Sacramento, CA 

■ Manages 17,000 parking spaces (10,000 are leased) 
■ 124 person staff 
■ Two types of agreements: 

– Enforcement only 
• Revenue goes to City; no management fee 

– Full management 
• Facility treated like it is City owned 
• Have increased revenue in some facilities by 70% 

■ Terms vary lease to lease but use standard template 
■ Will take on short-term deficit to avoid building more 

parking 
■ Uses City insurance 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates, Inc. 93 

170

Item 1.



Public requires Private: Arlington, VA 

 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates, Inc. 94 

171

Item 1.



Arlington, VA 

■ Private sector provides most of the public, off-street supply 
■ Require private owners/operators to make some/all of their 

parking publicly accessible 
■ Zoning code (Site Plan Requirement) 

– Allows 100% of parking to be provided off-street through 
agreement 

■ Has some Parking Development Agreements 
■ No insurance coverage, maintenance, enforcement, etc. 

 
 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates, Inc. 95 

172

Item 1.



Private works with Private: West Concord, MA 

 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates, Inc. 96 

173

Item 1.



West Concord, MA 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates, Inc. 97 

 ■ 1999 
■ Special permit 
■ 4 landowners 
■ 45/45/5/5 split 
■ Paved, signs, 

drainage added 
■ Split snowplow 
■ Added brick 

alleyway 
access 

■ Insurance 
unclear 

174

Item 1.



Public works with Private: West Hartford, CT 

 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates, Inc. 98 

175

Item 1.



West Hartford, CT 

 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates, Inc. 99 

■ 1960 
■ Town led 

consolidation 
■ Town 

maintains, 
stripes, etc. 

■ All day public 
parking 

■ Priced 
 

176

Item 1.



Public requires Private: Coconut Grove, Miami, FL 
Developers or property owners have three choices for satisfying 

minimum parking requirements:  
– off-street parking 
– contract spaces elsewhere 
– pay in lieu fees 
    $50 per space per month 
    or $10,000 per stall 

Collected revenue goes to: 
– Provide shared, structured parking 
– Improve transit service  
– Maintain the sidewalks and pedestrian amenities 

Miami’s Coconut Grove, FL 
177

Item 1.



Public requires Private: Montgomery County, MD 

■ Parking Lot District (PLD) created between 1947 – 1951 
– Bethesda, Montgomery Hills, Silver Spring, Wheaton 

■ PLD is an example of a Parking Management District 
(PMD) 

■ Each PLD has its own enterprise fund 
– Receives all parking revenue, including citations 
– Includes revenue from ad valorem tax/parking benefit charge 
– Funds can be used to finance mixed-use development 

projects, transit service, NMT, lighting, streetscape, etc. 
■ Parking revenue covers 90% of parking costs 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates, Inc. 101 

178

Item 1.



Montgomery County, MD 

Montgomery County, MD 

■ In-lieu fees may be used to finance the construction and management of 
parking spaces in centrally located public garages that serve various 
developments, including ones that opt for in-lieu fees instead of providing 
on-site parking.  

■ Fees allow consolidation of parking spaces and maximization of parking 
use. While County policy does not encourage the building of 
publicly owned or managed garages, the County may use this 
revenue to finance publicly accessible spaces in appropriate 
private garages.    

179

Item 1.



These two houses share a back fence 

https://maps.google.com/maps?saddr=Anna%20Catherine%20Dr&daddr=Summer%20
Rain%20Dr&hl=en&ll=28.532697,-81.161142&spn=0.001133,0.00217&sll=28.53225,-
81.161858&sspn=0.002116,0.002599&geocode=FVBgswEd85Ep-w;FfhfswEdiJUp-
w&t=h&mra=mift&mrsp=1&sz=19&z=19&utm_source=buffer&buffer_share=c886b   

180

Item 1.

https://maps.google.com/maps?saddr=Anna%20Catherine%20Dr&daddr=Summer%20Rain%20Dr&hl=en&ll=28.532697,-81.161142&spn=0.001133,0.00217&sll=28.53225,-81.161858&sspn=0.002116,0.002599&geocode=FVBgswEd85Ep-w;FfhfswEdiJUp-w&t=h&mra=mift&mrsp=1&sz=19&z=19&utm_source=buffer&buffer_share=c886b
https://maps.google.com/maps?saddr=Anna%20Catherine%20Dr&daddr=Summer%20Rain%20Dr&hl=en&ll=28.532697,-81.161142&spn=0.001133,0.00217&sll=28.53225,-81.161858&sspn=0.002116,0.002599&geocode=FVBgswEd85Ep-w;FfhfswEdiJUp-w&t=h&mra=mift&mrsp=1&sz=19&z=19&utm_source=buffer&buffer_share=c886b
https://maps.google.com/maps?saddr=Anna%20Catherine%20Dr&daddr=Summer%20Rain%20Dr&hl=en&ll=28.532697,-81.161142&spn=0.001133,0.00217&sll=28.53225,-81.161858&sspn=0.002116,0.002599&geocode=FVBgswEd85Ep-w;FfhfswEdiJUp-w&t=h&mra=mift&mrsp=1&sz=19&z=19&utm_source=buffer&buffer_share=c886b
https://maps.google.com/maps?saddr=Anna%20Catherine%20Dr&daddr=Summer%20Rain%20Dr&hl=en&ll=28.532697,-81.161142&spn=0.001133,0.00217&sll=28.53225,-81.161858&sspn=0.002116,0.002599&geocode=FVBgswEd85Ep-w;FfhfswEdiJUp-w&t=h&mra=mift&mrsp=1&sz=19&z=19&utm_source=buffer&buffer_share=c886b


Yet it is 7 miles between them 

181

Item 1.



Unbundle parking costs 

House A: 
• 2,000 sq. ft. 
• 3 bedrooms 
• 2-car garage 
• $500,000 

House B: 
• 2,300 sq. ft. 
• 4 bedrooms 
• 1-car garage 
• $500,000 

  
182

Item 1.



General Plan Update 

One size fits all bundled parking = 
reduced housing affordability 

Source:  Todd Litman, Parking Requirement Impacts on Housing Affordability, Victoria Transport Policy Institute (2005). 

183

Item 1.



January 22, 2010 Who’s unbundling for sale? 

   San Francisco 
• Four Seasons:  $150/month for self-park; 
$250/month for valet parking (2004) 
• 300 3rd Street:  All parking owned by 3rd party, 
residents lease parking at market rate 

  Seattle (moda) 
•  All parking spaces leased month-to-month 
•  251 units sold out in one week 

  St. Louis, MO (Ballpark Lofts) 
•  25% of buyers opted for no parking space 

184

Item 1.



  Washington, D.C. (multiple examples) 
•  Developer typically leases parking facility to a 3rd party garage operator 
•  Parking spaces then typically leased to homebuyers for $200/month 
(2004) 
•  Unused spaces can sometimes be leased to other residents or 
employees in the neighborhood 

 Chicago (multiple examples) 
•  Most common is for HOA to own all parking spaces 
•  Where parking demand is low, spaces are assigned to units at a 
nominal charge and often used for guest parking 
•  Where parking demand is high, monthly costs range from $150-$200 / 
month (2004) 
•  Tandem parking are generally less expensive and valet parking is 
generally more expensive 

 

Who’s unbundling for sale? 

185

Item 1.



San Francisco Carshare Regulation 2008 

Planning Code, Section 167: 
 If more than 10 units, parking must be leased or sold separately 

from the rental or purchase fees for the life of the unit 
 Parking requirements were lowered or eliminated at the same 

time 

Units Space 
0-49 units  0 car share spaces 
50-200 units  1 car share space 
201 or more units  1, plus 1 for every 200 

dwelling units over 200 

Planning Code, Section 166: 
 

186

Item 1.



Why Shared Parking? 

 Available parking at all times 
 Enhanced resident & visitor experience 
 Increased economic activity & vitality 
 Longer stays that boost merchant & 

restaurant business 
 Reduced congestion & pollution 
 More inviting public realm 
 Vibrant street life 
 A cheap new garage! 

187

Item 1.



 

USDN Parking Convening 2.0 
Addressing Major Challenges 

Jason Schrieber and Lisa Jacobson, Nelson\Nygaard 
Burlington, VT | May 21, 2015 

188

Item 1.



Shared Parking Agreements 

Ownership-Use 

Private-
Public 

Public-
Private 

Private-
Private 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates, Inc. 2 

More specifically: 
■ Private leases to public 
■ Public leases private 
■ Private leases to private 
■ Public allows other public 
■ Private sells to public 
■ Public sells to private 
■ Public requires private 
■ Public incentivizes private 
■ Private funds public 
■ Joint development 
■ And more! 

189

Item 1.



Successful Shared Parking Agreements 

■ Cooperation between two or more parties 
 

■ Reduce concentrated parking pressure  
 

■ More efficiently use existing parking 
 

■ Build fewer parking spaces/decreased paved surfaces 
 

■ Improve neighborhood/business climate 
 

■ Mutually beneficial 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates, Inc. 3 

190

Item 1.



Approach 

■ One by one 
 

■ High demand 
 

■ Zoning 
 

■ Incentives 
 

■ Technology 
 

■ Districtwide 
 

■ Mobility district 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates, Inc. 4 

191

Item 1.



Major Hurdles 

■ Liability/insurance 
■ Zoning 
■ History 
■ Personalities 
■ Property valuation/ 

assessment (more taxes) 
■ Development rights 
■ Security 
■ Trust (public-private) 
■ No revenue stream 
■ Employment contracts (Union) 
■ Balance primary vs. secondary 

user needs 
■ Time of day patterns 

 
 

■ Operations (clean, plow) 
■ Ownership 
■ Current tenant relationships/ 

retention 
■ Making the case 
■ Information/knowledge/ 

education 
■ Enforcement 
■ Customer communications 
■ Parking WITH multimodal 

environment 
■ Changing/growing 

development 
■ Long-term commitment 
■ Land banking 

5 Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates, Inc. 

192

Item 1.



Major Hurdles (cont’d) 

■ New taxes – additional 
revenue impact 

■ Bank financing 
■ Other regulatory structures 
■ Parking competition (free 

adjacent parking) 
■ Competition for leasing 
■ Previous lease agreements 

 

6 Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates, Inc. 

193

Item 1.



Major Challenges 

■ Liability/insurance 
■ Lease terms 
■ Operations and maintenance 
■ Rates 
■ Revenue sharing 
■ Access restrictions 
■ Design/circulation 
■ Technology 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates, Inc. 7 

194

Item 1.



Liability/insurance 

Considerations 
■ Who is responsible? Who 

should be responsible? 
– City 
– Private 
– Parking Authority 
– BID or similar 
– Third party operator 

■ What does municipal 
insurance cover? What 
does private insurance 
cover? Is there a premium? 

■ Should you use a hold 
harmless agreement? 
 
 

Challenges 
■ Someone needs to own it 
■ Economies of scale helps 

drive down cost 
 
Opportunities 
■ May already be covered in 

municipal and private 
insurance 

■ Figuring this out overcomes 
#1 perception barrier 

8 Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates, Inc. 

195

Item 1.



Liability/insurance 

■ Indemnify 
■ Hold harmless agreements 
■ Are there more experienced 

shared parking insurance 
agencies? 

■ ** Insurance FAQ 

 

9 Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates, Inc. 

196

Item 1.



Lease terms 

Considerations 
■ Flexibility 
■ Benefits for both parties 
■ Development opportunity 
■ Pro forma 

 
■ Types: 

– Month to month 
– Long term 
– Joint agreement 
– Property sale 

 
 
 

Challenges 
■ Capital or O&M investment 

in short-term lease 
■ Facility may be pulled with 

short notice (cancellation 
notice) 

■ Zoning 
 

Opportunities 
■ Flexibility 
■ Used to fill gaps 
■ Savings clause (month-to-

month) 
■ Amortization clauses 
■ Zoning opt out? 

 11 Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates, Inc. 

197

Item 1.



Operations and maintenance 

Considerations 
■ Paving 
■ Lines 
■ Signs (regulatory) 
■ Signs (facility) 
■ Repairs 
■ Lights 
■ Technology capital and 

maintenance 
■ Enforcement 
■ Administration 

 
 
 
 

Challenges 
■ Capital or O&M investment 

in short-term lease 
■ Quality of O&M 

 
Opportunities 
■ Consolidation/ economies 

of scale 
■ Standard expectations 
■ Continuity from user 

perspective 
 

13 Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates, Inc. 

198

Item 1.



Rates 

Considerations 
■ Who determines rates? 
■ Who monitors utilization 

and changes rates? 
■ How do rates compare to 

other public and private 
facilities? 
 
 
 
 

Challenges 
■ Balance with market rates 

in area 
■ Covering costs (plus O&M) 
■ Capital investment in 

payment technology 
Opportunities 
■ Revenue generation/ cover 

costs 
■ Incentive to split revenue 
■ Net revenue to spend on 

downtown improvements 
 

15 Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates, Inc. 

199

Item 1.



Revenue sharing 

Considerations 
■ Should be detailed in 

agreement 
■ Many options: 

– Flat payment 
– Profits over a certain 

percentage 
– Percentage of total 

revenue 
– Invested into benefit district 
– In-kind 
– No payment 

 
 
 
 

Challenges 
■ Administrative logistics 
■ Issue of not generating 

revenue 
■ May take several years to 

generate revenue 
Opportunities 
■ May encourage other 

landowners to share 
parking 

■ Use net revenue to spend 
on downtown improvements 

17 Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates, Inc. 

200

Item 1.



Access restrictions 

Considerations 
■ Should be detailed in 

agreement 
■ Shouldn’t be overly 

complicated 
■ Many options: 

– 24/7 
– Off-peak (evening, 

weekend, daytime) 
– Special events or regularly 

occurring events 
– Reserved 

spaces/designation 
 
 
 

Challenges 
■ Peak/off-peak overlaps 
■ Complicated signage 
■ Keeping it simple 
■ Enforcement 
Opportunities 
■ Fills in gaps to use spaces 

more efficiently 
■ Business awareness 

 

19 Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates, Inc. 

201

Item 1.



Design/circulation 

Considerations 
■ Maximize number of spaces 

and/or walkways 
■ Could be designed and 

implemented by lesee, 
leesor, or shared 
 
 
 
 
 

Challenges 
■ Capital investment 
■ Induce demand 
■ Landowner coordination 
Opportunities 
■ Mutual benefit 
■ Improve efficiency 
■ Simplify circulation 
■ Improve user experience 
■ Improve visibility 
■ Minimize curb cuts 

 
 

21 Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates, Inc. 

202

Item 1.



Technology: Apps! 

Considerations 
■ Medium/venue for sharing 
■ Right platform 
■ Longevity 
■ Integration with parking 

information system (online 
maps, etc.) 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Challenges 
■ May exclude some 
■ Still in pilot phase 
■ Insurance 
Opportunities 
■ Ease of transaction 
■ Like Tinder 
■ Third-party facilitation 

 
 

23 Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates, Inc. 

203

Item 1.



Parking Apps 

 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates, Inc. 24 

204

Item 1.



Parking Apps 

 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates, Inc. 25 

205

Item 1.



 

USDN Parking Convening 2.0 
Recap of Day 1 

Jason Schrieber and Lisa Jacobson, Nelson\Nygaard 
Burlington, VT | May 22, 2015 

206

Item 1.



Value of Unused Parking 

2 

$20,000 

$20,000 
$20,000 

$20,000 
$20,000 

$20,000 

$20,000 

$20,000 

$20,000 

$20,000 

$20,000 

$20,000 
$20,000 

$20,000 
$20,000 

$20,000 
$20,000 
$20,000 

$20,000 
$20,000 $20,000 $20,000 

$20,000 
$20,000 

$20,000 
$20,000 

$20,000 

 

207

Item 1.



Value of Land 

208

Item 1.



High Minimum 
Requirements 

209

Item 1.



“Internal Capture” 

 

210

Item 1.



-

200 

400 

600 

800 

 

 

 

 

 

-

200 

400 

600 

800 

1,000 

1,200 

1,400 

1,600 

1,800 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Time of Day: Shared Parking 
     Real Demand     

38% Less 

Office 

Restaurant 

Residential 

Restaurant 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Residential 

Unshared Supply 

Office 

211

Item 1.



Barriers to Walking/Accessing Parking     

212

Item 1.



 

213

Item 1.



The New Parking Authority  Mobility Authority 

 

Ann Arbor, MI Source: http://www.getdowntown.org/ 
214

Item 1.



Why Shared Parking? 
■ Efficiency of resources (more from less – supply, ops cost,) 
■ Revenue sharing 
■ Better management 

– Through economy of scale (science and professionals can save us) 
– Improved customer experience 
– Providing availability to certain user groups in the right places 

■ Available parking at all times 
■ Enhanced parker experience (all users) in downtown 
■ Increased economic activity & vitality 
■ Reduced development costs & more land area (for buildings, 

open space, and other land uses) 
■ Increased public/private trust and cooperation 
■ Longer stays that boost merchant & restaurant business 
■ Reduced congestion, pollution & driving/parking demand 
■ More inviting public realm and vibrant street life 

215

Item 1.



Shared Parking Model Case Studies 

 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates, Inc. 11 

Manayunk Sacramento Oak Park 
Arlington Co 
Montgomery Co 

West Concord 

West Hartford 

Miami FL 

Biogen (Cambridge) 

216

Item 1.



Shared Parking Agreements 

Ownership-Use 

Private-
Public 

Public-
Private 

Private-
Private 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates, Inc. 12 

More specifically: 
■ Private leases to public 
■ Public leases private 
■ Private leases to private 
■ Public allows other public 
■ Private sells to public 
■ Public sells to private 
■ Public requires private 
■ Public incentivizes private 
■ Private funds public 
■ Joint development 
■ And more! 

217

Item 1.



Considerations 

Included in Agreements 
■ Term and Extension 
■ Use of Facilities  

(location, times, users, etc.) 
■ Maintenance  

(responsible parties, categories, cost share) 
■ Operations  

(responsible parties, revenue allocation, 
customer service, etc.) 

■ Utilities and Taxes  
(responsible parties, cost share) 

■ Signage 
■ Enforcement/Security  

(type, responsible parties, etc.) 
■ Cooperation/Communication 
■ Improvements  

(rights, cost share, duration, etc.) 
■ Insurance 
■ Indemnification  (during times of control!) 

(parties, litigation cost share) 
■ Termination/Cancellation 

Other Considerations 
■ The reputation/image of the City/Authority 
■ Regulatory & minimum design standards 

(zoning, other regulatory structures, data reporting) 
■ Leases  

(current tenant relationships/ retention, previous lease 
agreements, competition for leasing) 

■ Specifics  
(history, personalities, ownership) 

■ Taxes/financing  
(property valuation/ assessment, more taxes, bank 
financing) 

■ Development  
(changing/growing development, land banking) 

■ The story  
(making the case, information/knowledge/ education) 

■ Parking WITH multimodal environment 
■ Parking competition  

(free adjacent parking) 
■ Apps and other technology 
■ Staffing/capacity 

13 Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates, Inc. 

218

Item 1.



Other considerations 

■ The need to tackle zoning first & have your data support 
■ Joint development: public fronting garage construction 

capital in return for public parking; private getting capital 
discount in return for doing private ops/maint 

■ Private-private structures: to facilitate development, or to 
facilitate economic development. The City is the holder of 
an agreement for community benefit, but not involved for 
pure development facilitation. 

■ Private terms are dictated by the local market and 
particularly the local objectives 

■ Have a kickoff with shared partner to determine needs, ala 
carte options, base standard of care 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates, Inc. 14 

219

Item 1.



Questions 

■ Why share revenue? Should we just pay a competitive lease 
regardless of utilization? Does revenue sharing sweeten the 
deal? 

■ Length of term? Private-private is simple; public-private not? 
Is public always more flexible? Is public willingness to cancel 
for the greater good guaranteed? Can it be trusted? 

To be answered (homework): 
■ Does sharing mean more taxes, fees, or both? (is it enough to 

matter?) 
■ Does indemnifying a private entity avoid litigation cost? Can 

the public entity absorb litigation cost? 
 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates, Inc. 15 

220

Item 1.



Steps 

1. Identify the need (do a pro forma, count cars, data data data) 
2. Basic educational materials 
3. Build a coalition (identify a champion, talk to all stakeholders) 
4. Identify the obstacles (zoning, prior arrangements, perception, 

etc.) 
5. Develop the regulatory framework (zoning, authority, partnership, 

etc.) 
6. Develop shared parking resource library 
7. Develop targeted marketing & educational materials 
8. Find a pilot project 
9. Establish quasi-independent sharing entity/responsibility 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates, Inc. 16 

221

Item 1.



Steps 

1. Identify the need (do a pro forma, count cars, data data data) 
– Purpose 

• Facility expansion? 
• Cost-effectiveness? 
• Reducing parking demand? 
• Resolving user conflicts & complaints? 

– Identify the actual need/market 
• Parking utilization study 
• Citation data 
• On-going monitoring 

– Do a cost & revenue pro forma (will this pencil out?) 
• Sufficient reserve to cover under-performance? 
• Sufficient user base to fund arrangements + more? 
• Considerations include new assessed valuation, cost to terminate 

existing relationships, legal fees, improvement costs, maint/ops costs 

 
Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates, Inc. 17 

222

Item 1.



Steps 

1. Identify the need (do a pro forma, count cars, data data data) 
2. Basic educational materials 

– Parking economics 
– Land use trade-offs 
– Economic opportunity 
– Downtown livability 
– Customer convenience 
– Etc. 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates, Inc. 18 

223

Item 1.



Steps 

1. Identify the need (do a pro forma, count cars, data data data) 
2. Basic educational materials 
3. Build a coalition (identify a champion, talk to all stakeholders) 

– A champion(s) (and replacements!) 
– Businesses 
– Land owners 
– Employees 
– Residents 
– Developers 
– Banks 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates, Inc. 19 

224

Item 1.



Steps 

1. Identify the need (do a pro forma, count cars, data data data) 
2. Basic educational materials 
3. Build a coalition (identify a champion, talk to all stakeholders) 
4. Identify the obstacles (zoning, prior arrangements, perception, 

etc.) 
– Base code or special permit? 
– Licensure? 
– Lease termination? 
– Improvement costs? 
– Ops/maint? 
– Opposition? (NIMBY, favoritism, privatization, land banking…) 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates, Inc. 20 

225

Item 1.



Steps 

1. Identify the need (do a pro forma, count cars, data data data) 
2. Basic educational materials 
3. Build a coalition (identify a champion, talk to all stakeholders) 
4. Identify the obstacles (zoning, prior arrangements, perception, 

etc.) 
5. Develop the regulatory framework (zoning, authority, partnership, 

etc.) 
– Shared parking ordinance 
– Licensing, assessing, etc. 
– Design guidelines 
– Municipal department, BID, Authority, enterprise, private operator? 
– Funding streams, improvement fund, community benefits 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates, Inc. 21 

226

Item 1.



Steps 

1. Identify the need (do a pro forma, count cars, data data data) 
2. Basic educational materials 
3. Build a coalition (identify a champion, talk to all stakeholders) 
4. Identify the obstacles (zoning, prior arrangements, perception, 

etc.) 
5. Develop the regulatory framework (zoning, authority, partnership, 

etc.) 
6. Develop shared parking resource library 

– Sample language 
– Indemnity information 
– Insurance information 
– Zoning/property rights retainage 
– Precedents 
– Reasonable comparables for the banks 
– Other tools 22 

227

Item 1.



Steps 

1. Identify the need (do a pro forma, count cars, data data data) 
2. Basic educational materials 
3. Build a coalition (identify a champion, talk to all stakeholders) 
4. Identify the obstacles (zoning, prior arrangements, perception, 

etc.) 
5. Develop the regulatory framework (zoning, authority, partnership, 

etc.) 
6. Develop shared parking resource library 
7. Develop targeted marketing & educational materials 

– Branding 
– Economic development marketing 
– Business attraction marketing 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates, Inc. 23 

228

Item 1.



Steps 

1. Identify the need (do a pro forma, count cars, data data data) 
2. Basic educational materials 
3. Build a coalition (identify a champion, talk to all stakeholders) 
4. Identify the obstacles (zoning, prior arrangements, perception, 

etc.) 
5. Develop the regulatory framework (zoning, authority, partnership, 

etc.) 
6. Develop shared parking resource library 
7. Develop targeted marketing & educational materials 
8. Find a pilot project 

– Proof of concept 
– Supportive stakeholders 
– Community acceptance 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates, Inc. 24 

229

Item 1.



Steps 

1. Identify the need (do a pro forma, count cars, data data data) 
2. Basic educational materials 
3. Build a coalition (identify a champion, talk to all stakeholders) 
4. Identify the obstacles (zoning, prior arrangements, perception, 

etc.) 
5. Develop the regulatory framework (zoning, authority, partnership, 

etc.) 
6. Develop shared parking resource library 
7. Develop targeted marketing & educational materials 
8. Find a pilot project (or do this earlier!) 
9. Establish quasi-independent sharing entity/responsibility 

– Maint/Ops (including ala carte) 
– Signing/Information (include technology) 

10. Reporting & monitoring (make people happy – be transparent!) 
Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates, Inc. 25 

230

Item 1.



Ala Carte Options 

■ Permit parkers 
■ Enforcement only 
■ Maintenance 
■ Utilities 
■ Operations 
■ On the map 
■ Revenue equipment 
■ Improvements 
■ Revenue sharing 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates, Inc. 26 

231

Item 1.



Your Homework: Due end of September 

■ Cambridge: Find two partners, inform them, begin 
negotiation 

■ Oak Park: Can the next residential project be fully-shared? 
■ Ft. Lauderdale: wow 
■ New Haven: Can you bring two partners together? 
■ Tucson: Can you resolve the bar fight? 
■ Santa Monica: Can you find a pilot that proves the concept, 

then build a coalition? 
■ Burlington: Can you find a pilot? 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates, Inc. 27 

232

Item 1.



URBAN SUSTAINABILITY DIRECTORS' NETWORK CONVENING 
Burlington, VT | May 21-22, 2015 

 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates, Inc. | 26 

7 SHARED PARKING AGREEMENT 
EXAMPLES 

233

Item 1.



Appendix – Example Shared Parking Agreements

234

Item 1.



Model - Shared Use Agreement for Parking Facilities 
 
This Shared Use Agreement for Parking Facilities, entered into this ____ day of 
__________, ______, between _______________, hereinafter called lessor and 
_________________, hereinafter called lessee.  In consideration of the covenants 
herein, lessor agrees to share with lessee certain parking facilities, as is situated in the 
City of ______________, County of ________________ and State of ____________, 
hereinafter called the facilities, described as: [Include legal description of location and 
spaces to be shared here, and as shown on attachment 1.] 
 
The facilities shall be shared commencing with the ____ day of __________, ______, 
and ending at 11:59 PM on the ____ day of __________, ______, for [insert negotiated 
compensation figures, as appropriate]. [The lessee agrees to pay at [insert payment 
address] to lessor by the _____ day of each month [or other payment arrangements].] 
Lessor hereby represents that it holds legal title to the facilities 
 
The  parties  agree: 
 
1.  USE OF FACILITIES 
This section should describe the nature of the shared use (exclusive, joint sections, 
time(s) and day(s) of week of usage.  
-SAMPLE CLAUSE-[Lessee shall have exclusive use of the facilities.  The use shall 
only be between the hours of 5:30 PM Friday through 5:30 AM Monday and between 
the hours of 5:30 PM and 5:30 AM Monday through Thursday.] 
 
2. MAINTENANCE 
This section should describe responsibility for aspects of maintenance of the facilities.  
This could include cleaning, striping, seal coating, asphalt repair and more.  
-SAMPLE CLAUSE-[Lessor shall provide, as reasonably necessary asphalt repair 
work.  Lessee and Lessor agree to share striping, seal coating and lot sweeping at a 
50%/50% split based upon mutually accepted maintenance contracts with outside 
vendors.  Lessor shall maintain lot and landscaping at or above the current condition, at 
no additional cost to the lessee.] 
 
3.  UTILITIES and TAXES 
This section should describe responsibility for utilities and taxes.  This could include 
electrical, water, sewage, and more.  
-SAMPLE CLAUSE-[Lessor shall pay all taxes and utilities associated with the facilities, 
including maintenance of existing facility lighting as directed by standard safety 
practices.] 
 
4. SIGNAGE 
This section should describe signage allowances and restrictions. 
-SAMPLE CLAUSE- 
[Lessee may provide signage, meeting with the written approval of lessor, designating 
usage allowances.] 

235

Item 1.



5. ENFORCEMENT 
This section should describe any facility usage enforcement methods. 
-SAMPLE CLAUSE-[Lessee may provide a surveillance officer(s) for parking safety and 
usage only for the period of its exclusive use.  Lessee and lessor reserve the right to 
tow, at owners expense, vehicles improperly parked or abandoned.  All towing shall be 
with the 
approval of the lessor.] 
 
6. COOPERATION 
This section should describe communication relationship. 
-SAMPLE CLAUSE-[Lessor and lessee agree to cooperate to the best of their abilities 
to mutually use the facilities without disrupting the other party.  The parties agree to 
meet on occasion to work out any problems that may arise to the shared use.] 
 
7. INSURANCE 
This section should describe insurance requirements for the facilities. 
-SAMPLE CLAUSE-[At their own expense, lessor and lessee agree to maintain liability 
insurance for the facilities as is standard for their own business usage.] 
 
8. INDEMNIFICATION 
This section should describe indemnification as applicable and negotiated.  This is a 
very technical section and legal counsel should be consulted for appropriate language 
to each and every agreement. 
-NO SAMPLE CLAUSE PROVIDED- 
 
9. TERMINATION 
This section should describe how to or if this agreement can be terminated and post 
termination responsibilities. 
-SAMPLE CLAUSE-[If lessor transfers ownership, or if part of all of the facilities are 
condemned, or access to the facilities is changed or limited, lessee may, in its sole 
discretion terminate this agreement without further liability by giving Lessor not less than 
60 days prior written notice. Upon termination of this agreement, Lessee agrees to 
remove all signage and repair damage due to excessive use or abuse.  Lessor agrees 
to give lessee the right of first refusal on subsequent renewal of this agreement.] 
 
10.  SUPPLEMENTAL COVENANTS 
This section should contain any additional covenants, rights, responsibilities and/or 
agreements. 
-NO SAMPLE CLAUSE PROVIDED- 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the Effective 
Date Set forth at the outset hereof. 
 
[Signature and notarization as appropriate to a legal document and as appropriate to 
recording process negotiated between parties.] 
 

236

Item 1.



 

Town of Cary Shared Parking Agreement  Page 1 of 3 July 1, 2008 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Please return to: Administrative Staff, Cary Planning Department, P.O. Box 2008, Cary, NC 27512-8005 
 
 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
COUNTY OF WAKE 

 
SAMPLE 

Shared Parking Agreement 
 
 

This Shared Parking Agreement (‘Agreement’) entered into this _______ day of ______, 
200__ by and between ______________________, whose address is ______________________, 
and Parcel Identification Number (PIN) is ______________ (‘Lessor’) and _________________, 
whose address is _____________________________, and Parcel Identification Number (PIN) is 
___________ (‘Lessee’). 
 

1. To relieve traffic congestion in the streets, to minimize any detrimental effects of off-
street parking areas on adjacent properties, and to ensure the proper and uniform 
development of parking areas throughout the Town, the Town of Cary Land 
Development Ordinance (‘LDO’) establishes minimum number of off-street parking and 
loading spaces necessary for the various land uses in the Town of Cary; and  

2. Lessee owns property at ________________________, Cary, N.C. (‘Lessee Property’)  
which property does not have the number of off-street parking spaces required under the 
LDO for the use to which Lessee Property is put; and 

3. Lessor owns property at _________________________, Cary, N.C. (‘Lessor Property’)  
which is zoned with the same or more intensive zoning classification than Lessee 
Property and which is put to a use with different operating hours or different peak 
business periods than the use on Lessee Property; and  

4. Lessee desires to use some of the off-street parking spaces on Lessor Property to satisfy 
Lessee Property off-street parking requirements, such shared parking being permitted by 
the Town of Cary LDO, Section 7.8.3; and  

5. Town LDO requires that such shared use of parking spaces be done by written 
agreement. 

  
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the information stated above, the 
parties agree as follows:  

237

Item 1.



 

Town of Cary Shared Parking Agreement  Page 2 of 3 July 1, 2008 

 
1. SHARED USE OF OFF STREET PARKING FACILITIES 
 
Per Section 7.8.2, Town of Cary Land Development Ordinance (Off-Street Parking Space 
Requirements), Lessor is required _______ off-street parking spaces and has ________ existing 
off-street parking spaces, which results in an excess of ______ off-street parking spaces.  Lessee 
is required ______ off-street parking spaces and has ________ existing off-street parking spaces. 
 
Lessor hereby agrees to share with Lessee a maximum of ______ off-street parking spaces 
associated with Lessor’s Property, which is described in more detail on Attachment 1, attached 
hereto and incorporated herein by reference (‘Shared Spaces’).   
 
Lessee’s interest in such parking spaces is non-exclusive.  The Lessee’s shared use of parking 
shall be subject to the following:   

 
[describe the time, days etc of the use and the nature of the shared use, limits on time 
vehicles may be parked, etc.]  

 
 
2.   TERM 
 
This Agreement shall be effective upon execution by both parties and shall be accepted by the 
Planning Director and shall not be amended and/or terminated without written consent of both 
parties and the Cary Planning Director, or his/her designee.   
 
 
3. SIGNAGE 
 
Directional signage in accordance with Chapter 9, Town of Cary Land Development Ordinance 
and the written approval of Lessor may be added to direct the public to the shared parking 
spaces.  
 
 
4. COOPERATION 
 
The parties agree to cooperate and work together in good faith to effectuate the purpose of this 
Agreement.   
 
 
5. SUPPLEMENTAL COVENANTS 
 
No private agreement shall be entered into that overrides this agreement. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the Effective Date Set 
forth at the outset hereof. 

238

Item 1.



 

Town of Cary Shared Parking Agreement  Page 3 of 3 July 1, 2008 

 
      

(Lessor)     (Date) 
      
      

(Lessee)     (Date) 
      
      

(Planning Director)     (Date) 
 

 
 
_____________COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA 
     
SWORN TO AND SUBSCRIBED before me this ________ day of ___________________, 20__________ 
  
     

(Official Seal) 
        

 __________________________________________________ 
       Signature of Notary Public   

                        
  

                     __________________________________________________ 
                                     My Commission Expires 

 
 
 
 

 
_____________COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA 
     
SWORN TO AND SUBSCRIBED before me this ________ day of ___________________, 20__________ 
  
     

(Official Seal) 
        

 __________________________________________________ 
       Signature of Notary Public   

                        
  

                     __________________________________________________ 
     My Commission Expires 

 
 

239

Item 1.



	 	 				 			 			Printed	on	recycled	paper.	Visit	our	web	site	at	www.sandiego.gov/development-services.		 	 	

Upon	request,	this	information	is	available	in	alternative	formats	for	persons	with	disabilities.
DS-267	(03-09)	

THE CITY OF SAN DIEGO
RECORDING	REQUESTED	BY:	
THE CITY OF SAN DIEGO
AND	WHEN	RECORDED	MAIL	TO:

(THIS SPACE IS FOR RECORDER’S USE ONLY)

SHARED PARKING AGREEMENT

Continued on Page 2

This SHARED PARKING AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is entered into and effective ____________________, 20_____, by and 
between ______________________________, ______________________________and the City of San Diego.

RECITALS
WHEREAS, pursuant to sections 142.0535 and 142.0545 of the Land Development Code, the City of San Diego specifies
criteria which must be met in order to utilize off-site shared parking agreements to satisfy on-site parking requirements.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the recitals and mutual obligations of the parties as herein expressed,
____________________________, ___________________________ and the City of San Diego agree as follows:

1.  __________________________________ the owner of the property located at _______________________________, agrees 
to  provide __________________________________ the owner of the property located at ______________________ with 
the right to the use of (____) parking spaces ________________ from __________________ as shown on Exhibit A to this 
Agreement on property located at _____________________________________________________.

 1.1 Applicant: _____________________________________ Co-Applicant: _______________________________________

  Assessor Parcel No: ____________________________ Assessor Parcel No: _________________________________

  Legal Description: ______________________________ Legal Description: __________________________________

  _______________________________________________ ____________________________________________________

2. The parking spaces referred to in this Agreement have been determined to conform to current City of San Diego 
 standards for parking spaces, and the parties agree to maintain the parking spaces to meet those standards.

3. The Parties understand and agree that if for any reason the off-site parking spaces are no longer available for use by 
____________________________, ______________________________ will be in violation of the City of San Diego Land 

 Development Code requirements. If the off-site parking spaces are no longer available, Applicant will be required to 
reduce or cease operation and use of the property at Applicant’s address to an intensity approved by the City in order to 
bring the property into conformance with the Land Development Code requirements for required change for required 
parking. Applicant agrees to waive any right to contest enforcement of the City’s Land Development Code in this man-
ner should this circumstance arise.

 Although the Applicant may have recourse against the Party supplying off-site parking spaces for breach of this Agree-
ment, in no circumstance shall the City be obligated by this agreement to remedy such breach.  The Parties acknowl-
edge that the sole recourse for the City if this Agreement is breached is against the Applicant in a manner as specified 
in this paragraph, and the City may invoke any remedy provided for in the Land Development Code to enforce such 
violation against the Applicant.

Reset Button Page 1Reset Button Page 2

240

Item 1.

http://www.sandiego.gov/development-services


 Page 2 of 2                                             City of San Diego • Development Services Department •	Shared Parking Agreement

4. The provisions and conditions of this Agreement shall run with the land for those properties referenced in paragraph 1 
of this document and be enforceable against successors in interest and assigns of the signing parties. 

5. Title to and the right to use the lots upon which the parking is to be provided will be subservient to the title to the prop-
erty where the primary use it serves is situated.

6. The property or portion thereof on which the parking spaces are located will not be made subject to any other covenant 
or contract for use which interferes with the parking use, without prior written consent of the City.

7. This Agreement is in perpetuity and can only be terminated if replacement parking has been approved by the City’s 
Director of the Development Services Department and written notice of termination of this agreement has been provided 
to the other party at least sixty (60) days prior to the termination date.

8. This Agreement shall be kept on file in the Development Services Department of the City of San Diego in Project Track-
ing System (PTS) Project Number:  ___________________ and shall be recorded on the titles of those properties referenced 
in paragraph 1 of this document.

In Witness whereof, the undersigned have executed this Agreement.

                                                                                                                                                          
Applicant       Deputy Director

Date:                                       Business and Process Management, Development Services

                                                                           Date:                                 
Party/Parties Supplying Spaces

Date:                                 

NOTE: ALL SIGNATURES MUST INCLUDE NOTARY ACKNOWLEDGMENTS PER CIVIL CODE SEC. 1180 ET.SEQ.

241

Item 1.



242

Item 1.



243

Item 1.



244

Item 1.



245

Item 1.



246

Item 1.



247

Item 1.



248

Item 1.



249

Item 1.



250

Item 1.



251

Item 1.



252

Item 1.



253

Item 1.



254

Item 1.



255

Item 1.



256

Item 1.



257

Item 1.



258

Item 1.



259

Item 1.



260

Item 1.



261

Item 1.



262

Item 1.



263

Item 1.



264

Item 1.



265

Item 1.



266

Item 1.



267

Item 1.



268

Item 1.



269

Item 1.



270

Item 1.



271

Item 1.



272

Item 1.



273

Item 1.



274

Item 1.



275

Item 1.



276

Item 1.



277

Item 1.



278

Item 1.



279

Item 1.



280

Item 1.



281

Item 1.



282

Item 1.



283

Item 1.



284

Item 1.



285

Item 1.



286

Item 1.



287

Item 1.



288

Item 1.



289

Item 1.



290

Item 1.



291

Item 1.



292

Item 1.



293

Item 1.



294

Item 1.



295

Item 1.



296

Item 1.



297

Item 1.



298

Item 1.



299

Item 1.



300

Item 1.



301

Item 1.



302

Item 1.



303

Item 1.



304

Item 1.



305

Item 1.



306

Item 1.



307

Item 1.



308

Item 1.



309

Item 1.



310

Item 1.



311

Item 1.



312

Item 1.



313

Item 1.



314

Item 1.



315

Item 1.



316

Item 1.



317

Item 1.



318

Item 1.



319

Item 1.



320

Item 1.



321

Item 1.



322

Item 1.



323

Item 1.



324

Item 1.



325

Item 1.



326

Item 1.



327

Item 1.



Department 	Signature or Initial Date 

General Information 
Type: Other 	PO Type: Select PO Type 

$ Not to Exceed: 

Attachment: Original 	No.: 

Original Doc Number: 

Other Party: Harvego Real Estate, LLC Certified Copies of Document:: 

Project Name: Firehouse Parking Operations Management 
Agreement 

Deed: Eji None 

Ft  Included 	EjijiSeparate 

Project Number: 	 Bid Transaction #: E/SBE-DBE-M/VVBE: 

Department Information 

Division: Parking Services 

Supervisor: 

Date: 	 Section Manager: 

Division Manager: Matt Eierman 

Org Number: 

Department: Public Works 

Project Mgr: 

Contract Services: Paul Sheridan 

Phone Number: 808-6817 

Comment: 

Review and Signature Routing 

Supervisor: 

Section Manager: 

Division Manager: 
City Attorney 

City Attorney ovic: 09300 ' \  

Send Interoffice Mail 

Authorization 	Signature or Initial 	Date 
Department Director, Jerry Way 

Concurrence Here and Sign inside: 

City Manager (Mc 09200): 

YesEji No Z 
City Clerk (MC: 09400): 

Contract Cover/Routing Form: Must Accompany ALL Contracts; (01-01-09) 

Contract Ser 

Project Manager: 

oil 	ial 

otify for Pic Up 

City of Sacramento 

Requires Council Approval: 

Real Estate 

Tax ID # if applicable: 

No 	YES Meeting: 

Other Party Signature Needed 	Recording Requested 

Date 

For City Clerk Processing 
Finalized: 
Initial:- 

Date: 

'WWI+Imaged: 
Initial: 

Date: 

/0 /1//c/ 

Received: 
(City Clerk Stamp Here) 

L- 135 111V. 

n ), 1.13 
VcQ \l' 4 '7" s NAL1--1 -13 

• - 
"n1\133-3..8  

328

Item 1.



PARKING OPERATIONS MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT 

This Parking Operations Management Agreement ("Agreement") is made and 
entered into this 1st day of January 2015 ("Effective Date"), by and between Harvego 
Real Estate, LLC ("Owner") and the City of Sacramento ("City"). 

1. LOT 

The term "Lot" shall refer to the land and any improvements located thereon at 
Front and L Streets, as identified in the map attached as Exhibit A. 

2. TERM 

This Agreement shall be for a term of five (5) years from Effective Date subject to 
the termination provisions of Section 14. 

3. PURPOSE 

The Lot shall be used solely and exclusively for the operation of a parking lot. 
Any change in use to all or a portion of the Lot shall be mutually agreed upon in writing 
by both parties. Owner, at its sole discretion, may establish and modify the hours of 
operation of the parking lot. 

4. COMPENSATION AND MANAGEMENT FEE 

A. 	Beginning on the Effective Date of this Agreement, all amounts collected in 
connection with the operation of the Lot ("Revenue"), shall be used to offset 
Operating Expenses (as defined below). "Monthly Net Revenue" shall be "Monthly 
Revenue" (as defined below) minus "Monthly Operating Expenses" (as defined 
below). 

(i) For purposes of this Agreement "Monthly Revenue" means the total 
amount of cash receipts generated from all business operations 
conducted upon or from the Lot, during any one month this Agreement 
is in effect, without any type of deduction. Revenue collected from the 
issuance of parking citations and further described in Section 6 is not 
included in the calculation of "Monthly Revenue." 

(ii) For purposes of this Agreement "Operating Expenses" means all 
expenses incurred in connection with the operation and maintenance of 
the Lot. City shall provide receipts for all expenses and shall be authorized 
to make up to $300 in expenses per month without prior written approval 
of the owner. The City will add the Lot to its regular security patrols. 

2014-0981 

{00100467: v: 2} 

Title: Firehouse Parking Operations Management 
Other Party: Harvego Real Estate, LLC 

329

Item 1.



(iii) 	"Monthly Operating Expenses" as used herein shall mean Operating 
Expenses incurred or attributed for any particular calendar month. 

The City shall be responsible for collecting all Revenue, performing billings 
and collecting accounts receivable in relation to City's operation of the Lot. All 
Revenue will be deposited in a City account and City will keep full and accurate 
accounting records. The City shall be responsible for all tasks related to Monthly 
Parkers including issuing and distributing Hang Tags. 

(i) Each month, City will calculate the Monthly Net Revenue and the "Monthly 
Owner Proceeds," which term means Monthly Net Revenue minus the 
Monthly Management Fee (as defined below), for the immediately 
preceding month. City shall pay the Monthly Owner Proceeds to Owner 
within sixty (60) days of the first day of each calendar month in arrears. 
City shall provide brief details of the income sources in a form reasonably 
acceptable by Owner. 

(ii) On or before July 1st of each year during the Term, City shall prepare and 
submit to Owner, for Owner's review and approval, an operating budget 
for the next successive year (the "Operating Budget"), which shall include 
a projection of Revenue and Operating Expenses for the ensuing year. 
The cost of security patrols of the lot will be included as an Operating 
Expense. 

(iii) Owner shall pay City a fixed fee of five hundred dollars ($500) per month 
("Monthly Management Fee"). Such fee will be paid from the Monthly Net 
Revenue, if any. If Monthly Net Revenue is not available or is not sufficient 
to pay the Monthly Management Fee and/or monthly expenses, City shall 
notify Owner of the amount of the deficiency as provided for in this 
Agreement and Owner shall pay City the amount of the deficiency within 
forty-five (45) days after notice is sent to Owner by City. 

5. PERFORMANCE INCENTIVES—City will act as a parking management 
company for Owner and will provide Owner advice regarding parking 
market conditions and best practices for operating the Lot. All calculations 
in this section will be based on gross revenue and all calculations will be 
averaged based on the preceding 12 month period. 

(i) 
	

In addition to the Monthly Management Fee, if the average monthly 
revenue is above $10,000 ($120,000 per year) for the current month, then 
City will earn an additional fee of 5% of gross receipts in excess of 
$10,000. 

6. PARKING CITATIONS 

The City at its own expense will add the Lot to its regular patrol coverage and 
retain all revenue from citations issued to vehicles parked in the Lot. The City will not 
issue citations when the lot is closed by Owner. 

{00100467: v: 2} 

330

Item 1.



7. INDEMNITY 

City shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless Owner, its members, officers, 
directors, agents, employees and volunteers from and against all demands, claims, 
actions, liabilities, losses, damages and costs, including reasonable attorneys' fees, 
arising out of or resulting from the performance of the Agreement, caused in whole or in 
part by the negligent or intentional acts or omissions of City, its officers, directors, 
agents, employees, volunteers or contractors. Likewise, Owner shall defend, indemnify 
and hold harmless City, its Council, officers, directors, agents, employees and 
volunteers from and against all demands, claims, actions, liabilities, losses, damages 
and costs, including reasonable attorneys' fees, arising out of or resulting from the 
performance of the Agreement, caused in whole or in part by the negligent or intentional 
acts or omissions of Owner, its officers, directors, agents, employees, volunteers or 
contractors. 

It is the intention of City and Owner that the provisions of the aforementioned paragraph 
be interpreted to impose on each party responsibility to the other for the acts and 
omissions of their respective officers, directors, agents, employees, volunteers, and 
contractors. It is also the intention of City and Owner that, where comparative fault is 
determined to have been contributory, principles of comparative fault will be followed 
and each party shall bear the proportionate cost of any damage attributable to the fault 
of that party, its officers, directors, agents, employees, volunteers, and contractors. 

8. INSURANCE 

During the entire term of this agreement, Owner shall maintain the insurance 
coverage described in this Section. 

It is understood and agreed by the Owner that its liability to the City shall not in any way 
be limited to or affected by the amount of insurance coverage required or carried by the 
Owner in connection with this Agreement. 

A. Minimum Scope & Limits of Insurance Coverage  

(I) 
	

General Liability Insurance,  providing coverage at least as broad as ISO 
Commercial General Liability Form 00 01 for bodily injury, including death, 
of one or more persons, property damage and personal injury, with limits 
of not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000) per occurrence. The 
policy shall provide contractual liability and products and completed 
operations coverage for the term of the policy. Garage liability coverage 
will be accepted if it meets the coverage requirements for general liability. 

B. Additional Insured Coverage 

(i) 
	

General Liability Liability Insurance:  The CITY, its officials, employees and 
volunteers shall be covered by policy terms or endorsement as additional 
insureds as respects liability arising out of activities performed by or on 

{00100467: v: 2} 
	

3 

331

Item 1.



behalf of Owner, products and completed operations of Owner, and 
premises owned, leased or used by Owner. 

C. 	Other Insurance Provisions 

The policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions: 

(i) Owner's insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respects City, 
its officials, employees and volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance 
maintained by City, its officials, employees or volunteers shall be in 
excess of Owner's insurance and shall not contribute with it. 

(ii) Any failure to comply with reporting provisions of the policies shall not 
affect coverage provided to City, its officials, employees or volunteers. 

(iii) Coverage shall state that Owner's insurance shall apply separately to 
each insured against whom claim is made or suit is brought, except with 
respect to the limits of the insurer's liability. 

(iv) City will be provided with thirty (30) days written notice of cancellation or 
material change in the policy language or terms. 

D. 	Acceptability of Insurance 

Insurance shall be placed with insurers with a Bests' rating of not less than A:V. 
Self-insured retentions, policy terms or other variations that do not comply with the 
requirements of this Section must be declared to and approved by the City Risk 
Management Division in writing. 

E. 	Verification of Coverage 

(i) Owner shall furnish City with certificates and required endorsements 
evidencing the insurance required. The certificates and endorsements 
shall be forwarded to the City representative. Copies of policies shall be 
delivered to the City on demand. Certificates of insurance shall be signed 
by an authorized representative of the insurance carrier. 

(ii) The City may cancel this Agreement if the certificates of insurance and 
endorsements required have not been provided, if the insurance is 
canceled or Owner otherwise ceases to be insured as required herein. 

Owner acknowledges that the City of Sacramento is a self-insured public entity and 
agrees that City's program of self-insurance fulfills any and all insurance requirements. 
The City of Sacramento shall provide a letter of self-insurance stating that the City of 
Sacramento's self-insurance program adequately protects against liabilities and claims 
arising out of the performance of this agreement. 

(00100467: v: 2} 
	

4 
332

Item 1.



9. IMPROVEMENTS 

Subject to Owner's written consent as provided for in this Agreement, and 
subject to City obtaining any requisite governmental permits for the construction and 
operation of a commercial parking garage, City shall make such improvements 
("Improvements") to the Lot as City shall deem necessary for use of the Lot as a 
commercial parking garage for automobiles, including, but not limited to, generally the 
following: The City may install additional signs, posts and chains, etc for the purpose of 
allocating or controlling space usage or traffic flow. 

All such costs for Improvements shall be the sole responsibility of Owner, but City will 
obtain written permission from the Owner prior to purchasing and or installing any 
improvements. Any construction, reconstruction or altering of Improvements shall, at 
Owner's expense, be installed, constructed and maintained in accordance with applicable 
building and other codes, in a good and workmanlike manner to the satisfaction of Owner, 
and in accordance with all requirements of all departments, boards, bureaus, officials and 
authorities having jurisdiction in the matter. All necessary permits for such construction 
(including any permits required to cross public streets) shall be obtained by City. 

City, at Owner's expense, shall install and maintain parking pay stations on the Lot. 

10. MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR 

City shall keep and maintain the Lot and all improvements thereon in good repair 
and in a neat and satisfactory condition, and shall make all repairs and replacements 
that may become necessary to the Lot, whether structural or nonstructural, ordinary or 
extraordinary subject to Owner written approval. All notices and signs upon the Lot shall 
be neat and properly maintained. The City will ensure the garbage will be cleaned up 
and disposed offsite. Owner shall have the right to enter the Lot at all reasonable times 
to inspect the same. Owner shall have the right to install additional signage at Owner's 
cost. 

11. UTILITIES AND SERVICES 

All charges for water, gas, light, heat, power, electricity, telephone or other 
communication service, sewer and all other services supplied to or consumed on the 
Lot (collectively, "Services") directly related to this parking operation, and all taxes, 
levies, fees or surcharges therefore shall be the sole responsibility of Owner. 

12. SURRENDER OF LOT 

Upon termination of this Agreement, City, without further notice, shall deliver up 
to Owner possession of the Lot. City will have thirty (30) days after termination of this 
Agreement to remove any personal property from the Lot. All improvements paid for by 
the Owner shall remain the property of the Owner. 

(00100467: v: 2) 
	

5 
333

Item 1.



13. 	NOTICES 

All notices shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been given when 
delivered personally or deposited in the United States mail, registered or certified, 
postage prepaid, or delivered by overnight courier, and addressed to the party to whom 
the notice is directed at the address set forth below. Either party may change the 
address for notices or Owner may change the address for payments by giving the other 
party written notice to that effect. 

ADDRESS FOR NOTICES 

To Owner: 

Harvego Real Estate, LLC 
Terry Harvego 
1126 2nd  Street 
Sacramento, CA 95814 

To City: 

Parking Services Division 
Attn: Parking Services Manager 
300 Richards Blvd., 2nd Floor 
Sacramento, CA 95811 

14. TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT 

Owner and.City may unconditionally terminate this Agreement, at any time, by 
providing the other party written notice no less than sixty (60) days prior to the selected 
date of termination. 

If owner terminates this Agreement within one (1) year from the Effective Date, 
Owner must pay City the amount of Management Fees City would have earned over the 
remainder of the first year of the Agreement. 

Termination or expiration of this Agreement shall not release any party hereto 
from any liability or obligation hereunder, whether of indemnity or otherwise, resulting 
from any acts, omissions or events happening prior to such termination or expiration. 

15. RELATIONSHIP OF PARTIES 

Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be deemed or construed by the parties 
or by any third person or court to create the relationship of partnership or of joint venture 
between Owner and City, and neither the method of computation of fee nor any other 
provisions contained in this Agreement nor any acts of the parties shall be deemed to 
create any relationship of owner of real property and holder of a limited agreement to 
use the same for the purposes set forth herein. 

{00100467: v: 2} 

334

Item 1.



16. SUCCESSORS 

The covenants, conditions and agreements contained in this Agreement shall be 
binding on the parties hereto and on their respective heirs, successors, assigns and 
legal representatives. 

17. EXHIBITS 

All exhibits attached to this Agreement shall be deemed to be incorporated 
herein by the individual reference to each such exhibit, and all such exhibits shall be 
deemed to be a part of this Agreement as though set forth in full in the body of this 
Agreement. 

18. AUTHORITY 

The undersigned parties hereby warrant that they have proper authority and are 
empowered to execute this Agreement on behalf of Owner. 

19. CAPTIONS 

The Captions contained in this Agreement are for purposes of convenience only 
and are not to be used to interpret or construe this Agreement. 

[Signatures on following page] 

{00100467: v: 2} 
	

7 
335

Item 1.



APPR 	S TO 0 

BY: 

TY CITY A ORNEY 

DATED: 	 / 4/ 	 DATED:  

OWNER: 

Harvego Real Estate, LLC 

Terry Harvego 

Its: iD iye,c ,7trys/  

CITY: 

CITY OF SACRAMENTO, 

a Municipal Corporation 

ATTEST: 

BY: 

{00100467: v: 2} 8 
336

Item 1.



oft. 	  • 

.V..7.... 

I 

• y 

it 

• 

4 	'  
' 

. a 	 - . -',1 	t ,,  ' 

(II, ol :.outr.nd, 	 ■ ... 3 1:ki  41 
INFORMATION 	 'N;;: ,  --.' ''', :-' 	 t t= TECHNOLOGY 	 t-- 6/ ?A I rAliKr 0  

15 	3r: Feet 	 i 
MIN=MMI 	• - 	- - - 	- - - 	- -aiimmillimin  

__ ..,..:,-;__.,  -7,.... . _ _ ._--f!.:i 71 F. ;:.;:.7, _ '  

Exhibit A — Map 

S. 

{00100467: v: 2) 

337

Item 1.



I ll

STATE OF CALIFORNIA

5TANDARD AGREEMENT
STD 213 Rev 06 03

CITY CLERK S COPY

AGREEMENT NUMBER

REGISTRATION NUMBER

1 This Agreement is entered into between the State Agency and the Contractor named below

STATE AGENCYS NAME

Department of General Services Real Estate Services Division Building Property Management
CONTRACTOR S NAME

2
PO

m

3 The maximum amount I
of this Agreement is See Exhibit B 1 I

Z I

4 The parties agree to comply with the terms and conditions of the following exhibits which are by this reference madeD
part of the Agreement i

EAST END COMPLEX 053
i

C1616 Capitol Avenue Sacramento CA 95814

After Hours Parking Management Services l

J
0

rv
J

City of Sacramento Parking Services Division

The term of this

Agreement is Two 2 years with two 2 two year options to extend

Exhibit A Scope ofWork

Exhibit B Budget Detail and Payment Provisions Cost Sheet

Exhibit C General Terms and Conditions

1 0 page

1 page

GTC 306

Exhibit D Additional Provisions 1 page

Exhibit E City of Sacramento Illness and Injury Prevention Program 14 pages

Item shown with an Asterisk is hereby incorporated by reference and made partof this agreement as if attached hereto

These documents can be viewed at www ols dgs ca gov Standard Language

IN WITNESS WHEREOF this Agreement has been executed by the parties hereto

CONTRACTOR California Department of

General Services Use
OnlyCONTRACTOR S NAME ifother than an individual state whethera corporation partnership etc

City of Sacramento Parking Services Division

BY Authorized Signature

1vWC

DATE SIGNED Do not type

Marty Hanneman Assistant City Manager
for Ray Kerridge City Manager June 26 2007

92110m Street First Floor Sacramento CA 95814

STATE OF CALIFORNIA State

AGENCY NAME

rvices Real Estate Services Division

agement Branch
DATE itGNED Do71ottype

o1 lr r
1

f
I if

D Exempt per
1 III

j j

ADDRESS

707 3rd Street Suite 5 105 West Sacramento CA 95605

1 AGREFMtNT Mn

338

Item 1.



ATTEST

1r1WY1
CITYOLERK

1 t7J

IZ d i lr lLJL

I r J
11 UJ 81 Ji

I 1J o
w 339

Item 1.



EXHIBIT A

SCOPE OF WORK
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL SERVICES
REAL ESTATE SERVICES DIVISION

BUILDING AND PROPERTY MANAGEMENT

PARKING MANAGEMENT SERVICES
EAST END COMPLEX 053

1616 CAPITOL AVENUE SACRAMENTO CA 95814

CONTRACTOR AGREES TO PROVIDE

1 The Contractor agrees to manage supervise collect public parking fees provide materials

and supplies and provide necessary qualified personnel to operate one parking facility
located at the East End Complex 1616 Capitol Avenue in Sacramento California Provide

staffing employed by the City of Sacramento no contract employees will be allowed for a

one person booth in the parking facility The parking facility is state owned and the above

ground portion of the facility will be utilized for public parking The Contractor will offer

public parking at an hourly rate or pre pay rate to be determined upon written mutual

agreement between the State and the Contractor No checks shall be accepted for

payment of daily parking Contractor shall ensure a safe and secure environment each day
during the below referenced Hours of Operation for patrons and guests of the garage
structure

2 The Contractor will provide uniformed attendants during the hours shown in Paragraph 3

below The Contractor s attendants shall report all parking related violations identified

within the facility to the facility s Building and Property Management Branch staff who have

the ultimate responsibility for building security

The Contractor will coordinate attendant communication with the Building and Property
Management Branch staff being the In Charge property representative

3 East End Complex Parkina Facility
5 story garage approximately 590 spaces of the total 1 396 spaces to be available

for the public
Hours of operation weekday evenings all day Saturdays and Sundays 365 days
per year
o Monday thru Friday 4 00 p m 2 00 a m

o Saturday 10 00am 2 00 a m

o Sunday 10 00 a m 12 00 Midnight

Contractor s staff agrees to arrive prior to 4 00 p m to allow a smooth transition

between daily parking operations handled by the State and after hours parking operations
handled by the Contractor State parking attendants will leave promptly at 4 00 p m daily

Contractor agrees to give the State priority to use the garage for special after hours

occasions Example Governor s Inaugural Party at the Sacramento Convention Center

with 24 hour prior notice from State to Contractor

Public Parking Rate 2 00 Flat Rate Rates are subject to change upon mutual

written agreement between the State and the Contractor

Operating days are as above including the designated holidays for state employees The

days of operation hours listed above and holidays listed below are subject to change upon
the mutual written agreement between the State and the Contractor

340

Item 1.



January 1 the third Monday in January February 12 the third Monday in February Cesar

Chavez Day in March the last Monday in May July 4 the first Monday in September the

second Monday in October November 11 Thanksgiving day the day after Thanksgiving
Day and Christmas Day

4 The Contractor agrees to pay all direct operating expenses incurred by it when due

including telephone services in the kiosk preparing and filing any and all Federal and State
tax returns and paying all labor taxes plus all Workers Compensation insurance premiums
The Contractor is responsible for supplying the public parking tickets or coupon books

The Contractor agrees to work with the State in developing the language that will appear on

the public parking tickets including but not limited to The name and address of the facility
Not Responsible for Loss DamagefTheft No Overnight Parking if vehicle is left after 2 00

AM it is subject to tow Cash Only No Checks Accepted Public parking tickets must be

prominently displayed either on the dashboard or hung from the rear view mirror to allow
the Contractor s attendants and State personnel to clearly distinguish between after hours

public parkers and State employee monthly parkers Contractor agrees to employ only
trained courteous and uniformed personnel and to replace any employee upon the State s

reasonable request

5 The Contractor may use any existing parking equipment belonging to the State including
gates card readers traffic controls control stations bumpers posts chain portable control

booths time clocks utility services signs Contractor will exercise reasonable care while

utilizing State equipment and all improvements associated with the parking garage Any
damage to State equipment or improvements due to the Contractor s actions or negligence
will be remedied by Contractor at their sole cost and expense An inventory of the State s

equipment will be made on a daily basis prior to Contractor assuming control of the facility
and after returning it to the State for the daytime operations The Contractor is responsible
for having all inventoried items accounted for and in the same condition it was received

reasonable wear and tear excepted

6 The Contractor agrees to pay all State approved capital improvements signage and

marketing expenses pertaining to the overall improvement and operation of the parking
garage Revenue earned from the operation of the State s parking facility will be used to

reimburse Contractor for the above expenses as described in Exhibit B Should revenues

be insufficient to reimburse offset operational expenses there will be no payment required
from the State and the Contractor agrees to cover all costs required by Contractor under
this contract during that period of time All improvements which the State and Contractor

mutually agree to add to the garage become the property of the State immediately after

installation Should this agreement be terminated by either party prior to the Contractor

collecting enough parking revenue to be reimbursed for its investment in improvements the

State agrees to pay Contractor for all costs that were not recaptured by the Contractor over

a mutually agreed to period of time by the Contractor and the State

7 Up to eight hours of training may be required on the various hardware systems used at the

facility which shall be at the sole cost of the Contractor

8 The Contractor shall be responsible for collecting all public parking revenues billings and

collecting accounts receivable for the time of Contractor s use All such income from public
parking revenues without deduction or offset will be deposited in the Contractor s account

Contractor will pay State an amount of revenue per the terms described in Exhibit B

9 The Contractor agrees to keep full and accurate records of all revenues and operating
expenses including all required employee records all of which are to be made available to

the State upon its request at Contractor s main office during normal business hours upon
reasonable notice The State may audit the Contractor s books of account for the Facility at

3

341

Item 1.



any time and agrees to audit at its expense the Contractor s books within sixty 60 days
after the end of each of the State s fiscal year

10 If the books of account for the facility are in error by more than two 2 percent to the
detriment of the State the reasonable cost of said audit will be paid by the Contractor at his

sole expense

The State and the Contractor agree that should any audit disclose that there are funds due
from either party to the other said funds will be due and payable within twenty 20
business days after said disclosure

a All public revenues shall be reported via a Monthly Summary Management Report
from the Contractor as well as the following reports from the fee computer

1 Copies of the Daily Lane Reports
2 Year to Date Lane Report
3 Cash Report
4 Entry Exit Report

b The Monthly Management Reports will be mailed to the following address no later
than the 10th of every month for the preceding month

State of California

Department of General Services

Building and Property Management Branch
Attn Office Building Manager
1616 Capitol Avenue Suite 74 149
Sacramento CA 95814

c Public parking revenue shall be supported by used parking tickets or coupon books

that have been serialized and printed with the name and address of the facility The
used parking tickets and coupons will be kept by the Contractor for a period of three

years from the date of termination of the contract

d Any damage claim found to be caused by Contractor s negligence shall be resolved

by the Contractor at the Contractor s sole expense within 90 days

e The Contractor agrees to reimburse the State for any losses that may occur as the
result ofemployee theft The Contractor shall not knowingly employ or keep in its

employ for purposes ofconducting operations under this agreement any individual

who has been convicted in a court of competent jurisdiction of theft or

misappropriating funds

11 With the State s prior written approval and at the Contractor s expense the Contractor

may install additional signs posts and chains etc for the purpose of allocating or

controlling space usage or traffic flow Such items shall be state property and accounted

for in accordance with Item 6 above

12 The Contractor shall follow the current Standard Operating Procedures Manual
attached hereto specifying the operating procedures to be followed by the Contractor for

operating parking facilities The State may include additional operating procedures to be

incorporated in the manual together with any subsequent changes or revisions shall be

approved in writing by the Department of General Services Building and Property
Management Branch Office Building Manager or his her designated representative

The operating procedures contained herein are hereby incorporated into and included as

part of this agreement The Contractor hereby agrees to operate the facility in compliance
with the provision of the operating procedures or to gain the DGS BPM Office Building

4

342

Item 1.



Manager s or designated representative s written approval of alternative procedures The

Manual shall be kept up to date at all times and pertinent parts shall be provided to the
Contractor s employees

13 Contractor reserves the right to refuse service to any specific individual who refuses or

fails to comply with said rules The Contractor agrees to advise the State of any such

incident If the person affected appeals the decision to the Department of General
Services the DGS Building and Property Management Branch Office Building Manager
will review the situation and make the final decision

14 The Contractor agrees to comply with all rules ordinances and regulations established by
the governmental bodies having jurisdiction over the operation of the facility and to pay for
and obtain all necessary permits bonds and licenses for their operation The Contractor

provides an Illness and Injury Prevention Program in compliance with the California Code
of Regulations CCR Title 8 Section 3203 and the California Labor Code 6401 7 a copy
of which is attached as Exhibit E

15 All contacts by the Contractor regarding this contract will be with the DGS

Building and Property Management Branch Office Building Manager

16 The Contractor shall in the manner and method of operating the facility assure the

highest degree and standards of courtesy politeness conduct and demeanor on the part
of its officers agents employees and representatives and shall at all times during the
term of this agreement comply with the following conditions and requirements

a The Contractor shall conduct its operations in a manner so as not to annoy disturb
or be offensive to customers or other users of the facility

b The Contractor shall select and appoint a parking supervisor whose responsibility
shall be the supervision of the contract work as this is not considered to be a

responsibility of the State of California The Contractor and contract supervisor
responsible for the management and directing the work to be performed under this

contract shall possess at least three years of recent satisfactory within the past five

years experience in the management of parking operations of the approximate size or

larger than the parking facility to be operated under this contract Any person filling this

position must have prior written state approval Such person must be a highly qualified
experienced and successful supervisor of parking facilities vested with full power and

authority with respect to the method and manner of operating the facility The

supervisor shall be available upon 30 minutes notice At all times during his absence a

designated subordinate shall be in charge of the parking operation and available upon

30 minutes notice

c The Contractor shall control the conduct demeanor and appearance of its officers

agents employees and representatives Attendants while on duty shall wear

uniforms with clearly visible and readable name tags which shall at all times be

maintained in a neat and clean condition The uniforms and nametags shall be

approved by the Regional Manager

d All personnel staff shall be trained by the Contractor to render a high degree of
courteous and efficient service and it shall be the responsibility of the Contractor to

maintain close supervision over such personnel to assure a high standard of service
to customers

Upon objection by the Regional Manager to the conduct demeanor or appearance
of such personnel the Contractor shall immediately take all steps necessary to
correct the conduct demeanor or appearance which is the cause of the objection

5

343

Item 1.



e All supervisor and operational personnel must be able to speak read and write

English apply written rules follow oral and written instructions Both new and

replacement supervisors must meet these qualification standards Prior to the
commencement of this agreement the Contractor shall submit a Key Personnel
Resume which shall include the name telephone number and address of the

Contract Manager and on site Supervisor In addition the Key Personnel Resume

shall include a 24 hour emergency number and contact person in case it becomes

necessary to contact the Contractor

17 The following expenses are the sole responsibility of the State and shall not be reflected
in the Contractor s operating budget or monthly operating statement

a Maintaining the premises in good order and repair including asphalt repairs and

striping and gardening or landscaping services
b Any physical lot improvements or modifications
c Lighting water electric modification or repair to the facility
d Facility and state owned equipment maintenance repair or replacement
e Real estate taxes and assessments

f Interest and or principal payments on mortgages or capital investments for land

equipment or improvements
g The California Highway Patrol CHP may patrol the facility intermittently

The term of the agreement shall be for two 2 years commencing on the effective date of this

agreement The Contractor is entitled to two 2 2 year options to extend the agreement at the

State s sole discretion by providing a written notice of extension to the State not less than 180

days prior to the expiration of the Initial Term or 180 days prior to expiration of the first Extended

Term

18 The contractor will provide equipment materials facilities or support services that could not

feasibly be provided by the state in the location and during the hours where the services are

performed The services contracted for are specialized and the contractor has the experience
knowledge and ability to effectively market and manage after hours parking operations

The Contractor is a third party institution dealing directly with customers about parking issues and

giving recommendations to the State regarding items such as operations systems safety and

security The Contractor s employees are trained in security theft prevention and liability claim

prevention The Contractor provides a parking supervisor in charge of the entire operation and

takes the responsibility for after hours operation

19 The Contractor shall post all contract related questions with the Department of General

Services Building and Property Management Branch Office Building Manager The

Contractor shall incur any monetary loss that occurs due to any verbal or written

correspondence with anybody other than the primary contact After the

contract is approved by DGS Office of Legal Services please contact the Department of

General Services Building and Property Management Branch Office Building Manager at

916 445 3700 or his her designated representative

n

344

Item 1.



STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURES MANUAL

STATE OF CALIFORNIA PARKING FACILITIES

A Introduction

By the terms of the agreement the Contractor will operate Lot 43 a state parking facility located at

1616 Capitol Avenue in Sacramento CA The day to day operations including the collection of

parking fees will be accomplished to make available to state employees and the public a first rate

parking service

The Contractor is responsible for collecting parking fees and for operating effectively and efficiently
in accordance with the agreement and this Standard Operating Procedures Manual

The Contractor will provide a qualified parking supervisor to oversee the operation and assure

complete compliance with the agreement The parking supervisor shall be available upon thirty
30 minutes notice during regular business hours

The Standard Operating Procedures Manual contains minimum ope rating standards and

procedures that the state requires the Contractor to meet These standards and procedures are

subject to change at the discretion of the parking program administrator or designated
representative

The following is a partial list of the parking equipment for the State parking facility located at 1616

Capitol Avenue Sacramento California Prior to the commencement of this agreement
Contractor and the DGS BPM Office Building Manager or his her designated representative will

verify in writing the full equipment list

Description
Automatic parking gate including gate arm

Magnetic stripe ticket dispenser
Fee computer with double cash drawer

Magnetic ticket reader validator

Remote fee display
Proximity card reader with pedestal
Dual channel self tuning vehicle detector

Ten station intercom master station
Intercom sub station
Lane status lights
Full sign
Laser printer

Model Quantity

Personnel
The Contractor shall provide the necessary staffing to maintain the level of parking service

required by the State As a minimum the Contractor shall employ the following

1 Parking Supervisor
A parking supervisor shall be in charge of and be responsible for the entire parking
operation The Parking Supervisor shall follow the directives of the Parking Program
Coordinator or designated representative

The parking supervisor shall not serve as a booth attendantcashierexcept in emergency
situations

2 Booth Attendants Cashiers
The Contractor is to provide the number of booth attendants cashiers necessary to effectively
operate the facility during the established hours of operation The booth attendants cashiers

shall be fully trained and knowledgeable concerning operating policies and procedures
7

345

Item 1.



3 Uniforms
Contractor shall provide uniforms to all parking employees All booth attendants cashiers must

wear uniforms at all times while on duty Uniforms that are soiled stained torn disheveled or

in any way unsightly shall be replaced

4 Identification Badges
The Contractor shall provide laminated identification badges for all employees with the

following information prominently displayed to allow easy identification
a Employee name

b Company name

Employees shall wear identification badges in plain sight at all times while on duty

The Contractor s personnel must be clean and neat and shall deal with customers in a prompt
polite and businesslike manner All personnel of the Contractor will comply with the
Contractor s general rules for employee conduct

Lost Tickets

1 The accuracy of Lost Ticket Reports and the parking fees obtained are the responsibility of

the Contractor

2 Charges will be calculated from the time the Facility opened until the exit time If the customer

claims equipment malfunction and this malfunction can be documented the customer will be

charged based upon when he states he entered the Facility and such information shall be

noted on the Lost Ticket Report

3 The Lost Ticket Report will be completed for all lost ticket transactions and will be considered a

Miscellaneous ticket to be reviewed by the Contractor Lost Ticket Reports not filled out

completely or correctly will be cause for disciplinary action

Money Disputes
The Contractor is responsible for all monetary transactions relating to the parking operation during
periods of its responsibility as stated herein Disputes will be handled by the Contractors parking
supervisor and will not involve the DGS Building Managers Office BPM personnel except as a

last resort and then only during the BPM s regular business hours The California Highway Patrol
will be called only in the event of physical confrontation Should a dispute not be resolved the

customer must pay the disputed charge and write a letter to the City of Sacramento Parking Unit

921 10th Street Sacramento CA 95814 describing the circumstances and the reasons for

disputing the charge

Monthly Customers State Employees Only Cardkey required upon Entry
If a monthly customer does not have his cardkey he must pull a ticket and pay the going rate If
he changes his mind about parking in the Facility the customer has a five 5 minute grace period
to exit the facility without being charged This five minute grace period shall also apply to public
parkers

State employees with cardkey access to the garage shall have unlimited access to the garage and

shall not be charged if they have their cardkey to gain entry into the garage A list of all State

employees and the license numbers of their vehicle s will be provided to the Contractor

Contractor agrees to check list prior to authorizing any vehicle to be towed to ensure no State

employees are inadvertently towed Contractor agrees to reimburse any State employee towing
fees should the vehicle of the State employee listed on the State parking list be towed in error

8

346

Item 1.



Keys
The Contractor will exercise extreme care to assure that access to keys to the booth is restricted

only to those personnel needing the keys to properly perform their duties

Parking Booth

1 It is the responsibility of all employees to keep the parking booth clean and orderly

2 Absolutely no writing or marking on any part of the booth

3 Televisions are not allowed in the booth

4 Visitors are not allowed in the booth

5 If you notice any person loitering around your area notify the California Highway Patrol

immediately

6 Employees are not allowed to leave the parking booth without receiving permission and relief

from their supervisor The booth shall never be left unattended

7 In case of any accident involving the parking booth or the parking garage entrance exit

equipment notify the Sacramento Police Department California Highway Patrol and Parking
Unit immediately and then the EEC Central Security Room Obtain all necessary information
such as car license number drivers license number name address phone number type of
car witnesses Also make adetailed report of the accident and mail a copy to the Parking
Unit

Parking Equipment Repair
The Contractor will immediately telephone the BPM for repair of any State owned equipment

Ticket Spitler Outage
The Contractor will assign an employee to manually issue tickets using the following procedures

1 The BPM will be notified immediately

2 Before issuing tickets by hand note the time date power out and your initials on the first

ticket in the stack that will be voided

3 Raise the gate arm

4 Write the time legibly on each ticket issued manually and initial

All power outages requiring manual procedures shall be described in the Daily Log A brief

narrative of the time frame procedures followed and number of tickets processed or issued will be

forwarded to the contract administrator or designated representative within 24 hours This

narrative should contain any additional information or recommendations that may be helpful in

analyzing the problem or improving procedures

347

Item 1.



EXHIBIT B
COST SHEET

PARKING MANAGEMENT SERVICES
EAST END COMPLEX 053

BPM 292

Compensation and Fee Schedule

OperatinQ MarketinQ and Capital Improvement Expenses

1 Beginning the effective date of this agreement all revenue collected by Contractor under the

preceding guidelines will be used by the Contractor to offset its operational expenses

2 Any surplus revenue remaining after reimbursement of Operational expenses as

described in Section 1 above will be used by Contractor as reimbursement for all

marketing materials and promotional expenses Contractor has incurred in its operation of
this parking facility

3 Any surplus revenue remaining after the reimbursements described in sections 1 and 2

above will be used by Contractor as reimbursement for all capital improvement
expenditures Contractor deems necessary to improve the operation and increase usage
of the garage including but not limited to the following

a Signage and way finding materials

b Pedestrian and vehicular access to the facility
4 Should revenues be insufficient to reimburse offset operational expenses there will be no

payment required from the State and the Contractor agrees to cover all costs required by
Contractor under this contract during that period of time

Management Fee If net revenue is earned after reimbursement of all Operating Marketing and

Capital Improvement expenses described in above Contractor will retain a management fee of

1 000 per month Annually beginning on the first annual anniversary ofthe effective date of this

agreement the Management Fee will increase at a percentage rate equal to the Consumer Price

Index CPI for the San Francisco Oakland and San Jose Metropolitan Area for All Urban
Consumer CPI U All Items 1982 84 100 published by the United States Department of Labor

Bureau of Labor Statistics

Revenue Split Any net revenue remaining after payment of the Management Fee will be split
evenly between the State and Contractor

1n

348

Item 1.



A EXHIBIT C

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS GTC 306

PLEASE NOTE This page will not be included with the final agreement The General Terms and

Conditions will be included in the agreement by reference to Internet site

httpwww o s dqs ca qovIStandard Lanquaqe

11

349

Item 1.



EXHIBIT D
ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS

1 EXCISE TAX The State of California is exempt from Federal Excise Taxes and no payment will be

made for any taxes levied on employees wages The State will pay for any applicable State of

California or local sales or use taxes on the services rendered or equipment or parts supplied pursuant
to this agreement California may pay any applicable sales or use tax imposed by another state

2 SETTLEMENT OF DISPUTES In the event of a dispute between Contractor and the State the

Contractor shall file a Notice of Dispute with Department of General Services director or designee
within ten 10 days of discovery of the problem Within ten 10 days the director or designee shall meet

with the Contractor and Project Manager for purposes of resolving the dispute The decision of the

director or designee shall be final
In the event of a dispute the language contained within this agreement shall prevail over any other

language including that of the bid proposal
3 AGENCY LIABILITY The Contractor warrants by execution of this Agreement that no person or selling

agency has been employed or retained to solicit or secure this Agreement upon agreement or

understanding for a commission percentage brokerage or contingent fee excepting bona fide

employees or bona fide established commercial or selling agencies maintained by the Contractor for the

purpose of securing business For breach or violation of this warranty the State shall in addition to

other remedies provided by law have the right to annul this Agreement without liability paying only for

the value of the work actually performed or otherwise recover the full amount of such commission

percentage brokerage or contingent fee
4 POTENTIAL SUBCONTRACTORS Nothing contained in this Agreement or otherwise shall create any

contractual relation between the State and any Subcontractors and no subcontract shall relieve the

Contractor of its responsibilities and obligations hereunder The Contractor agrees to be as fully
responsible to the State for the acts and omissions of its Subcontractors and of persons either directly or

indirectly employed by any of them as it is for the acts and omissions of persons directly employed by
the Contractor The Contractor s obligation to pay its Subcontractors is an independent obligation As a

result the State shall have no obligation to payor enforce the payment of any moneys to any
Subcontractor

5 RIGHT TO TERMINATE The State reserves the right to terminate this agreement subject to 30 days
written notice to the Contractor Contractor may submit awritten request to terminate this agreement
only if the State should substantially fail to perform its responsibilities as provided herein

However the agreement can be immediately terminated for cause The term for cause shall mean that

the Contractor fails to meet the terms conditions and or responsibilities ofthe contract In this instance

the contract termination shall be effective as of the date indicated on the State s notification to the

Contractor
This agreement may be suspended or cancelled without notice at the option of the Contractor if the

Contractor or State s premises or equipment are destroyed by fire or other catastrophe or so

substantially damaged that it is impractical to continue service or in the event the Contractor is unable to

render service as a result of any action by any governmental authority

INSURANCE State acknowledges that the City of Sacramento is a self insured public entity The

City of Sacramento shall provide a letter of self insurance stating that the City of Sacramento s self

insurance program adequately protects against liabilities and claims arising out of the performance
of this agreement This must be reviewed and approved by the DGS Office of Risk and Insurance

Management

Failure to provide evidence of self insurance as required in this agreement is a material breach of
contract and is grounds for termination of the agreement

1

350

Item 1.



RESOLUTION NO 2007413

Adopted by the Sacramento City Council

June 21 2007

APPROVING A PARKING AGREEMENT FOR THE EAST END GARAGE

BACKGROUND

A The State s East End complex was completed in July 2003 Approximately 4 600

employees work at the central complex located at 16th Street Capitol Avenue

B During the past five years the Midtown entertainment district has experienced
rapid growth in the development of restaurants and other entertainment venues

This growth combined with the opening of the State s East End complex has

created a shortage of parking spaces to accommodate patrons and employees
during evening and weekend hours

C The Sacramento Central City Parking Master Plan was finalized in September
2006 It recommended the City enter into agreements with owners of existing
parking facilities as a solution for increasing the parking supply serving the

Midtown entertainment district The East End Garage will provide 594 parking
spaces to evening and weekend visitors

D Upon commencement of this agreement the City plans to immediately address

marketing wayfinding and capital improvements including improved pedestrian
access All revenue collected by the City will used to offset its operational
expenses Any surplus revenue remaining will be used to reimburse the City for its

marketing and capital improvements If net revenue remains after reimbursement

of the above expenses the City will retain a management fee of 1 000 per month

Any net revenue remaining after payment of the management fee will be split
evenly between the State and the City During its hours of operation the City will

charge a flat rate of 2

BASED ON THE FACTS SET FORTH IN THE BACKGROUND THE CITY COUNCil

RESOLVES AS FOllOWS

Section 1 The City Manager is authorized to execute a parking agreement with the

State of California whereby the City will operate the State s garage at the

East End Complex for a period of 2 years with two 2 year options

Resolution 2007 413 June 21 2007 1 351

Item 1.



Adopted by the City of Sacramento City Council on June 21 2007 by the following vote

Ayes Councilmembers Cohn Fong Hammond McCarty Pannell Sheedy
Tretheway and Waters

Noes None

Abstain None

ri L
Kevin McCarty Vice Mayor

Absent Mayor Fargo

Attest

Resolution 2007413 June 21 2007 2
352

Item 1.



353

Item 1.



354

Item 1.



355

Item 1.



356

Item 1.



357

Item 1.



358

Item 1.



359

Item 1.



360

Item 1.



Other Party Signature Needed 

For City Clerk Processing 
Finalized: 
Initia • 

Date: 
1/25/0 
Imaged: 
Initial: 

Date: 

Received: 
(City Clerk Stamp Here) 

1fIC 001 

DVS JO A113 
A0-13 A113 
17:111': 1  

City of Sacramento 

Requires Council Approval: 

Real Estate 

Tax ID # if applicable: 

YES Meeting: 

Recording Requested 

No 

General Information 
Type: Other 	PO Type: Select PO Type 

$ Not to Exceed: N/A 
Original Doc Number: 

 

Attachment: Original 	No.: 

Other Party: KW Cap Towers, LLC Certified Copies of Document:: 

Project Name: Parking Enforcement Agreement Deed 	None 

LI Included 	riSeparate 

Project Number: 	 Bid Transaction #: E/SBE-DBE-M/VVBE: 

Department: Public Works 

Project Mgr: Matt Eierman 

Contract Services: 

Phone Number: 916-808-5849 

Comment: 

Department Information 
Division: Parking Services 

Supervisor: 

Date: 
	

Section Manager: 

Division Manager: Howard Chan 

Org Number: 

Review and Signature Routing 

Department 	Signature or Initial 	Date 

Contract Services: 

Project Manager: 

Supervisor: 

Section Manager: 	-itek-A\e- 

Division Manager: 
City Attorney 

City Attorney (roc: 09300 

I Send Interoffice 

Authorization 	Signature or Initial 
	

Date 
Department Director, Jerry Way 

Concurrence Here and Sign inside: 

City Manager (Mc 09200): 

Yes 	No 71 

City Clerk (MC: 09400): 

Contract Cover/Routing Form: Must Accompany ALL Contracts; (01-01-09) 

atur 

Notify foi.  Pick Up 

Initial 	Date 

irt fq  

361

Item 1.



Parking Enforcement Agreement 

1. This agreement ("Agreement") is made on  alit, 	, 2013 between the 
CITY OF SACRAMENTO, a charter municipal corporation ("City"), and KW Cap 
Towers LLC("Owner"), who agree as follows: 

2 The Initial Term of the Agreement shall be one (1) year, commencing July 1, 
2013, and expiring June 30, 2014. 

3. Owner owns and operates surface parking lot ("Lot") located at 1500 7th  Street, 
Sacramento, CA 95814 (See Exhibit "A"). City agrees to add Lot to its normal 
parking enforcement patrol routes and enforce all applicable vehicle codes for all 
parking spaces located within the Lot. 

4. Each month, Owner will pay City a management fee of $500. City agrees to 
waive this management for the first twelve (12) months of this agreement. The 
management fee is subject to re-evaluation thereafter. 

5. City will retain all revenue from citations it issues to vehicles parked at Lot. 

6. Owner is responsible for the cost and installation of all applicable signage to 
ensure that the posted signage at the site makes reference to citations, towing 
and the vehicle codes that impact the Lot. 

7. Either party may terminate this agreement without cause upon thirty (30) days 
written notice to the other party. Notice shall be deemed served on the date of 
mailing. 

8. Owner shall indemnify and hold harmless City, its officers, employees, and 
agents and each and every one of them, from and against any and all liability, 
loss, expense, fees, or claims for injury or damages arising out of, caused by or 
resulting from the negligent or intentional acts or omissions of Owner its 
directors, trustees, officers, employees, or agents in connection with this 
Agreement or any permit issued hereunder. City shall indemnify and hold 
harmless Owner its officers, employees, and agents and each and every one of 
them, from and against any and all liability, loss, expense, fees, or claims for 
injury or damages arising out of, caused by or resulting from the negligent or 
intentional acts or omissions of City, its directors, trustees, officers, employees, 
or agents in connection with this Agreement or any permit issued hereunder. The 
provisions of this section shall survive any termination of the Agreement, 
notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary. 

9. Any notice, documentation or other communication required or desired to be 
given pursuant to this Agreement shall be given in writing either by personal 
service, by certified mail, return receipt requested, postage fully prepaid or by 
national overnight delivery service, to the following respective addresses: 

2013-0666 

Title: Parking Enforcement Agreement 
Other Party: KW Cap Towers, Inc. 362

Item 1.



Deput 	Att r e 

APPR 	S TO FORM: 

City of Sacramento 
Parking Services Division 
300 Richards Blvd., 2 nd  Floor 
Sacramento, CA 95811 

Capitol Towers 
Attn: Laura Genovia 
1500 7th  Street 
Sacramento, CA 95814 

10. By their signatures below, each of the following represent that they have 
authority to execute this agreement and to bind the party on whose behalf 
execution is made. 

OWNER: 

KW Cap Towers LLC 

By: 	 DUNU1 

\(v'1.apimen u-L Its: 

Date: 

By: 	  
Its: 

Date:  

CITY: 

CITY OF SACRAMENTO, 
A Municipal Corporation 

ATTEST: 

90-0818914  
Federal Tax ID 

 

 

City of Sacramento 
Business Operations Tax Cert. No. 

363

Item 1.



N STREET 

P SIRE 

V l!q !LI x3 

364

Item 1.



Date: 

Department Information 

Division:, Parking Services 

Supervisor: 

Section Manager: 

Division Manager: Howard Chan 

Org Number: 

Date Department 	 Signature or Initial 

General Information 
Type: Other 	PO Type: Select PO Type 

$ Not to Exceed: N/A 
Original Doc Number: 

 

Attachment: Original 	No.: 

Other Party: DBP Realty Partners, L.P. Certified Copies of Document:: 

Project Name: 701 L Street Parking Agreement Deed 	None 

— Included 	riSeparate 

Project Number: 	 Bid Transaction #: E/SBE-DBE-MNVBE: 

Department: Public Works 

Project Mgr: Matt Eierman 

Contract Services: 

Phone Number: 808-5849 

Comment: 

Review and Signature Routing 

NM=Alm= 

' 

at 
 I 

A 
Send Interoffice   Notify for Pick Up 

Authorization 	Signatur or Initial 	Date 
Department Director, Jerry Way 

Concurrence Here and Sign inside: 

City Manager (Mc 09200) .  

Yes El No 
City Clerk (Mc: 09400): 

Contract Cover/Routing Form: Must Accompany ALL Contracts; (01-01-09) 

Contract Services: 

Project Manager: 

Supervisor: 

Section Manager: 

Division Manager: 
City Attorney 

City Attorney (roc: 0930 

' 	ra 
itial 	Date 

City of Sacramento 

Requires Council Approval: 

Tax ID # if applicable: 

No YES Meeting: 

Real Estate Other Party Signature Needed Recording Requested 

For City Clerk Processing 
Finalized: 
Initial: 

Date: 
7-70#13—/ 

Imaged: 

Date'.1b4 

Received: 
(City Clerk Stamp Here) 

SZ :1 ci EZ 1111 1101 

01113i4VI3VS :1,13 
:331.Li0 S,}I`J:113 AUG 

365

Item 1.



PARKING OPERATIONS MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT 

This Parking Operations Management Agreement ("Agreement") is made and 
entered into this 15th day of August, 2012 ("Effective Date"), by and between DBP 
Realty Partners, L.P. ("Owner") and the City of Sacramento ("City"). 

1. LOT 

The term "Lot" shall refer to the land and any improvements located thereon at 
701 L Street, as identified in the map attached as Exhibit A. 

2. TERM 

This Agreement shall be for a term of five (5) years from Effective Date subject to 
the termination provisions of Section 13. 

3. PURPOSE 

The Lot shall be used solely and exclusively for the operation of a parking lot. 
Any change in use to all or a portion of the Lot shall be mutually agreed upon in writing 
by both parties. 

4. COMPENSATION AND MANAGEMENT FEE 

A. 	Beginning on the Effective Date of this Agreement, all amounts collected in 
connection with the operation of the Lot ("Revenue"), shall be used to offset 
Operating Expenses (as defined below). "Monthly Net Revenue" shall be "Monthly 
Revenue" (as defined below) minus "Monthly Operating Expenses" (as defined 
below). 

(i) For purposes of this Agreement "Monthly Revenue" means the total 
amount of cash receipts generated from all business operations 
conducted upon or from the Lot, during any one month this Agreement 
is in effect, without any type of deduction. Revenue collected from the 
issuance of parking citations and further described in Section 5 is not 
included in the calculation of "Monthly Revenue." 

(ii) For purposes of this Agreement "Operating Expenses" means all 
expenses incurred in connection with the operation and maintenance of 
the Lot. 

(iii) "Monthly Operating Expenses" as used herein shall mean Operating 
Expenses incurred or attributed for any particular calendar month. 

The City shall be responsible for collecting all Revenue, performing billings 
and collecting accounts receivable in relation to City's operation of the Lot. All 

2012-0600 

(00100467: v: 2} 
	

1 
	

Title: Parking-701 L St. 
Other Party: DBP Realty Partners 

366

Item 1.



Revenue will be deposited in a City account and City will keep full and accurate 
accounting records. 

(i) Each month, City will calculate the Monthly Net Revenue and the "Monthly 
Owner Proceeds," which term means Monthly Net Revenue minus the 
Monthly Management Fee (as defined below), for the immediately 
preceding month. City shall pay the Monthly Owner Proceeds to Owner 
within sixty (60) days of the first day of each calendar month in arrears. 
City shall provide brief details of the income sources in a form reasonably 
acceptable by Owner. 

(ii) On or before July 1st of each year during the Term, City shall prepare and 
submit to Owner, for Owner's review and approval, an operating budget 
for the next successive year (the "Operating Budget"), which shall include 
a projection of Revenue and Operating Expenses for the ensuing year. 

(iii) Owner shall pay City a fixed fee of five hundred dollars ($500) per month 
("Monthly Management Fee"). Such fee will be paid from the Monthly Net 
Revenue, if any. If Monthly Net Revenue is not available or is not sufficient 
to pay the Monthly Management Fee and/or monthly expenses, City shall 
notify Owner of the amount of the deficiency as provided for in this 
Agreement and Owner shall pay City the amount of the deficiency within 
forty-five (45) days after notice is sent to Owner by City. 

5. PARKING CITATIONS 

The City at its own expense will add the Lot to its regular patrol coverage and 
retain all revenue from citations issued to vehicles parked in the Lot. 

6. INDEMNITY 

City shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless Owner, its members, officers, 
directors, agents, employees and volunteers from and against all demands, claims, 
actions, liabilities, losses, damages and costs, including reasonable attorneys' fees, 
arising out of or resulting from the performance of the Agreement, caused in whole or in 
part by the negligent or intentional acts or omissions of City, its officers, directors, 
agents, employees, volunteers or contractors. Likewise, Owner shall defend, indemnify 
and hold harmless City, its Council, officers, directors, agents, employees and 
volunteers from and against all demands, claims, actions, liabilities, losses, damages 
and costs, including reasonable attorneys' fees, arising out of or resulting from the 
performance of the Agreement, caused in whole or in part by the negligent or intentional 
acts or omissions of Owner, its officers, directors, agents, employees, volunteers or 
contractors. 

It is the intention of City and Owner that the provisions of the aforementioned paragraph 
be interpreted to impose on each party responsibility to the other for the acts and 
omissions of their respective officers, directors, agents, employees, volunteers, and 
contractors. It is also the intention of City and Owner that, where comparative fault is 

{00100467: v: 2} 
	

2 
367

Item 1.



determined to have been contributory, principles of comparative fault will be followed 
and each party shall bear the proportionate cost of any damage attributable to the fault 
of that party, its officers, directors, agents, employees, volunteers, and contractors. 

7. 	INSURANCE 

During the entire term of this agreement, Owner shall maintain the insurance 
coverage described in this Section. 

It is understood and agreed by the Owner that its liability to the City shall not in any way 
be limited to or affected by the amount of insurance coverage required or carried by the 
Owner in connection with this Agreement. 

A. Minimum Scope & Limits.of Insurance Coveracie 

(I) 
	

General Liability Insurance,  providing coverage at least as broad as ISO 
Commercial General Liability Form 00 01 for bodily injury, including death, 
of one or more persons, property damage and personal injury, with limits 
of not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000) per occurrence. The 
policy shall provide contractual liability and products and completed 
operations coverage for the term of the policy. Garage liability coverage 
will be accepted if it meets the coverage requirements for general liability. 

B. Additional Insured Coverage 

(i) 
	

General Liability Liability Insurance:  The CITY, its officials, employees and 
volunteers shall be covered by policy terms or endorsement as additional 
insureds as respects liability arising out of activities performed by or on 
behalf of Owner, products and completed operations of Owner, and 
premises owned, leased or used by Owner. 

C. Other Insurance Provisions 

The policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions: 

(i) Owner's insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respects City, 
its officials, employees and volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance 
maintained by City, its officials, employees or volunteers shall be in 
excess of Owner's insurance and shall not contribute with it. 

(ii) Any failure to comply with reporting provisions of the policies shall not 
affect coverage provided to City, its officials, employees or volunteers. 

(iii) Coverage shall state that Owner's insurance shall apply separately to 
each insured against whom claim is made or suit is brought, except with 
respect to the limits of the insurer's liability. 

(iv) City will be provided with thirty (30) days written notice of cancellation or 

{00100467: v: 2} 
	

3 
368

Item 1.



material change in the policy language or terms. 

D. Acceptability of Insurance  

Insurance shall be placed with insurers with a Bests' rating of not less than A:V. 
Self-insured retentions, policy terms or other variations that do not comply with the 
requirements of this Section must be declared to and approved by the City Risk 
Management Division in writing. 

E. Verification of Coverage 

(i) Owner shall furnish City with certificates and required endorsements 
evidencing the insurance required. The certificates and endorsements 
shall be forwarded to the City representative. Copies of policies shall be 
delivered to the City on demand. Certificates of insurance shall be signed 
by an authorized representative of the insurance carrier. 

(ii) The City may cancel this Agreement if the certificates of insurance and 
endorsements required have not been provided, if the insurance is 
canceled or Owner otherwise ceases to be insured as required herein. 

Owner acknowledges that the City of Sacramento is a self-insured public entity and 
agrees that City's program of self-insurance fulfills any and all insurance requirements. 
The City of Sacramento shall provide a letter of self-insurance stating that the City of 
Sacramento's self-insurance program adequately protects against liabilities and claims 
arising out of the performance of this agreement. 

8. 	IMPROVEMENTS 

Subject to Owner's written consent as provided for in this Agreement, and 
subject to City obtaining any requisite governmental permits for the construction and 
operation of a commercial parking garage, City shall make such improvements 
("Improvements') to the Lot as City shall deem necessary for use of the Lot as a 
commercial parking garage for automobiles, including, but not limited to, generally the 
following: The City may install additional signs, posts and chains, etc for the purpose of 
allocating or controlling space usage or traffic flow. 

All such costs for Improvements shall be the sole responsibility of Owner. Any 
construction, reconstruction or altering of Improvements shall, at Owner's expense, be 
installed, constructed and maintained in accordance with applicable building and other 
codes, in a good and workmanlike manner to the satisfaction of Owner, and in 
accordance with all requirements of all departments, boards, bureaus, officials and 
authorities having jurisdiction in the matter. All necessary permits for such construction 
(including any permits required to cross public streets) shall be obtained by City. 

City, at Owner's expense, shall install and maintain parking pay stations on the Lot. 

{00100467: v: 2) 
	

4 
369

Item 1.



9. MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR 

City shall keep and maintain the Lot and all improvements thereon in good repair 
and in a neat and satisfactory condition, and shall make all repairs and replacements 
that may become necessary to the Lot, whether structural or nonstructural, ordinary or 
extraordinary subject to Owner written approval. All notices and signs upon the Lot shall 
be neat and properly maintained. Owner shall have the right to enter the Lot at all 
reasonable times to inspect the same. 

10. UTILITIES AND SERVICES 

All charges for water, gas, light, heat, power, electricity, telephone or other 
communication service, janitorial service, trash pick-up, sewer and all other services 
supplied to or consumed on the Lot (collectively, "Services") directly related to this 
parking operation, and all taxes, levies, fees or surcharges therefore shall be the sole 
responsibility of Owner. 

11. SURRENDER OF LOT 

Upon termination of this Agreement, City, without further notice, shall deliver up 
to Owner possession of the Lot. City will have thirty (30) days after termination of this 
Agreement to remove any personal property from the Lot. All improvements paid for by 
the Owner shall remain the property of the Owner. 

12. NOTICES 

All notices shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been given when 
delivered personally or deposited in the United States mail, registered or certified, 
postage prepaid, or delivered by overnight courier, and addressed to the party to whom 
the notice is directed at the address set forth below. Either party may change the 
address for notices or Owner may change the address for payments by giving the other 
party written notice to that effect. 

ADDRESS FOR NOTICES 

To Owner: 

DBP Realty Partners, L.P. 
C/O Tower Development 
Attn: Property Manager 
4378 Auburn Blvd., Suite 300 
Sacramento, CA 95841 

{00100467: v: 	 5 
370

Item 1.



To City: 

Parking Services Division 
Attn: Parking Services Manager 
300 Richards Blvd., 2st Floor 
Sacramento, CA 95811 

13. TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT 

Owner and City may unconditionally terminate this Agreement, at any time, by 
providing the other party written notice no less than sixty (60) days prior to the selected 
date of termination. 

Termination or expiration of this Agreement shall not release any party hereto 
from any liability or obligation hereunder, whether of indemnity or otherwise, resulting 
from any acts, omissions or events happening prior to such termination or expiration. 

14. RELATIONSHIP OF PARTIES 

Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be deemed or construed by the parties 
or by any third person or court to create the relationship of partnership or of joint venture 
between Owner and City, and neither the method of computation of fee nor any other 
provisions contained in this Agreement nor any acts of the parties shall be deemed to 
create any relationship of owner of real property and holder of a limited agreement to 
use the same for the purposes set forth herein. 

15. SUCCESSORS 

The covenants, conditions and agreements contained in this Agreement shall be 
binding on the parties hereto and on their respective heirs, successors, assigns and 
legal representatives. 

16. EXHIBITS 

All exhibits attached to this Agreement shall be deemed to be incorporated 
herein by the individual reference to each such exhibit, and all such exhibits shall be 
deemed to be a part of this Agreement as though set forth in full in the body of this 
Agreement. 

17. AUTHORITY 

The undersigned parties hereby warrant that they have proper authority and are 
empowered to execute this Agreement on behalf of Owner. 

18. CAPTIONS 

The Captions contained in this Agreement are for purposes of convenience only 
and are not to be used to interpret or construe this Agreement. 

(00100467: v: 	 6 
371

Item 1.



[Signatures on following page] 

(00100467: v: 

372

Item 1.



APPRO DAS OOR 

777./2, DATED: DATED: 

 

    

    

OWNER: 

DBP Realty Partners, L.P., 

a California limited partnership 

By: Tower Development Corp., 

a California corporation 

CITY: 

CITY OF SACRAMENTO, 

a Municipal Corporation 

BY: 

 

Timothy W. Lee 

Its: 	Vice President 

TTORN EY 

ATTEST: 

BY: 

ALAITY CLERK  

(00100467: v: 2) 
	

8 373

Item 1.



K/ L ALLEY 

7T
H

 S
TR

EE
T 

701 L STREET  
Cm 	 •egr JULY 11, 211-12 

SACRAMENTO, CALIFORNIA 4.117 h.. SM. Mulls PIA emennurie, ACN142 	 MIN I= PISMO., 

o 	 0 

0 

o 	 0 

0 

0 

0 

71 DAILY / o 

	 MONTHLY 
PARKING -- 
STALLS I. 

35 

:/ 

19 	,-j
ri  

16 
U. 

FIRST FLOOR 

	L 	 
W.C. FENCE 

	4  

("/ 
,,/ NOT A PART OF  

PARKING LOT 

(Z
 A

 :L
91

70
0

1.0
0

) 

de
lA

l —
 V

 l!
q!

ti
xD

 

374

Item 1.



Other Party Signature Needed 

For City Clerk Processing -- 
Finalized: 
Initial: 

Date: 
-g3-& 

Imaged: 
In* i I: 

1,k)(0/s 

Received: 
(City Clerk Stamp Here) 

:E d ZZ AVI E101 

01N364VMS JO A110 
::131jJ0 S,MTIO A113 

OADOJ 

City of Sacramento 

Requires Council Approval: 

Real Estate 

Tax ID # if applicable: 

No 	YES Meeting: 

Recording Requested 

General Information 
Type: Other 	PO Type: Select PO Type 

$ Not to Exceed: N/A 
Original Doc Number: 

 

Attachment: Original 	No.: 

Other Party: 16 th  & 0 Gateway Certified Copies of Document:: 

Project Name: Parking Operations Management Agreement Deed: riNone  

LI Included 	ESeparate 

Project Number: 	 Bid Transaction #: E/SBE-DBE-M/WBE: 

Department Information 

Department: Public Works 
	

Division: Parking Services 

Project Mgr: Matt Eierman 
	

Supervisor: 

Contract Services: 	 Date: 
	

Section Manager: 

Phone Number: 916-808-5849 
	

Division Manager: Howard Chan 

Comment: 
	

Org Number: 

Review and Signature Routing 

Department 	Signature or Initial 	Date 

Contract Services: 

Project Manager: 

Supervisor: 

Section Manager. 	 

Division Manag 	11+ lir(4717 
IMO 

At, , City Attorney 

City Attorney (MC: 0931s A 	Am 	A 	2 	 

Send Interoffice , 	 otify for Pi k Up 

Authorization 
	

Signature or Initial 	Date 
Department Director, Jerry Way 

Concurrence Here and Sign inside: 

City Manager (rvic 09200): 

Yes 	No 
City Clerk (MC: 09400): 

Contract Cover/Routing Form: Must Accompany ALL Contracts; (01-01-09) 

5/003 

itial 	Date 

375

Item 1.



10134E1457 .  
Title: PdtkiiigbOjelitiOns.M .O.tiagemerit 
Agreenients  
CttlierT'arty.:'16ifr 	ay 

PARKING OPERATIONS MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT 

This Parking Operations Management Agreement ("Agreement") is made and 
entered into this  4111  day of  /niq Y  , 2013 ("Effective Date"), by and 
between /,7%I 0.  ("Owner") and the City of Sacramento ("City"). 

1. LOT 

The term "Lot" shall refer to the land and any improvements located thereon at 
le and 0 Streets, as identified in the map attached as Exhibit A. 

2. TERM 

This Agreement shall be for a term of five (5) years from Effective Date subject to 
the termination provisions of Section 13. 

3. PURPOSE 

The Lot shall be used solely and exclusively for the operation of a parking lot. 
Any change in use to all or a portion of the Lot shall be mutually agreed upon in writing 
by both parties. 

4. COMPENSATION AND MANAGEMENT FEE 

A. 	Beginning on the Effective Date of this Agreement, all amounts collected in 
connection with the operation of the Lot ("Revenue"), shall be used to offset 
Operating Expenses (as defined below). "Monthly Net Revenue" shall be "Monthly 
Revenue" (as defined below) minus "Monthly Operating Expenses" (as defined 
below). 

(i) For purposes of this Agreement "Monthly Revenue" means the total 
amount of cash receipts generated from all business operations 
conducted upon or from the Lot, during any one month this Agreement 
is in effect, without any type of deduction. Revenue collected from the 
issuance of parking citations and further described in Section 5 is not 
included in the calculation of "Monthly Revenue." 

(ii) For purposes of this Agreement "Operating Expenses" means all 
expenses incurred in connection with the operation and maintenance of 
the Lot. 

(iii) "Monthly Operating Expenses" as used herein shall mean Operating 
Expenses incurred or attributed for any particular calendar month. 

The City shall be responsible for collecting all Revenue, performing billings 
and collecting accounts receivable in relation to City's operation of the Lot. All 

{00100467: v: 2} 
	

1 376

Item 1.



Revenue will be deposited in a City account and City will keep full and accurate 
accounting records. 

(i) Each month, City will calculate the Monthly Net Revenue and the "Monthly 
Owner Proceeds," which term means Monthly Net Revenue minus the 
Monthly Management Fee (as defined below), for the immediately 
preceding month. City shall pay the Monthly Owner Proceeds to Owner 
within sixty (60) days of the first day of each calendar month in arrears. 
City shall provide brief details of the income sources in a form reasonably 
acceptable by Owner. 

(ii) On or before July 1st of each year during the Term, City shall prepare and 
submit to Owner, for Owner's review and approval, an operating budget 
for the next successive year (the "Operating Budget"), which shall include 
a projection of Revenue and Operating Expenses for the ensuing year. 

(iii) Owner shall pay City a fixed fee of five hundred dollars ($500) per month 
("Monthly Management Fee"). Such fee will be paid from the Monthly Net 
Revenue, if any. If Monthly Net Revenue is not available or is not sufficient 
to pay the Monthly Management Fee and/or monthly expenses, City shall 
notify Owner of the amount of the deficiency as provided for in this 
Agreement and Owner shall pay City the amount of the deficiency within 
forty-five (45) days after notice is sent to Owner by City. 

5. PARKING CITATIONS 

The City at its own expense will add the Lot to its regular patrol coverage and 
retain all revenue from citations issued to vehicles parked in the Lot. 

6. INDEMNITY 

City shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless Owner, its members, officers, 
directors, agents, employees and volunteers from and against all demands, claims, 
actions, liabilities, losses, damages and costs, including reasonable attorneys' fees, 
arising out of or resulting from the performance of the Agreement, caused in whole or in 
part by the negligent or intentional acts or omissions of City, its officers, directors, 
agents, employees, volunteers or contractors. Likewise, Owner shall defend, indemnify 
and hold harmless City, its Council, officers, directors, agents, employees and 
volunteers from and against all demands, claims, actions, liabilities, losses, damages 
and costs, including reasonable attorneys' fees, arising out of or resulting from the 
performance of the Agreement, caused in whole or in part by the negligent or intentional 
acts or omissions of Owner, its officers, directors, agents, employees, volunteers or 
contractors. 

It is the intention of City and Owner that the provisions of the aforementioned paragraph 
be interpreted to impose on each party responsibility to the other for the acts and 
omissions of their respective officers, directors, agents, employees, volunteers, and 
contractors. It is also the intention of City and Owner that, where comparative fault is 

{00100467: v: 2} 
	

2 377

Item 1.



determined to have been contributory, principles of comparative fault will be followed 
and each party shall bear the proportionate cost of any damage attributable to the fault 
of that party, its officers, directors, agents, employees, volunteers, and contractors. 

7. 	INSURANCE 

During the entire term of this agreement, Owner shall maintain the insurance 
coverage described in this Section. 

It is understood and agreed by the Owner that its liability to the City shall not in any way 
be limited to or affected by the amount of insurance coverage required or carried by the 
Owner in connection with this Agreement. 

A. Minimum Scope & Limits of Insurance Coverage 

(i) 	General Liability Insurance,  providing coverage at least as broad as ISO 
Commercial General Liability Form 00 01 for bodily injury, including death, 
of one or more persons, property damage and personal injury, with limits 
of not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000) per occurrence. The 
policy shall provide contractual liability and products and completed 
operations coverage for the term of the policy. Garage liability coverage 
will be accepted if it meets the coverage requirements for general liability. 

B. Additional Insured Coverage 

(i) 
	

General Liability Liability Insurance:  The CITY, its officials, employees and 
volunteers shall be covered by policy terms or endorsement as additional 
insureds as respects liability arising out of activities performed by or on 
behalf of Owner, products and completed operations of Owner, and 
premises owned, leased or used by Owner. 

C. Other Insurance Provisions 

The policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions: 

(i) Owner's insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respects City, 
its officials, employees and volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance 
maintained by City, its officials, employees or volunteers shall be in 
excess of Owner's insurance and shall not contribute with it. 

(ii) Any failure to comply with reporting provisions of the policies shall not 
affect coverage provided to City, its officials, employees or volunteers. 

(iii) Coverage shall state that Owner's insurance shall apply separately to 
each insured against whom claim is made or suit is brought, except with 
respect to the limits of the insurer's liability. 

(iv) City will be provided with thirty (30) days written notice of cancellation or 

{00100467: v: 2) 
	

3 378

Item 1.



material change in the policy language or terms. 

D. Acceptability of Insurance 

Insurance shall be placed with insurers with a Bests' rating of not less than A:V. 
Self-insured retentions, policy terms or other variations that do not comply with the 
requirements of this Section must be declared to and approved by the City Risk 
Management Division in writing. 

E. Verification of Coverage 

(i) Owner shall furnish City with certificates and required endorsements 
evidencing the insurance required. The certificates and endorsements 
shall be forwarded to the City representative. Copies of policies shall be 
delivered to the City on demand. Certificates of insurance shall be signed 
by an authorized representative of the insurance carrier. 

(ii) The City may cancel this Agreement if the certificates of insurance and 
endorsements required have not been provided, if the insurance is 
canceled or Owner otherwise ceases to be insured as required herein. 

Owner acknowledges that the City of Sacramento is a self-insured public entity and 
agrees that City's program of self-insurance fulfills any and all insurance requirements. 
The City of Sacramento shall provide a letter of self-insurance stating that the City of 
Sacramento's self-insurance program adequately protects against liabilities and claims 
arising out of the performance of this agreement. 

8. 	IMPROVEMENTS 

Subject to Owner's written consent as provided for in this Agreement, and 
subject to City obtaining any requisite governmental permits for the construction and 
operation of a commercial parking garage, City shall make such improvements 
("Improvements") to the Lot as City shall deem necessary for use of the Lot as a 
commercial parking garage for automobiles, including, but not limited to, generally the 
following: The City may install additional signs, posts and chains, etc for the purpose of 
allocating or controlling space usage or traffic flow. 

All such costs for Improvements shall be the sole responsibility of Owner. Any 
construction, reconstruction or altering of Improvements shall, at Owner's expense, be 
installed, constructed and maintained in accordance with applicable building and other 
codes, in a good and workmanlike manner to the satisfaction of Owner, and in 
accordance with all requirements of all departments, boards, bureaus, officials and 
authorities having jurisdiction in the matter. All necessary permits for such construction 
(including any permits required to cross public streets) shall be obtained by City. 

City, at Owner's expense, shall install and maintain parking pay stations on the Lot. 

{00100467: v: 2} 
	

4 379

Item 1.



9. MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR 

City shall keep and maintain the Lot and all improvements thereon in good repair 
and in a neat and satisfactory condition, and shall make all repairs and replacements 
that may become necessary to the Lot, whether structural or nonstructural, ordinary or 
extraordinary subject to Owner written approval. All notices and signs upon the Lot shall 
be neat and properly maintained. Owner shall have the right to enter the Lot at all 
reasonable times to inspect the same. 

10. UTILITIES AND SERVICES 

All charges for water, gas, light, heat, power, electricity, telephone or other 
communication service, janitorial service, trash pick-up, sewer and all other services 
supplied to or consumed on the Lot (collectively, "Services") directly related to this 
parking operation, and all taxes, levies, fees or surcharges therefore shall be the sole 
responsibility of Owner. 

11. SURRENDER OF LOT 

Upon termination of this Agreement, City, without further notice, shall deliver up 
to Owner possession of the Lot. City will have thirty (30) days after termination of this 
Agreement to remove any personal property from the Lot. All improvements paid for by 
the Owner shall remain the property of the Owner. 

12. NOTICES 

All notices shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been given when 
delivered personally or deposited in the United States mail, registered or certified, 
postage prepaid, or delivered by overnight courier, and addressed to the party to whom 
the notice is directed at the address set forth below. Either party may change the 
address for notices or Owner may change the address for payments by giving the other 
party written notice to that effect. 

ADDRESS FOR NOTICES 

To Owner: 

Ravel Rasmussen Properties 
Attn: R. Scott Rasmussen 
3031 F Street, Suite 201 
Sacramento, CA 95816-3844 

To City: 

Parking Services Division 
Attn: Parking Services Manager 
300 Richards Blvd., 2st Floor 
Sacramento, CA 95811 

{00100467: v: 2} 
	

5 380

Item 1.



13. TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT 

Owner and City may unconditionally terminate this Agreement, at any time, by 
providing the other party written notice no less than sixty (60) days prior to the selected 
date of termination. 

Termination or expiration of this Agreement shall not release any party hereto 
from any liability or obligation hereunder, whether of indemnity or otherwise, resulting 
from any acts, omissions or events happening prior to such termination or expiration. 

14. RELATIONSHIP OF PARTIES 

Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be deemed or construed by the parties 
or by any third person or court to create the relationship of partnership or of joint venture 
between Owner and City, and neither the method of computation of fee nor any other 
provisions contained in this Agreement nor any acts of the parties shall be deemed to 
create any relationship of owner of real property and holder of a limited agreement to 
use the same for the purposes set forth herein. 

15. SUCCESSORS 

The covenants, conditions and agreements contained in this Agreement shall be 
binding on the parties hereto and on their respective heirs, successors, assigns and 
legal representatives. 

16. EXHIBITS 

All exhibits attached to this Agreement shall be deemed to be incorporated 
herein by the individual reference to each such exhibit, and all such exhibits shall be 
deemed to be a part of this Agreement as though set forth in full in the body of this 
Agreement. 

17. AUTHORITY 

The undersigned parties hereby warrant that they have proper authority and are 
empowered to execute this Agreement on behalf of Owner. 

18. CAPTIONS 

The Captions contained in this Agreement are for purposes of convenience only 
and are not to be used to interpret or construe this Agreement. 

[Signatures on following page] 

{00100467: v: 2) 
	

6 381

Item 1.



BY: 

JERRY WAY, D ECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS 

DATED: 	Air 4 20/3  DATED: 	  

OWNER: am w  0  

el/z19 

CITY: 

CITY OF SACRAMENTO, 

a Municipal Corporation 

Its: fifgA/.  

DE TY CITY ATTO NEY 

ATTEST: 

BY: i)414/Y) Ataetaf/vdd 

aid CITY CLERK  

{00100467: v: 2) 7 382

Item 1.



Exhibit A — Map 

v-1 

{00100467: v: 2} 
	

8 383

Item 1.


	Top
	Item 1.	Parking discussion at COW
	1. Memo.COW 8.2.21
	2. Answers to Council Questions About Shared Parking.
	3. Aug 2 COW Parking.for packet
	4. 2015 Shared Parking Report -- low res

	Bottom

